A4

Public Document Pack

Cambridge City Council

==

HOUSING SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

To:

Scrutiny Committee Members: Councillors Todd-Jones (Chair), Birtles
(Vice-Chair), Avery, Baigent, Bird, Blackhurst, Holland and Robertson

Alternates: Councillors Gawthrope, Hipkin and Pitt

Tenants and Leaseholders: Diane Best (Leaseholder Representative),
Kay Harris (Tenant Representative), John Marais (Tenant Representative),
Diana Minns (Vice Chair /Tenant Representative), Caroline Oriokot (Tenant
Representative) and Terry Sweeney (Tenant Representative).

Executive Councillor for Housing: Councillor Price

Despatched: Monday 23 June 2014

Date: Tuesday, 1 July 2014
Time: 5.30 pm
Venue: Committee Room 1 & 2 - Guildhall
Contact: Claire Tunnicliffe Direct Dial: 01223 457012
AGENDA
1 APOLOGIES
To receive any apologies for absence.
2 APPOINTMENT OF VICE-CHAIR (TENANT/LEASEHOLDER REP) FOR
2014/15
3 MINUTES (Pages 9 - 16)
To approve the minutes of the previous meeting. (Pages 9 - 16)
4 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Members are asked to declare at this stage any interests that they may
have in an item shown on this agenda. If any member of the Committee is
unsure whether or not they should declare an interest on a particular
matter, they should seek advice from the Head of Legal Services before



the meeting.
5 PUBLIC QUESTIONS
(See information below).

6 ORAL REPORT FROM THE EXECUTIVE COUNCILLOR AND
PROPOSALS FOR 'LEAD COUNCILLORS'

Oral introduction by the Executive for Housing on the immediate priorities
for the portfolio and an introduction to the Lead Councillor role for Private
Rented Housing and the Lead Councillor role for Homelessness.

Lead Councillor for Private Rented Housing

To assist the Executive Councillor in developing policy on private rented
housing, starting with a review focusing on the priorities in the Annual
Statement.

Clir Dave Baigent

Lead Councillor for Homelessness

To assist the Executive Councillor in developing policy on homelessness,
starting with a review focusing on the priorities in the Annual Statement.

Clir Richard Robertson

Items for Decision by the Executive Councillor for Housing, Without Debate
These Items will already have received approval in principle from the Executive
Councillor. The Executive Councillor will be asked to approve the recommendations
as set out in the officer’s report.

There will be no debate on these items, but members of the Scrutiny Committee and
members of the public may ask questions or comment on the items if they comply
with the Council’s rules on Public Speaking set out below.

Items for Debate by the Committee and then Decision by the Executive
Councillor for Housing

These items will require the Executive Councillor to make a decision after hearing
the views of the Scrutiny Committee.




There will be a full debate on these items, and members of the public may ask
questions or comment on the items if they comply with the Council’s rules on Public
Speaking set out below.

Part 1: To be chaired by Vice Chair (Tenant/Leaseholder Rep)

Items for Decision by the Executive Councillor, Without Debate

7 STANDARD ITEM: WRITE-OFF OF FORMER AND CURRENT TENANT
ARREARS (Pages 17 - 24)

Items for Debate by the Committee and then Decision by the Executive
Councillor

8 LEASEHOLD SERVICES UPDATE (Pages 25 - 36)
9 RESIDENT INVOLVEMENT UPDATE (Pages 37 - 46)

10 2013/14 REVENUE AND CAPITAL OUTTURN, CARRY FORWARDS
AND SIGNIFICANT VARIANCES - HRA (Pages 47 - 56)

Part 2: To be taken by the Chair of the Committee

Items for Debate by the Committee and then Decision by the Executive
Councillor

11 2013/14 REVENUE AND CAPITAL OUTTURN, CARRY FORWARDS
AND SIGNIFICANT VARIANCES - HOUSING PORTFOLIO (Pages 57 -
72)

12 AFFORDABLE HOUSING PROGRAMME (Pages 73 - 86)

It is recommended that the committee resolves to exclude the press and
public during item 12 by virtue of paragraph(s) 6 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972

(Pages 73 - 86)

13 PROCUREMENT OF AN AFFORDABLE HOUSING DEVELOPMENT
PARTNER (Pages 87 - 90)

Items for Decision by the Executive Councillor, Without Debate




14

15

16

16a

POWER TO CHARGE FOR CERTAIN ENFORCEMENT ACTION UNDER
THE HOUSING ACT 2004 (THE "ACT") (Pages 91 - 106)

CAMBRIDGESHIRE HOME IMPROVEMENT AGENCY (CAMBS HIA) -
EXTENSION OF CONTRACT (Pages 107 - 110)

RECORD OF URGENT DECISION

Record of Urgent Decisions taken by the Executive Councillor for Housing

To note decisions taken by the Executive Councillor for Housing since the
last meeting of the Housing Management Board.

Opportunity to Bid to Increase the Housing Revenue Account (HRA)
(Pages 111 - 138)

For consideration of all the Committee

17

18

FUTURE MEETING TIMES FOR HOUSING SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
Committee Manager

Committee Members to review and agree future meeting times for Housing
Scrutiny Committee.

A start time of 2.30pm has been proposed by the Chair.

DISPOSAL OF 18A AND FREEHOLD TO 18B MAGRATH AVENUE
Business Manager & Principal Accountant (Pages 139 - 146)

The Chair will rule that under 100B(4)(b) of the Local Government Act 1972 this item be
considered despite not being made publicly available for this Committee five clear days

prior to the meeting. (Pages 139 - 146)



Location

Public
Participation

Information for the Public

The meeting is in the Guildhall on the Market Square
(CB2 3QJ).

Between 9 a.m. and 5 p.m. the building is accessible
via Peas Hill, Guildhall Street and the Market Square
entrances.

After 5 p.m. access is via the Peas Hill entrance.

All  the meeting rooms (Committee Room 1,
Committee 2 and the Council Chamber) are on the
first floor, and are accessible via lifts or stairs.

Some meetings may have parts that will be closed to
the public, but the reasons for excluding the press
and public will be given.

Most meetings have an opportunity for members of
the public to ask questions or make statements.

To ask a question or make a statement please notify
the Committee Manager (details listed on the front of
the agenda) prior to the deadline.

 For questions and/or statements regarding
items on the published agenda, the deadline is
the start of the meeting.

 For questions and/or statements regarding
items NOT on the published agenda, the
deadline is 10 a.m. the day before the meeting.

Speaking on Planning Applications or Licensing
Hearings is subject to other rules. Guidance for
speaking on these issues can be obtained from
Democratic Services on 01223 457013 or
democratic.services@cambridge.gov.uk.

Further information about speaking at a City Council



Filming,
recording
and
photography

Fire Alarm

Facilities for
disabled
people

meeting can be found at:

https://www.cambridge.gov.uk/speaking-at-
committee-meetings

Cambridge City Council would value your assistance
in improving the public speaking process of
committee meetings. If you any have any feedback
please contact Democratic Services on 01223 457013
or democratic.services@cambridge.gov.uk.

The Council is committed to being open and
transparent in the way it conducts its decision-making.
Recording is permitted at council meetings, which are
open to the public. The Council understands that
some members of the public attending its meetings
may not wish to be recorded. The Chair of the
meeting will facilitate by ensuring that any such
request not to be recorded is respected by those
doing the recording.

Full details of the City Council’'s protocol on
audio/visual recording and photography at meetings
can be accessed via:

http://democracy.cambridge.qgov.uk/ecSDDisplay.aspx
?NAME=SD1057&ID=1057&RPID=33371389&sch=d
oc&cat=13203&path=13020%2c13203.

In the event of the fire alarm sounding please follow
the instructions of Cambridge City Council staff.

Level access to the Guildhall is via Peas Hill.

A loop system is available in Committee Room 1,
Committee Room 2 and the Council Chamber.

Accessible toilets are available on the ground and first
floor.

Meeting papers are available in large print and other
formats on request prior to the meeting.

For further assistance please contact Democratic
Services on 01223 457013 or

vi



Queries on
reports

General
Information

democratic.services@cambridge.qgov.uk.

If you have a question or query regarding a committee
report please contact the officer listed at the end of
relevant report or Democratic Services on 01223
457013 or democratic.services@cambridge.gov.uk.

Information regarding committees, councilors and the
democratic process is available at
http://democracy.cambridge.gov.uk.

Vii



This page is intentionally left blank



Housing Management Board HMB/1 Tuesday, 4 March 2014

HOUSING MANAGEMENT BOARD 4 March 2014
5.30 -6.55 pm

Present: Councillors Blackhurst (Vice-Chair), Blencowe, Brierley, Johnson,
Pippas, Price, Rosenstiel

Executive Councillor for Housing: Councillor Smart

Tenant/Leaseholder Representatives: Diana Minns (Chair), Diane
Best, Kay Harris, Caroline Oriokot and Terry Sweeney

Chair of the Housing Regulation Panel: Stan Best

Officers:

Head of City Homes: Robert Hollingsworth
Area Housing Manager: Sandra Farmer
Resident Involvement Facilitator: James Bull
Committee Manager: Claire Tunnicliffe

| FOR THE INFORMATION OF THE COUNCIL

14/13/HMB Apologies

Apologies were received from Councillor Bird, Mr John Marais and the Director
of Community and Customer Services.

14/14/HMB Declarations of Interest

None were declared.

14/15/HMB Minutes

Minutes of the 7 January 2014 meeting were approved and signed as a correct
record subject to the following amendments (replacement underlined and

original text struck-through):

o 14/6/HMB Shared Ownership Review
In response to the report Kay—Harris Diane Best requested that a copy
of the survey referenced in the report be circulated to Members.

Page 9



Housing Management Board HMB/2 Tuesday, 4 March 2014

Councillor Rosenstiel who attended the HMB meeting on 7 January 2014
requested that his name was added to the list of Councillors who were present
at the meeting.

Minutes of the 16 January 2014 meeting were approved and signed as a
correct record subject to the following amendment.

It was noted that the minutes of 16 January 2014 had not referenced the
funding in the Labour Group Amendment Housing Revenue Budget 2014/15 to
allow the phased recruitment of four repairs apprentices starting in 2015/16.
The Executive Councillor for Housing had agreed to the principle of this
commitment providing that Officers could guarantee proper and sufficient
training for the additional apprentices

Councillor Price requested that the Committee’s disappointment with the
Executive Councillor for Housing not agreeing with the decision of the Housing

Management Board to approve the Labour Amendment on Housing Revenue
Account Budget for 2014/15 be minuted.

14/16/HMB Public Questions

There were no public questions.

14/17/HMB Housing Portfolio Plan 2014/15

Matter for Decision

To note the draft Housing Portfolio Plan 2014/15, which had set out the
strategic objectives for the portfolio for the year ahead, describing the context
in which the portfolio would be delivered and detailed the activities required to
deliver the outcomes and the vision. Performance measures and risks were
also shown for each strategic objective.

Decision of Executive Councillor for Housing

Noted the draft Housing Portfolio Plan 2014-15.
Reason for the Decision
As set out in the Officer’s report.

Any Alternative Options Considered and Rejected

Page210



Housing Management Board HMB/3 Tuesday, 4 March 2014

Not applicable.

Scrutiny Considerations

In response to the report the Committee made the following comments:

Vi.

Vii.

The developing plans for the Council to deliver up to 2000 new
affordable homes in Strategic Objective HS01 should state that this
would be in the Greater Cambridge area and would be delivered with
partnership agencies. The statement indicates this would be provided
solely by the Council. This was a misleading statement.
The reference to 2000 new affordable homes in Strategic Objective
HSO01 lay under the heading 2014/15, which gave the indication that
2000 homes would be built in this period.
The Strategic Objective for HSO1 should state that the target of 2000
new affordable homes was based on the thirty year self-financing
business plan and a completion date included. Based on the business
plan the goal would be to build 66 homes per year to meet the 2000 new
affordable homes. This information should have been included in the
report.
The performance measures for the Strategic Objective HS02 did not
provide a specific objective on how the Council would guarantee support
for vulnerable people.
There was nothing in the performance measures for the Strategic
Objective HS03 which indicated the following:

e How the Council would tackle youth homelessness.

e How the Council would integrate the homeless back into

permanent housing.
¢ How the Council would encourage landlords to bring the homeless
back into the private sector.

Impressed with No 3 of the Performance Measures in the Strategic
Objective HSO01, which indicated that the majority of new Affordable
Homes would be built to Level 4 of the Code for Sustainable Homes in
2014/15, a higher level of privately built houses which were usually built
to Level 3.
Queried if the figure shown in No 2 of the Performance Measures in the
Strategic Objective HS01 (completion of Affordable Housing on the other
sites, total of 252), could be split into three categories:

e Those outside the city boundaries.

e Those on the growth sites.

e Those elsewhere.

Page 11



Housing Management Board HMB/4 Tuesday, 4 March 2014

viii.  Asked if there was an update on the City Deal and how this would affect
funding.
ix. Requested if information could be circulated to the Committee on the
work of the Town Hall Lettings Scheme.

In response to Members’ questions the Executive Councillor for Housing and
Officers confirmed the following:

i. The 2000 new affordable houses was part of the City Homes Scheme
and she did not believe that the statement misleading.

ii. Advised that a Key Performance Indicator would be developed to
measure how the Council was helping vulnerable people and this would
be brought back to Committee for information.

iii. Although the report did not specifically indicate how the Council would
combat youth homelessness, the Service for Single Homelessness
stated in the report would cover young people. There were also charities
and hostels that were in partnership with the Council such as the
Cambridge Youth Foyer which assisted young people.

iv. Reminded the Committee that the report provided a general overview of
the work that was carried out.

v. Confirmed that the Council were below the national average eviction
rate. Fewer people were likely to be evicted than in previous years. Other
measures were more complicated to calculate due to tenants who move
on from a property and then re-present themselves later. A report would
come back to Committee at a later date on these measures.

vi. Advised the Town Hall Lettings Scheme referenced in Strategic
Objective HS03.1 would be working with landlords in the private sector.
Confirmed that figure No 2 of the Performance Measures in the Strategic
Objective HSO1 other sites could be divided into further categories for
better clarity.

vii. Advised that the City Deal could have an impact to the build rate of the
2000 new affordable homes, therefore it had been best not to include an
end date.

viii. Noted the Committee’s comments that the report did not make reference
to the business plan or an end date in Strategic Objective HS01 in
relation to the completion of 2000 new affordable homes.

ix. Would like the Council to continue with the installation and energy
efficiency to ensure that tenants could keep warm at a low cost.

X. There was no reason why an item on the Town Hall Lettings Scheme
could not be included on a future agenda.

Paget12



Housing Management Board HMB/5 Tuesday, 4 March 2014

The Committee:

Resolved unanimously to note the Draft Housing Portfolio Plan 2014/15
The Executive Councillor for Housing noted the Draft Housing Portfolio Plan
Conflicts of Interest Declared by the Executive Councillor (and any

Dispensations Granted)
No conflicts of interest were declared by the Executive Councillor.

14/18/HMB Progress Report From Residents' Housing Regulation Panel
To note the Housing Regulation Panel (HRP) progress report 2013/14 and the
HRP inspection report on the City Homes Communal Window Cleaning
Service.

Decision of Executive Councillor for Housing

i. Noted and welcomed the positive outcomes achieved by residents’
Housing Regulation Panel in their third year of activity.

ii. Resolved to continue to support residents’ co-regulation and the
constructive challenge provided by residents’ Housing Regulation Panel.

Reason for the Decision
As set out in the Officer’s report.

Any Alternative Options Considered and Rejected
Not applicable.

Scrutiny Considerations
The Committee were presented with a report by the Chair of the Housing
Regulation Panel, Mr Best, on the 2013/14 HRP progress report and

inspection report on the City Homes Communal Window Cleaning Service.

Diana Minns expressed the Committee’s thanks to the HRP for their hard work
and to Mr Best for collating such comprehensive and detailed reports.

Page 13



Housing Management Board HMB/6 Tuesday, 4 March 2014

The Executive Councillor for Housing also passed on her thanks to Mr Best
and the Housing Regulation Panel for the work that they had undertaken.

In response to the report the Committee made the following comments:

i.  Welcomed the reports and reiterated thanks to Mr Best, members of
HRP and Officers for their work.

ii.  Acknowledged that there had been no capacity in the past to monitor the
window cleaning service to such a standard.

iii. Agreed it was important to hold the Council to account if standards were
not being met and to discuss how any issues could be resolved.

iv.  As tenants paid a service charge the work of the HRP was vital to ensure
that the money had been well spent.

v. The report had clearly highlighted that the Window Cleaning Service had
not been value for money.

vi. Disappointed to note the sub-standard of service that had been identified
in the inspection report; not one window had met with the inspection
standards.

vii. Clean windows contributed to a sense of pride to the building and the
area in which the tenant’s lived.

viii. Questioned the role of the Contractor's Supervisor and how the
standards had failed.

ix. Pleased to note the SMART requirements for improvements and the
action plan.

x. Acknowledged that the service had not been continuously monitored but
with the action plan in place hoped that there would be continuing
improvements.

xi. By publishing the Service Standard and Window Cleaning Schedule this
should encourage tenant participation to report to Officers if standards
had not been met.

In response to Members’ questions the Executive Councillor for Housing and
Officers confirmed the following:

i.  The inspection report had been taken extremely seriously.

ii. Dismayed to note that windows at the back of Sheltered Housing had not
been cleaned.

iii. Acknowledged that there were lessons that needed to be learnt.

iv. This particular service would be looked at in the overall bigger
procurement contract.

v. Tenants would be encouraged to become more involved.

vi. The service standard would be looked at on a regular basis.

Pagesl4



Housing Management Board HMB/7 Tuesday, 4 March 2014

Mr Best informed the Committee that due to meetings that he had attended
with Officers and the Contractor, the SMART requirements and action plan in
place, he now had confidence in the service. He acknowledged the
improvements would not take place overnight but they would happen.

The Committee:

Resolved unanimously to endorse the Officer recommendations.

The Executive Councillor approved the recommendations.

Conflicts of Interest Declared by the Executive Councillor (and any
Dispensations Granted)

No conflicts of interest were declared by the Executive Councillor.

Diana Minns, as Chair of the Housing Management Board, thanked the
Committee and Officers for their attendance during the year, their debate and
interest. She also thanked the Committee Manager, Claire Tunnicliffe.

The meeting ended at 6.55 pm

CHAIR

Page 15



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 16



Agenda Item 7

,Lb\. Cambridge City Council Iltem
B
To: Executive Councillor for Housing
Report by: Director of Customer & Community Services
Relevant scrutiny Housing Committee 1/7/2014
committee:
Wards affected: All Wards

WRITE-OFF OF CURRENT AND FORMER TENANT ARREARS

Not a Key Decision

The background information used in the preparation of this report is
exempted from publication by virtue of paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

1. Executive Summary

This report sets out the detail of one current tenant and nineteen former

tenant arrears cases together with a summary of the action taken to try to

recover the debts.

2. Recommendations

The Executive Councillor is recommended:

2.1 To approve the one case of current tenant arrears totalling £2,605.52
detailed in the attached appendix be written off, due to the expiration
of a Debt Relief Order.

2.2 To approve the nineteen cases of former tenant arrears totalling
£54,414 .29 also detailed in the attached appendix, be written off due
to recovery activity being exhausted.

3. Background

3.1 The former tenant arrears cases have been subject to the standard
rent arrears recovery process where applicable.

3.2 The current tenant arrears case has been subject to the standard rent
arrears recovery process applicable before the Debt Relief Orders
were granted.

3.3 In April 2009, the UK Government introduced the Debt Relief Order,
as a simplified, quicker and cheaper alternative to bankruptcy as a

Report Page No: 1 Page 17



3.4

3.5

debt relief solution. Debt Relief Orders are run by The Insolvency
Service in partnership with skilled debt advisers and do not involve the
courts. A Debt Relief Order (DRO) enables debtors to repay their debt
without the need to file for bankruptcy, which is a more costly solution.
The current cost of a Debt Relief Order is £90.00, which must be paid
in advance before an application will be considered.

Debt Relief Orders are suitable for people who cannot pay their debts
and do not own their own home, have little surplus income and assets
and have no prospect of the situation improving.

Application Conditions of a Debt Relief Order

o The debtor must be unable to repay their debts.
° The debtor must owe less than £15,000.

e The debtor can own a car to the value of £1,000 but the total
value of other assets must not exceed £300.

¢ After taking away tax, national insurance contributions and
normal household expenses, the debtors’ disposable income
must be no more than £50 a month.

e The debtor must be domiciled (living) in England or Wales, or at
some time in the last 3 years have been living or carrying on
business in England or Wales.

e The debtor must not have been subject to another DRO within
the last 6 years.

e The debtor must not be involved in another formal insolvency
procedure at the time they apply.

Effects of a Debt Relief Order

3.6

3.7

3.8

Debt Relief Orders usually last for 12 months, however these can be
extended and the individual is:

o Protected by enforcement action from many of their creditors
o Obliged to co-operate with the Official Receiver
o Expected to repay their creditors if their circumstances improve

While the DRO is in force the debt will be subject to a moratorium.
During this time, creditors named on the order cannot take any legal
action to recover their money without permission from the court.

Debtors should not make any payments towards any debt contained
within their DRO but should continue to pay ongoing commitments
such as rent and utility bills that occur after the DRO has been
approved.

Report Page No: 2 Page 18



3.9

3.10

3.11

At the end of the moratorium period, if the debtor’s circumstances
have not changed, they will be freed from the debts that were included
in their order, as they should be written off and creditors may not take
any action for repayment of the debts.

If the debt forms part of a joint debt, action can be taken against any
other joint debtor, unless they too are subject to a DRO or other
insolvency process.

If the moratorium is extended, ended early, or if the DRO is cancelled,
creditors will be sent notice by the official receiver.

Process

3.12

3.13

3.14

During the 12 months that the order is in place, City Homes transfer
the debt to a sub account within the tenancy in order that arrears
action is not undertaken against the amount specified.

At the end of the 12 month period if the debtors circumstances are
unchanged, the council has no option but to write the debt off.

Any tenant who has had a DRO is unable to apply for another one
within a 6-year period.

4. Implications

(a)

(b)

()

(d)

(e)

Financial Implications

Provision for writing off of bad debts has been made in the Housing
Revenue Account.

Staffing Implications (if not covered in Consultations Section)
There are no staffing implications associated with this report.
Equality & Poverty Implications

An Equalities Impact Assessment has not been undertaken in respect
of this report, as each case has been individually considered prior to
submission for write off.

Environmental Implications

There are no environmental implications associated with this report.

Procurement

Report Page No: 3 Page 19



There are no direct procurement implications associated with this
report.

(f) Consultation and communication
This report considers an individual case for write off. A number of
attempts will have been made to contact the tenant concerned prior to
the preparation of this report.
Members and tenant and leaseholder representatives are reminded
that they are welcome to spend time with City Homes officers to gain
further insight into the arrears recovery and write off process.
(g9 Community Safety
There are no environmental implications associated with this report.
5. Background Papers
The background papers used in the preparation of this report are exempt
from publication as they contain information relating to the financial or

business affairs of any particular person.

6. Appendices

The following appendix is included as part of this report:
e Appendix 1: Individual arrears case and action taken.
7. Inspection of Papers

If you have a query on the report please contact:

Author’'s Name: Cherie Carless
Author’'s Phone Number: 01223 - 457824
Author’s Email: cherie.carless@cambridge.gov.uk

Report Page No: 4 Page 20



"Z10Z JoquIBAON Ul papus sem Aoueua) ay) ‘JusWwaA|oAUl Jabeuely BuisnoH

ealy BUIMO||04 "81B])SS Ul SBIUOW UMOUY OU pUB JUSWSA|OAUI OU palsanbal saAne|ay "Z1L0oz AInr ul Aeme passed jueus)| paseadaqiueus] | £€9'g866‘z3 |uoibuidwni] | yinog
2y} Jaye paje|nwinode jey) siealle sasudwod 1gap 8yl ZL0Z JaquiaAoN - 986 [Udy pouad ay) Jo} sem Aoueus) ay |
"G00Z [1dy Ul 80UB[OIA
ol)sawop 0} anp eale abpuque) ay) 99)) 0} pey usay) Jueus) ay] ybnos aiem sjuswAed joalip siealie usym Aoueus) sieak g 1o} L
ay] JO 9lep JUSWSOUBWIWOD 8y} WO} JUNOJJE Y]} U0 anJode 0] paue)s slealle ay| ‘siealle jual Buipuelsino pue| uonoe Alonodal oN v9'266 ¢3 Aeqqv nos
siiedas s|geabieyodal ‘yuswAediano gH e sasudwod 1gap ayl "900Z do4 - #00Z Aely pouad ayy 4o} sem Aoueus) ay |
'9]qelaA023l 10U pawasp
MOU S| }qap 8y} a10jaJ8y} pue sieak XIS }Se| ay} Joj uaye} usaq Sey uoljoe siealle ou pue Aouabe ue 0} passed jou sem
JuUNo2oe 8y 900z 1deS ul pasead sjuswAed ay) Janamoy siealle ay) Aed 0} yoam Jad G3 JO spew sem juswabuelle sieak g 1o} o sylp3
ue pue passassodal uay) sem Auadoid ay] ‘||eioA0 Ayjigel) ual Buiobuo ay) 1eAod 0} ybnous jou alem Ing paAladal| uoljoe AIsAodal ON 07’68t v3 usanp Hnos
alom syuswAed yoiym Buinp GOz pue L00Z Usamiag awi Jo pouad Buo| e J8A0 paniode Junodde a8y} Uo siealie ay]
"S]S00 1IN0D PaleIooSSe R siealle sasudwod 1gep 8yl ‘'S00Z 1990100 - 0661 1snBny pouad ay) Joj sem Aoueus) ay]
-A1an0oa1 9210jUd JaBUO| OU UBD am SIeaA g 1SB| 8U} 10} PaSBYD Uda( JoU Sey 1gap 8y} SB pue GO0z 22UlS 1qap ay) sieak g 10}
J9A028. 0] udye] Usag sey uonoe AIaA0dal Jayliny ON "siealle Jo [9A8] YbBiy ay) 0] anp paloiAe SeM JueuUd) 8y 'S)S0D uonoE AISA00 ON 8Z' V€0‘C3 abpLisjon yinos
UN0D pajenosse R slealle sasudwod 1gap 8yl "G00z Aleniged - 666] JoqwanoN pouad ayy Joj sem Aoueusy ayl| -
—
‘A1an02a1 9210ud J8BUO| OU UBD am Ssieak N
9 1Se| 8y} Jo} paseyd usaq Jou Sey }gap dy} SeB pue GOOZ S2UIS 1qap 8y} JOA0DaI O} Udye) udaq Ssey uoloe AJaA0dal sieah g o} o
Jayuny oN -olignd apew 8q mou Jou pjnom Auuspl disy) os pue swwelbold uonosjold ssauym e ojul paoeld sem jueus}| uoioe Alenodal oN €c958¢3 obpuei0d 52%4
9y 'S}S0O 1N02 pajeldosse ¥ slealle sasldwod 1gep ayl 's00Z AINr - 1L00Z J2qo100 polad ay) Joj sem Aoueus) ay | %a
‘Alanooal 9210jus Jabuo| ou ued am sieah
9 1Sk| 8Y} IO} paseyd usaq 10U Ssey }gap ay} SY "'900Z 92UlS 1gap ay) JOA0DJaI 0} Uy e} usa( Sey uonoe AIoA02dal Jaylny sieok 9 1oy
ON ',J09||00 0] 8|geun, se pauinjal Ajuanbasgns sem Janamoy ‘9oQgz Alenuep ul paouswWWod uonoe AlaAaocdal 1gop UooE A19A0D8] ON 61°€8/°23 Reqay yinos
pue Auadoid ay) wlioj pajoIne alam sjueus) ay| ‘paddols sjysuaq uaym ‘00z Adenuer polad ayj woly pajeinwnooe|
1ey] S}S02 1IN0D pajeloosse ¥ siealie sasldwod 1gep 8yl 'S00zZ IMdy - 000z aunp pouad a8y Joj sem Aoueua) ay |
A1an0281 9210jUd JaBUO| OU UBD am SIBaA g ISB| 8U} IO} PASBYD Ua( Jou Sey 1gap a8y} SY "S00Z 2UIS 1gap a8y} JoA0dal
0] Ud¥e) Usaq Sey UOIoe Jayun) ou pue ,)09||00 0) 9|geun, paunjal sem Ing juabe Buioely e 0) passed sem 1gap ay | sieok 9 1oy
‘siealie ay) Buipiebal jueus) woly paAIadal Sem JOBlU0D ou pue uonoe [eba) Buimojoy Aledold syl wody pajoine sem Uonoe AI19A003) ON 65 €YST3 Aeqqy yinos
Jueusa) a8y ‘Aoueus)] snoiraid e WOl Siealie JUBUd) JSWL.IO) Se [|oMm Se Aoueus) ay) Jo pouad ay) JeAo pajeinwinooe jeyy|
S1S02 LINOD PaJeIdoSSe pue siealle sasudwod 1gap 8yl ‘6661 Joqualdag - 986 |dy pouad ay) Jo) sem Aoueus) ay |
25°509°C3 sjueua] juaiun)
"JJO US)lIM ©( 0} SI }gap 8y} 0s passed mou sey pouad wnlojeiow a8y ‘|lounod AlID 8yl 0} 25 'G09°23F PapNouUl yoiym A
‘PIdY Aay 1ey) sigep Buipueisino ayj jsuiebe JaplQ Jaloy 19eQ e Joj paljdde jueus) sy} 0L0Z Joquiada U "S}S09 LN0D 18P0 JeIsH19eq | 25509 23 obpusIod thnos
pue sieadle jual Buipuelsino sasudwod 1gap oy} pue ‘Juasald 0} 000z AIne pouad ayy Joy aAl usaqg sey Aoueus) ay |
399 19A023Y O] wea|
}JO-9}LIA\ 10} UOSEY uaye] uonoy junowy piep ealy

I XIAN3ddV

‘uay e} Uoljor pue Sased siealle [enplAIpU|




" 90e1]

0] 9|geun, se paulnial sem siy} Jonamoy Alanooal jgap Jo) Aousbe Buioes) e 0} Juas sem }gap a8yl 'S}S0O UNOO pue momhkwnwv U 1S vhre3 mwwm_m_._ yuoN
sJealse jual Buipuelsino sasudwod 1gap 8y} pue GOz Jequadaq - 00Z JoquaroN pouad ay) Joy sem Adoueus) a8yl } 0} eiqeun ™
",90Bl} 0] 9|qeUN, SB pauinjal sem siy} Janamoy Alanodal Jqap Joy Aouabe Buioel) e 0} Juas sem }gap 8y "S}S0D Jojgap . sabpaH o
HNOoo pue siealse jual Buipuelsino sasudwod }gap dy} pue gL0g aunr - $00Z 1990100 pouad ay} Joj sem Aoueus) ay|| aoeuy 0} 9|qeun L5°06E¢3 sbury| YHON
"1JO US)lIM 8q 0} SI }gap 8y} 0s passed mou sey pouad wnuojeiow ay | “Iouno) AID 8yl 0} 06°96%Z3F PEPNOUI Ydiym 18DIA 181N 100 v fanau o
‘PIdy Aay} jey) sigep Buipueisino ayy jsuiebe JaplQ o119y 1geQ e Joj paldde jueus) 8y} ZL0Z dunf u| "S}SO0J UN0J PO J9lI9d3a°a | 0696V ¢3 wv HHON
pue sieaile juals Buipuelsino sesudwod jgap ay) pue ‘gLog Alenuer - g0z 1snbny pouad a8y} Joj sem Aoueus)y ay]|
‘'sasuadxa |esaun) Aue 1aA09 0} Asuow ou pey pue zL0ogz ul Aeme passed jueus) juiol Jayjo ay| "Jo soBpay
usnLIM 84 0} SI 1gep 8y} 0s passed mou sey polad wnuojelow ay] ‘[1ouno AlID 8yl 01 Z€'62E 23 pepnioul yoiym ‘piay| J19pJ0 JolIdd 19ea | 2€62£C3 sBuny ULON
Kauyy 1By sygep Buipuelsino ay) jsuiebe JapiQ joldy 199 e Joy paidde sjueus) 8y} Jo BUO | |0g Jaquiadaq U] "S}S09 '
HNoo pue sleale jual Buipuelsino sesudwod jgap ayy pue ‘Loz AINr - #00Z Ainp pouad ay) Joj sem Aoueus) ay|
", 80BJ} 0} 9|qBeUN, SB pauIn}al sem S|y} Jaremoy A1anodal 1gap 1o} Aousbe Buioel) e 0} Juas Sem 9SED ay} pasea|al 8duQ
'€10Z AJea ul 10y Y)jeaH |elua|\ 8y) Jepun pauoljoas Sem jueus) sy} uosiud woly aseajal uQ "papua Apuanbasgns siyy Jo1qep L fanau o
INg JUNOJ2E BY} UO paniode siealie a8y} Jes|d 0} apew sem juswabuelle ue pue aouajusas uosid e Buiaies aiem Asy)| ooeuy 0} 9|qeun leleecs v HHON
se Auadoud sy} uo ad1j0u BAIB 0) paploap Jueud) 8yl ‘600 isnbny - €00z leqwadseq pouad ay) o) sem Aoueus) ay |
‘paysneyxa N
. pajsneyx3 e N
AjAnoe, se pauinial sem Siy) Janamoy Alanogal 1gap Joj Aousbe Buioely e 0} Juas uay) Sem ased 9y "Slealle jual KIOAGDD ov9LL‘Z3 Anqly cto&
JO 19A8] ybiy 8y} 0} anp pajoIne Sem Jueud) 8yl ‘ZL0gZ J9qWaAoN - 010z Jequeidag pouad ay) Joy sem Aoueus) ay| d o))
[
210z Jaqwiada papus Asueusa] “uos 10BjU09 0} JaoIlQ BuisnoH Aq apew sydwaye |esanag “abebuas o} uos Buyeb al
SaI}Nop pey Jaoo mc_.wso_._ ‘suoidQ BuisnoH 0} o6 0} pasiape uog “Aoueua) paadans 0} d|ge JON "1ayjow Jo yieap posesseq ueus) | ovozzvs |uobuwdwnig | wnos
Jaye Auadoid ul Ya| UOS "paAIedal SeM d}eJIIBD Uleap ou JaAamoy Jiauaq Buisnoy |iny uo aiem Asy) se 10z YoJen
ul Aeeme passed jueus} 8y} Usym Jes[O SeM Jun0dJe Y] “Z10g Jequedaq - 986} |dy pouad 8y} Joj sem Adueus) ay |
"BolBWY
0} paAow pue pied usalb e paulelqo Ajsnoinaid pey jueus] “zL0z AINr ul passassodal sem Aoueus) ay} [un paniooe J0)g9p o
£ . 90'6YY €3 abpusjod uinos
[Ipeals siealle pue |0z Jaqualdag ul sem Junodoe Jual 8y} UO paAledal juswAed ise| ay] ‘JuswAediano jeuaq| eoed) 0} 9|qeun
Buisnoy pue s}soo LN09 ‘slealle Jual sasudwod 1gap 8yl "ZLozZ AINr - €661 JoquanoN pouad ayj Jo) sem Aoueus) ay |
‘papusa sem Aoueus) ay} pue jueus)
ay} Aq uaAIb Ajjeuly sem 82110N “JuaJ 8y} J8A0D 0} ybnous jJou aiam g Ajjeniul paAladal alem sjuswAed 10alip sieally peoige S
. ) 18CEE €3 abpusjod yinog
peoliqge Buianow jueus) ay} o} anp paddols jouaq Buisnoy Jsye aniode 0] pauels siealdle 8y "S}s0d uonounfu] ggy| PeAOW jueus |
pue sieaule jual Buipuelsino sasudwod 1gap 8y} pue ‘gL0g dunr 0} $00Z Jequadaq pouad ay) Joj sem Aoueus) ay|
"1JO US)lIM
aq 0} sI }gop 8y} os passed mou sey pouad wnioelow Japlo Jaljal 1gap 8yl [1ounod AND 8yl 0} 8G°GGL‘CF papn|oul e A
yoiym ‘piay Aay} ey sigep Buipuelsino ayj jsuiebe JaplQ Jjoley 1gaq e Joj paldde jueus) ayy z|0z Aleniga4 U| "S}sod 1opI0 Joled 1990 [ 857551 €3 °dav thnos
HNOoo pue siealie jual Buipueisino sasudwod }gap 8y} pue ‘€10z YoJep 01 900z |1Mdy pouad ay) Joj sem Aoueus) ay |
399 191023y O] wea)
HO-9)LIAA 10} UOSEdY uaye] uonoy jJunowy pJiem ealy

I XIAN3ddV

‘uay e} Uoljor pue Sased siealle [enplAIpU|




Page 23

18°610°LS3 ejol [[etdAQ
6 VLY'VS3 Sjueua] Jawio4
"9]B]SS 89U} Ul S8IUOW IO p|ay aJe S|ielop Uiy Jo 1xau oN "uoslid woly pases|al Buieq Jaye uoos Aeme passed usy) JUeUS) sobbo
8y "eousjuss [eIpo}sno e BulAles is|iym JuswAed uou Joj pajoine sem jueus) ay) alioyaq juswAediano Jyeusg Buisnoy| pesesosqiueus] | 5006123 wmm_ H YUON
pue S}S00 1NO0D ‘siealie JUBUS) Jowlioy sasdwoo 1gep 8yl ‘6002 IUdy - GoOZ aunr poluad 8y} Joj sem Aoueus) ay| ™
", 90BJ) 0} 9|qeun, Se pauin}al sem siy} JaAemoy Aianooal Jqap 1o) Aousbe Buioel) e 0) Juss sem jgap 8y "S}S00 Joygep - sobpaH o
1NoD pue sieadle juas Bulpuelsino sesudwod 1g8p a8yl pue 200z Mdy - 500z Alenuer pouad ay) oy sem Aoueus) sy | eoes 0} sjgeun ve'v6e ¢3 sBury UHON
1q2Q 19A029Yy O] wea|
1JO-3JLIA\ 10} uoseay uaye] uonoy jJunowy piep ealy

I XIAN3ddV

‘uay e} Uoljor pue Sased siealle [enplAIpU|




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 24



Agenda Iltem 8

‘ i : .

IL“‘ Cambridge City Council Item
Q&
To: Kevin Price: Executive Councillor for Housing
Report by: Robert Hollingsworth, Head of City Homes.
Relevant scrutiny Housing 1/7/2014
committee: Scrutiny

Committee

Wards affected: All Wards

Leasehold Services Update
Key Decision

1. Executive summary

1.1 The last major review of Leasehold Services took place in 2007
when there were 1,041 leaseholders who had either purchased under
the Right to Buy, or were successive purchasers from the original RTB
leaseholder. At that time, 25% of leaseholders did not live in their
property but sublet them. The number of leaseholders has now
increased to 1,107 (just over 13% of the overall council stock). Of
these, 44% now sublet the property and are Landlords themselves.

1.2 As well as Leasehold Services, the Leasehold team also
manage the Right to Buy and Shared Ownership. There has been a
significant increase in the workload of the team, both in terms of
leaseholders and the increase in Right to Buy activity. New building
developments, with plans for an increase in shared ownership and
complicated management arrangements involving freehold properties,
will also impact on the team.

1.3 Staffing of the team has remained consistent since 2007 with 2.5
full time equivalent staff, despite the increases in RTB, Shared
Ownership and leasehold activity. Similar authorities with comparable
stock numbers have an average team size of 3.5. A review of staffing
is to be undertaken during 2014/2015 to ensure appropriate numbers
of staff to meet the increasing demands on the service.

2. Recommendations

The Executive Councillor is recommended:

2.1 To instruct officers to review the level of staff resources in

Report Page No: 1 Page 25



the Leasehold Team.

2.2

2.3

2.4

To instruct officers to set up a working group to progress the
action plan as outlined in appendix 2.

To instruct officers to report back on progress of the
working group in 2015.

To instruct officers to review the Building Insurance
covered in 7.1 of appendix 1.

3. Background

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

Right to Buy: With the increase in the discount to which RTB
applicants are eligible to £75,000 from 1% April 2012, Right to
Buy applications have increased three-fold over the past year,
and the numbers of completions have increased from 11 in
2011/2012 to 60 in 2013/2014.

Management Charge: The Management charge comprises the
costs and associated overheads in the provision of staff to
manage the Leasehold Service to leaseholders. From April 2008,
the Council have charged leaseholders the actual cost of
administering the leasehold service. In 2008, the Management
Charge was calculated at £142.40. The cost of the service per
leaseholder in 2012/2013 was £143.02 (see Appendix 2).

Service charges: Since 2007, there has only been one
challenge at a Leasehold Valuation Tribunal in respect of the
“reasonableness and payability” of our service charges. The LVT
decision was that the charges are reasonable and payable,
particularly in comparison to the private sector — where average
management costs would be £200 — 250 per unit. The tribunal
felt that leaseholders benefited from in-house resources being
provided at ‘cost’ rather than having a profit element attached to
them.

Repairs and Maintenance: The responsibility for repairs to the
structure and exterior communal areas of the block are set out in
each Lease, and require the Council as Landlord to keep the
property in good repair and condition. The Estates and Facilities
Section perform this function for Cambridge City Council.
Following a restructure the Estates and Facilities team have
transferred to the Customer and Community Services
Department and the Director is recruiting a new Head of Service.

Report Page No: 2 Page 20



3.5

3.6

3.7

This arrangement should improve the communication between
the two teams.

Day to day repairs: Leaseholders have been raising issues
regarding the day to day communal repairs of the blocks through
the Leaseholder Consultation Forum, which include the
reporting, notification of completion and invoicing of communal
day to day repairs. It is proposed that a working group be set up
to include leaseholders, tenants and officers to review
Communal Repairs. An action plan is proposed in Appendix 3.

Section 20 Major Works: The Commonhold and Leasehold
Reform Act 2002 requires that a leaseholder must be consulted
before the landlord carries out works above a certain amount
(£250.00) or enters into a long term agreement for the provision
of services. The Asset Management Plan currently does not
provide a rolling 5-year programme of work that can be
communicated to current or future leaseholders, and
leaseholders only find out about the work once a Section 20
Notice is served. Whilst the Council wants the maximum
flexibility in the programme of work, to allow changes to any
investment priorities, — this does mean that programmes of work
cannot be communicated to leaseholders. It is proposed to
publish a 5 -year rolling Capital Programme that can be
effectively communicated to leaseholders for works that will
commence April 2015/2016.

Resident Involvement: The Leaseholder Consultation Forum is
currently held three times per year, at different locations around
the City. In the Annual Report to Tenants and Leaseholders in
Open Door Summer 2013, leaseholder satisfaction was reported
at a low 30% satisfied with the value for money of service
charges, without any explanation of how this figure was arrived
at. The STAR survey in 2014/2015 will try to capture why
satisfaction is so low, and results will be fed-back through the
Leaseholder Consultation Forum.

4. Implications

(@)

Financial Implications
There are no direct financial implications of this report. Any
financial implications resulting from the review of staffing will
be considered as part of the HRA Mid-Year Financial Review
process for 2014/15 or HRA Budget Setting Report for
2015/16.

Report Page No: 3 Page 27



(b) Staffing Implications
There are no direct staffing implications identified as a
consequence of this report. However the staffing resources will
be reviewed.

(c) Equality and Poverty Implications
There are no direct equality or poverty implications of this
report. However, outcomes of the working group may lead to
changes in charges to residents, including leaseholders, and this
will be subject to an Equality and Poverty implication
assessment.

(d) Environmental Implications
There are no direct environmental implications of this
report.
(e) Consultation and Communication Implications
The annual STAR survey of tenants and leaseholders will
be carried out in the summer of 2014.

() Community safety
There are no community safety implications.

5. Background papers

There are no background papers to this report.
6. Appendices
Appendix 1 — Leasehold Service Update
Appendix 2 — Management Charge Calculation 2012 / 2013
Appendix 3 — Action Plan

7. Inspection of papers

To inspect the background papers or if you have a query on the report
please contact:

Author’s Name: Andrew Latchem
Author’'s Phone Number: 01223 - 458402
Author’s Email: Andrew.latchem@cambridge.gov.uk

Report Page No: 4 Page 28



Appendix 1

LEASEHOLD SERVICE UPDATE
1.0Background

1.1 The last major review of Leasehold Services took place in 2007
when there were 1,041 leaseholders who had either purchased under
the Right to Buy, or were successive purchasers from the original RTB
leaseholder. At that time, 25% of leaseholders did not live in their
property but sublet them.

1.2 The number of leaseholder has now increased to 1,107
leaseholders (just over 13% of the overall council stock). Of these,
44% now sublet the property and are Landlords themselves.

1.3 As well as Leasehold Services, the team also manage Right to
Buy and Shared Ownership.

1.4 There has been a significant increase in the workload of the team,
both in terms of leaseholders and the increase in Right to Buy activity.
New building developments, with plans for an increase in shared
ownership and complicated management arrangements involving
freehold properties, will also impact on the team.

1.4 Staffing of the team has remained consistent since 2007 with 2.5
full time equivalent staff, despite the increases in RTB, Shared
Ownership and leasehold activity. Similar authorities with comparable
stock numbers have an average team size of 3.5. A review of staffing
is to be undertaken during 2014/2015 to ensure appropriate numbers
of staff to meet the increasing demands on the service.

2.0 Right to Buy

2.1 With the increase in the discount paid to RTB applicants of £75,
000 from 1% April 2012, Right to Buy applications have increased
three-fold over the past year, and the numbers of completions are as
follows:

Year Number sold | No of which were Flats
2011-2012 | 11 5
2012-2013 | 41 18
2013-2014 | 60 29

Report Page No: 5 Page 29



2.2 The Department for Communities and Local Government
announced on 3 January 2014 further steps to ensure eligible tenants
are able to realise their home ownership aspirations, which include:
e Plans to reduce the number of years a tenant has to have a
secure tenancy from 5 to 3 years;
e Plans to increase the maximum percentage discount for houses
from 60% to 70%;
e Plans to increase the maximum cash caps in line with the
Consumer Price Index rise in inflation;
e Introduction of Right to Buy Agents, to help buyers complete
their home purchase with a £100m fund to improve access to
mortgage finance.

3.0 Management Charge

3.1 The Management charge comprises the costs and associated
overheads in the provision of staff to manage the Leasehold Service to
leaseholders. It includes the full cost of the leasehold team and a
proportion of other staff supporting the Leasehold service as well as
associated overheads, such as IT and office running costs.
Management of the services to the blocks and on estates is managed
through the Housing Officers at City Homes North and City Homes
South.

3.2 From April 2008, the Council have charged leaseholders the actual
cost of administering the leasehold service. In 2008, the Management
Charge was calculated at £142.40. The cost of the service per
leaseholder in 2012/2013 was £143.02 (see Appendix 2). The very low
increase in costs has been achieved by managing the quality of the
service, but at the same time delivering efficiencies.

3.3 Since 2007, there has only been one challenge at a Leasehold
Valuation Tribunal in respect of the reasonableness and payability of
service charges. The LVT decision was that the charges are
reasonable and payable, particularly in comparison to the private
sector — where average management costs would be £200 — 250 per
unit. The tribunal felt that leaseholders benefited from in-house
resources being provided at ‘cost’ rather than having a profit element
attached to them.

4.0 Service charges
4.1 The annual service charge debit is now more than £400,000 per

annum — with an average annual service charge of £360 per
leaseholder. This remains very competitive, as an average service

Report Page No: 6 Page 30



charge in the private sector would be of £1, 000 per annum or more.
The collection rate remains high, at over 97% successfully collected.
The Council have never had to forfeit a Lease for non-payment of
service charges. Repossessions by mortgage companies of leasehold
properties have averaged two per year for the last four years.

4.2 Leaseholders contribute to services to the block in which the flat is
situate, and these can vary from one block to another and one estate
to another. Generally, they will include:

Caretaking Services | The caretakers are directly employed by Cambridge City
Council, and cover a total of 956 properties. The cleaning
element is currently subject to the Building Cleaning
Procurement.

Communal cleaning | Communal cleaning is currently undertaken by our Direct
Works team. In May 2013 the Council wrote to
leaseholders regarding the tender of the Building Cleaning
contract, and its procurement.

Window cleaning Window cleaning is currently undertaken by our outside
contractors Advanced Cleaning Services. In future, this
service will be provided as part of the Building Cleaning

Procurement.
Lift services We have lifts in our larger blocks at Hanover and Princess
Courts, and Kingsway.
Grounds Grounds maintenance is currently undertaken by our Direct
Maintenance Works Team.

Communal electricity | This is the cost of providing electricity for communal
lighting to the blocks. The Council have, with our
suppliers, installed Smart Meters to all of our communal
areas, which ensures prices are based on actual rather
than estimated costs.

Door entry services | The cost of maintaining and repairing door entry systems
across 30 estates. Residents will shortly be consulted on
new door entry systems to Kingsway, where residents

have expressed a wish for a more secure entrance to the

blocks.
Repairs and Leaseholders pay an estimated charge of £70.00 per year,
Maintenance which is then adjusted in September the following year to

the actual cost of day to day repairs to the block.

5.0 Repairs and Maintenance

5.1 The responsibility for repairs to the structure and exterior
communal areas of the block are set out in each Lease, and require
the Council as Landlord to keep the property in good repair and
condition. The Estates and Facilities Section perform this function for
Cambridge City Council.

5.2 Leaseholders are required to pay a reasonable proportion of
repairs costs to the block in which their flat is situated. In a block of 4

Report Page No: 7 Page 31




flats, a leaseholder would pay a quarter contribution to the costs. This
is important, as if a block was entirely occupied by leaseholders, the
full costs of maintenance and repair in any year would be fully
rechargeable.

Day to day Repairs

5.3 The Repairs Improvement Plan of day to day repairs has so far
been limited to improvements in the day to day service to tenants.

5.4 Leaseholders have been raising issues regarding the day to day
communal repairs of the blocks through the Leaseholder Consultation
Forum, which include the reporting, notification of completion and
invoicing of communal day to day repairs. For example, a repair
reported in June 2013 would not be seen by the leaseholder as a
charge until the Actual Statements in September 2014, some 18
months later.

5.5 It is proposed that a working group be set up to include
leaseholders, tenants and officers to review Communal Repairs. An
action plan is proposed in Appendix 3. The Working Group to report
back to Housing Management Board in 2015 on the progress of these
issues.

Section 20 Major Works

5.6 The Commonhold and Leasehold Reform Act 2002 requires that a
leaseholder must be consulted before the landlord carries out works
above a certain amount (£250.00) or enters into a long term
agreement for the provision of services.

5.7 Following the delivery of the Decent Homes programme, which
mainly concentrated on the inside of tenants homes (kitchens,
bathrooms, electrics and re-roofing), and the implementation of
housing self-financing 2012 there is now a greater emphasis on
investment on the outside of homes and in communal areas.

5.8 Work to the communal areas of blocks is rechargeable to
leaseholders under the Repairs and Maintenance, Schedule 3, of the
Lease. There has been a significant increase in the service of Section
20 Notices to leaseholders, from a value of £100,000 in 2011/2012 to
over £400, 000 in 2013/2014. At a time of financial pressure on
individual households, Leaseholders are being asked to find significant
funds for work which the Council have prioritised as essential for
investment in our stock, including Fire Risk Assessment works and
Housing Health & Safety Rating System works.

Report Page No: 8 Page 32



5.9 The Asset Management Plan currently does not provide a rolling 5-
year programme of work that can be communicated to current or
future leaseholders, and leaseholders only find out about the work
once a Section 20 Notice is served. Whilst the Council wants the
maximum flexibility in the programme of work, to allow changes to any
investment priorities — this does mean that programmes of work
cannot be communicated to leaseholders. It is proposed to publish a 5
— year rolling Capital programme that can be effectively communicated
to leaseholders for works that will commence April 2015/2016.

5.10 In delivering these Capital Programmes, the Council should
consider value for money for both the Council and the leaseholders.

5.11 The Department of Communities and Local Government have
recently consulted on protecting leaseholders from un-reasonable
charges; and have proposed a cap of £10,000 on leasehold works
within any 5 year-period. Whilst Cambridge is self-financing and is not
subject to any repairs grant that would cap works, it is suggested that
thought needs to be given to scheduling work so as not to excessively
burden any one leaseholder.

6.0 Resident Involvement

6.1 The Leaseholder Consultation Forum is currently held three times
per year, at different locations around the City. More recently,
additional meeting have been held to give leaseholders the opportunity
to discuss proposals for Major Works in their area, and this early
engagement with leaseholders on works should be proactively carried
out by Estates and Facilities as part of their project management role.

6.2 Leasehold review meetings have been instigated by City Homes to
look proactively at cross-departmental issues affecting leaseholders.

6.3 In the Annual Report to Tenants and Leaseholders in Open Door
Summer 2013, leaseholder satisfaction was reported at a low 30%
satisfied with the value for money of service charges, without any
explanation of how this figure was arrived at. The STAR survey in
2014/2015 will try to capture why satisfaction is so low, and results will
be fed-back through the Leaseholder Consultation Forum.

7.0 Leaseholders Insurance

7.1 The City Council insure all our buildings under a block policy with
Zurich Municipal, and charge the leaseholders an annual flat fee

Report Page No: 9 Page 33



(currently £43.97 per property) for Buildings Insurance. Our Buildings
Insurance currently only covers Public Liability for the communal areas
of the block. We are looking with our Insurers at a more tailor-made
policy for leaseholders — that separates out the leasehold flats from
the rented council houses and flats.

Report Page No: 10 Page 34



Appendix 2

Management Charge Calculation 2012 — 2013

The management charge is calculated by dividing the cost of the
service by the number of leaseholders — last year the average number
of leasehold properties was 1,085.

The estimated charge for 2012/2013 was notified as £145.30, and the
actual cost of the service was £143.02.

Full Cost
£

Leasehold Team Staff Costs 52.12
Leasehold Team Office Resources 7.20
Leasehold Team Income Generated from Fees
e.g. sales enquiries, sublet registration -5.30
City Homes Management and Administrative Costs, including : 8.68
housing management, contract monitoring (cleaning, grounds
maintenance), repairs processing, surveying
Finance and IT Support and System Costs 5.05
Legal Advice and Support 9.77
Share of Corporate and Departmental Overheads and
Business Running Costs, including : Premises, Utilities,
Customer Service Centre, Cashiers, Human Resources, Audit,
IT Infrastructure / Hardware 65.50
2012/13 Actual Management Charge £143.02

Report Page No: 11 Page 35



Appendix 3

Proposed Action Plan — Communal Repairs Working Group

Action Completion Interim Head of
date Service / Lead
Officer
1. Reporting of Communal Repairs Dec - 2014 | Robert
The Repairs Improvement Plan of Hollingsworth /
day to day repairs has so far been Andrew Latchem
limited to improvements in the day to
day service to tenants.
2. Notification to leaseholders of Dec - 2014 | Robert
completion of works Hollingsworth /
Andrew Latchem
3. Advising leaseholders of the Dec - 2014 | Robert
individual costs of communal repairs Hollingsworth /
Andrew Latchem
4. Production of a 5-year rolling Capital March - 2015 | Alan Carter /
Works Programme to be Will Barfield
communicated to leaseholders and
tenants for 2015/2016
5. Ensuring all Projects meet best value March — 2014 | Alan Carter /
for money to both the authority and Implemented Will Barfield
the leaseholder. and ongoing
6. Consider the scheduling of works so April — 2014 | Alan Carter /
as not to excessively burden any one | Implemented Will Barfield
leaseholder with excessive charges and ongoing
in any 5 year period.
7. Proactively engage with leaseholders April — 2014 | Alan Carter /
on Major Works, where a choice of Implemented Will Barfield

options is available.

and ongoing

Report Page No: 12

Page 36




Agenda Iltem 9

,Lb\. Cambridge City Council Iltem
B
To: Executive Councillor for Housing:

Councillor Kevin Price

Report by: Liz Bisset
Relevant scrutiny Housing Scrutiny Committee 1/7/2014
committee:
Wards affected: All wards containing Council housing

RESIDENT INVOLVEMENT UPDATE
Not a Key Decision

1. Executive summary
An annual Resident Involvement update, focusing on:

Volunteer recruitment

Digital inclusion

Complaints resolution

HSC Tenant and Leaseholder representatives allowances

2. Recommendations
The Executive Councillor is recommended:

2.1 To approve the on-going focus of resident involvement on volunteer
recruitment, digital inclusion and complaints resolution.

2.2 To approve the increase of the HSC Tenant & Leaseholder
representative allowances.

3. Background
3.1 Volunteer Recruitment

3.1.1 Cambridge City Council has a long tradition of involving tenants and
leaseholders in the management and scrutiny of their housing service.

3.1.2 The reduction in top-down regulation from central government has put
a greater emphasis on social landlords regulating themselves. This kind of
regulation only works if council tenants and leaseholders are invited to be
part of that system. This opportunity is offered through three specific areas:

Report Page No: 1 Page 37



° Making Big Decisions
° Quality of the Home
° Estate & Community

3.1.3 The various groups, panels and roles are outlined in the leaflet ‘3 Easy
Ways To Have Your Say’ (appendix 1).

3.1.4 In order for these platforms to continue to be effective, they need new
volunteers. This is why the current focus of Resident Involvement is on
outreach work to recruit and train newly involved tenants and leaseholders.

3.2: Digital Inclusion

3.2.1 The internet is now one of the preferred ways for people to engage
with their public services, local community and local democracy. But of the
20% (approx.) of UK households without internet access, around half live in
social housing. For many this is due to a combination of cost and lack of
training.

3.2.2 Cambridge City Council have linked with a number of specialist
charities to trial the ‘Get Online’ computer/internet loan scheme for those
tenants and leaseholders who are unable to connect through their own
means. See the leaflet ‘Want to Get Online - It's Easy As 1,2,3’ (appendix 2)
for more detail.

3.2.3 The success of the pilot scheme is covered in ‘Get Online - Pilot
Scheme Report’ (appendix 3)

3.3 Complaints Resolution

3.3.1 To make it more likely that complaints about housing are sorted out
locally, and to involve more local people and politicians in this process, the
Government has introduced the role of ‘designated persons’. A designated
person can be an MP, a local Councillor, or a Tenant Panel. Tenant Panels
must be ‘recognised’ by the landlord.

3.3.2 If a tenant (or leaseholder) remains unsatisfied with the outcome of a
complaint at the conclusion of the landlord’s complaints process, they may
submit their complaint to a councillor, an MP, or a Tenant Panel.

3.3.3 Cambridge City Council is currently exploring a model for a local

tenant complaint panel. A report on this will be coming to HSC for
discussion in the Autumn.

Report Page No: 2 Page 38



3.4 Tenant and Leaseholder Representatives allowances

3.41 HSC Tenant and Leaseholder representatives have traditionally
received 6-monthly allowances for their time. These amounts were set over
10 years ago and have never been reviewed or increased - even for
inflation.

3.42 It is recommended that the HSC Tenant and Leaseholder
representative allowances be increased by 10% annually, for the next 4
years:

Current July 2014 April 2015 April 2016 April 2017
A £400 £440 £484 £532 £585
B £200 £220 £242 £266 £292
C £100 £110 £121 £133 £146

3.4.3 From 2018 onwards, it is recommended that these amounts be
reviewed annually.

4. Implications

(a) Financial Implications — All work detailed above is covered within the
existing Resident Involvement budget

(b) Staffing Implications - This work is part of the routine duties of
existing staff.

(c) Equality and Poverty Implications - Advances equal opportunities
by granting internet access to the unemployed, elderly and disabled

(d) Environmental Implications - Nil

(e) Procurement - Nil

(f) Consultation and communication — All tenants and leaseholders
were consulted on whether they wanted a tenant complaints panel (via

Open Door magazine).

() Community Safety - Nil
5. Background papers

These background papers were used in the preparation of this report:
6. Appendices

Appendix 1 - 3 Easy Ways To Have Your Say

Report Page No: 3 Page 39




Appendix 2 - Want to Get Online? It's Easy As 1,2,3
Appendix 3 - Get Online - Pilot Scheme Report

7. Inspection of papers

To inspect the background papers or if you have a query on the report
please contact:

Author’'s Name: James Bull
Author’'s Phone Number: 01223 - 458323
Author’s Email: james.bull@cambridge.gov.uk

Report Page No: 4 Page 40



TIONNOD ALID
19alawWyYd

JUDWISA|OAUI-IUIPISD
N'A0Z 33PIIqUIBD MMM

J291UN|OA
J9p|oyases| Jo Jueua) e se
Alunwwiod unoA anouduwl
pue aoualiadxa ulesd ‘uiea

Aunwwo)
3 91€153 ANOA °E
9WOH

,/¢\ ANOA JO ANjend ‘¢
E suoisiNag

@® Sigayl Sunjen 'L

*Aes 1noA
9Aey 0}
shem Ased ¢

Sd/ 19D 28puque)
peoy uoiuiH A1Jayd 68
YInos sawoH AyD
JUSWIBAJOAU| JUBPISDY
SSaIPPY

JUSWISA|OAUI-IUSPIS
/N"A0S 28pLIqUIRY MMM
qsm

3N"A08"38p1IqUIBI ®IUSWSA|OAUI-IUSPISA
ltewy

€2e8sr €¢CLO
auoyd

joejuo)

‘ledpiunip [19sU0)

np uondadal e B JISPURWISP 3] JIUBA Z3||INSA
‘9)1429 UoINpPEJ} dUN,P No 9134dJdur UNn,p
ul0Saq zaAe snoa aujzedew 33 aJi| nod IS

S B
I — ) T) AR R R Dl
TN M 3mSR O B ) 2

znunina$eq aulliq uepJiejuoAisdasay ueseq
aulIRIS| AF UsjIN| ‘ZIUBSIOANS! JUISBW|IPS
3WIN2J3) YeJe|0 ZIS1242N UIURWNYOp NQ
ekan esieA ziuneAnyl euewndual Jiq 1983

‘YaAmoruexzsaiw

meuds op 1hdadras [sujomop m Jisosdod
9zs0.d ‘nyuswinyop 0893 aluszoewnp
aulerdzaq pewAzno Agiapyd gn|
ezoewny) omisued elngazaod 1saf

" 2)e|sued] 9|800D, paxiew

u01INQg aYy) 3sn pue 3n'Ao8a3priquied

MMM JISIA 3SN[*U03ING B JO 3DI[2 3y} Je
J|9sanoK Joy sagen3ue| 1sow ojul saded gam
S,]IDUN0D) 3Y3 JO 3SOW 3)B[SULJI MOU UBD NOA

‘uondaday |puno)

Aue 1e aJinbua asea|d ‘paile|suely JusWINIOP
SIY3 1] P|NOM JO 193124dJ931Ul UB Pasu NoA 4|

uonejsue.]

2

BUSINESS REPLY SERVICE

Licence No. CB29/1

Resident Involvement

City Homes South
89 Cherry Hinton Road

Cambridge

CB17BS
Page 41

> %

a4~
CAMBRIDGE
CITY COUNCIL



IlBW3 ] 1504 ] :pa1oeILod "JE9JJA0 S|IeIap 1283U0D 9Y3 3sn Jo 13sodaauy Ag 3y31d ay3 uo dijs JJ0-1eal ay) uiniay ‘|lews Jo isod
99 03 43424d pnof moy sn 123 35e3|d Aq ||e - suonadwod pue sAaAins ‘sajepdn sA1933. ||,n0A sueaw diysiaquiajy “1apjoyasea]
J9pjoyases)| 10 Jueudl paAjoAaul ue se dn 3uiudis Ag Aes unoA aneH ¢dnou3 e uiol 03 sawn ayl aAey ,uoq

J0 JUeUD) PaAjOAU Ue se dn usis _H_
01 31| p,NOA 1 XOq SIY1 213 9se3|d

(MAunwwod
[lews ‘'syuswanoiduwi 3198 03 Suid|ay pue siel) 40 X20|q Jo 91e1Se ‘pooyinoqysisu anoA o} syuswanoldu o] pue
. 118y3 Sunuasaidal - 1PUNOD ay) 10} $12P3U0D |BJO] Sk 1oe suoldiiey) 190115 s)nsaJ |eal 99s 01 Juem nof oq
suoyd 'S91L1S3 S,A112 9yl punoJe sadeds >H_ unwuwi OU
U333 0} SUOP XJOM ddUBUUIRW SPUNOJIS 3y Jo Aljenb ayy 1593 sio1dadsu| usaln uw @Hmﬂmm A =O> .m
;wayl Yylm 083 Jeyl SadIAJSS

SSaJppyY '9944 papinoad si Sutuied ) oL Uil 4 '

ay3 pue sawoy |1puno) jo Aijenb
9y 1n0ge aJed nok 2

c 9WOH Anc A
A\ Jo Aend 2

'S9dUaRdX? JI3y3 In0ge Y2eqpasy apiaodd usyl - suopdadad SUnISIA Jo S|lew
Suipuas ‘s|jes sauoyd Supjew Aq 921A13s Jo Aljenb syl aunseaw siaddoys AIs1sA

awenN

‘papinold si Sujulesy A1essadau ||y "Sawoy |1DUnod
suoidwey) 19935 [ 0] SUOP XJOM SdUeUSIUIEW puk Ssiledad Jo Aljenb ay) 1591 su012adsu| JuspIsay

sJo1dadsu| usain

ssaddoys AmsAn O (SJ9p|OYaSes| pue Ssjueua)

sJ0312adsu| Juapisay [ ‘anoadwl [1PUNOD aY) dyew 03 Jamod ay3 aney Asy3 3ySid J,uale s3UIY) §| 'SIIIAIRS 104 |eap Jiey e Suag pue sanssi

jueq uone|nSsy SuISnoH O Suisnoy jo pJepuels ay3 adus|jeyd Apuapuadapul |sued uonengay SuisnoH w_o_>>-b_u Ul pa3salalul noA a.y

pJeog JuswaSeuey SuIsNoH O “apIM-A11D SI3P|OYISEI| PUE SIUBLS) 1239J48 1B SUOISIIAP E suoisIdag m_m
:UO UOIBWILIOJUI 910W W PUIS 95e3|d 31g ay3 [|e uo sJ0|j1PUNO) apIsSuo|e 310A A3y "pJeog SUISNOH S,|IDUNOD Y3 UO 1IS 0} sige J

sJeak {7 A1ana pa1d9|a ‘Jap|oyases| | pue Slueual g ale pieog uawadeue|y SuisnoH . W—._._. MC_V_ m_>_ ° F

cwiayl ulolyou AYypa “»20|g Jo 21e1ss 199.43s JIayl anoiduwil 01 Suidjay
:01 08 4o 1s0daau4 Ag 11 uinau pue |eap Jiej e U8 ‘suoisiap 31q 3upjew ApeaJje aJe SI9p|oyasea| pue Syueudl J93Iun|joA
pue di|s siy1 Ino |1y Isnf

raro 1m s o1 *Kes anoA aney o3 sAem Ased ¢



TIONN0D ALID
39d1IdaWY)

Y 4

X auljuo
pasiuape Ajuo ale jey}

sqol Joj yoseas noA djpH
s|enuassa

J3Y}0 pue pooj uo Asuow noA anes .
sbuiuies

[eiuajod 4noA 0} 9,01 0} dn ppy
S|ll9 pjoyssnoy

uo Jeah e 0013 01 dn noA aneg .

:pInoo auljuo bumeb
pue s|[iys Jayndwoo InoA Buisealou|

Buiuies) swos }a0) ¢
sauljuo }99 ¢
J9}ndwion e 390 °|

e‘Z‘L se Ased
Sl ¢dUljuo
396 0} Juepn

S/Ie}ap J0oJ apISsul 3007
JeaA e 1o} 994} - mou
J93ndwod 1noAk wie|)

Sd/ 19D 98puqued
peoy uolulH Aay) 68
Ynos sawoH Ayd
JUSWSA|OAU| JUSPISaY
SS2IppY

3N°A03 a8pLiquied

©@IUBWIA|OAUI-JUSPISAU
jlews

€2e89r €¢clo
auoyd

1o2e3U0)

‘ledidiunip [19sU0D
np uoindadaJ e| e JapUBWP 3| JIUIA Z3|[INSA
‘911129 UonINpPeJ) dun,p no a3aiduaiul un,p
u10Sa( ZaAR SNOA JUSWNJ0P 32 aJi| Jnod IS

S B A
16f— ) H) A B2 N EREE G D
7 N 3 N O R O () 2L

‘znununa$eq aullig uepJejuoAisdasay uexeq
BUIB|S| A USJIN| ‘ZIUBSIOANS IUISSW|IPS
SWIN2J31 YeJe[o Z|S1242n Uluewnyop nq
eAaA esJeA ziudeAlyl euewndial Jiq 1983

‘yoAmolueyzsaiw

meuds op 1[bdadau [eujomop m Jisoadod
9zso.d ‘nmuswinyop 0891 aluszoewng
auletdzaq JewAzayo Aqi@1ayd gn|
ezoewng omisued elngaziod ijsaf

" 91e|suel] 9|800D), payJew

uo3INg Y3 3sh pue }n'A03-a8pliquied

‘MMM 3ISIA 3SN[ 'U0ING B JO X212 3y3 3e
J|9s4noA Joj sa8en3ue| 3sow oiul saded gam
S,|I2UN0) 3Y3 JO ISOW 3)B|SUBI} MOU UBD NOA

‘uondaday |pPuUNo)
Aue 1e aJinbus asea|d ‘paiejsuely JUsWNIOP
SIY3 1] PINOM J0 J3334dJa1ul ue pasu nok j|

uonjejsuea]

2

Resident Involvement
City Homes South
89 Cherry Hinton Road
Cambridge
CB17BS

Page 43

BUSINESS REPLY SERVICE
Licence No. CB29/1

CAMBRIDGE
CITY COUNCIL



| rews

| 4equinN suoyd

| sseuppy

| swen

SaA[]

FRETIRENTI
341 0] pa122UU0d 193ndW0d INOA ST '9

oN[]

sieaA g ueyy 48p|0 [ ]
plo siedh g-¢ ]
Pl sieaA ¢ ueyy ssa[]

¢493ndwod UNoA si p|o moy ‘0s JI '

ON [] SOA[]

¢191ndwod e umo Apeadje noA oqQ ‘v
OoN [] soA[]

¢sayauaq Aue bBuiwied noA aly ¢
ON [] SaA[]

¢paAojdwiaun noA auy g
ON [] SaA[]

¢Jopjoyasea 10 jueual
|1puno) A3 abpriquie) e NoA ady T

JeaA e 1o} 994} - mou
J193ndwod 1noA wie|)

'S||13s Bunsixa

JINOA uo pjing 4o ‘@2uspyuod JnoA
9sealoul ‘paliels noA 196 djay ued oym
9)doad yjim yonoz ui noA Ind ued app

‘Apeadje

s9s4n0d spjoy Ajgeqo.d pue bujuieuy 1oy
suopedo| Jejndod 3sow ay3i JO SUO SI
AJeaqi| [e20] JNOA

*9oualladxa Jo

|9A3] JNOA J3)3eW OU
- Bbujuiesy yeyndwiod
3S00-MO| J0 934

196 ued noA saoe|d
JuaIajip JO S10|
Apeadje aJe aJ1ay

Buiuies) swos }a9) ‘¢

di|s siy3 uinyad pue 3no ||y 3snl
31q16112 24e NOA JI IN0 puy O]

‘NoA

03 Jeau bBujuiea] 3s03-M0| 10 334} puy NOA
djoy ued am ‘auojaq Jo3ndwiod e pasn
UDAS J9AU dARY J0 Bululel) pasu noA JI

1uedA e 03 dn Joj noA djay ued

[IDUN0D 9Y3 ‘puegpeo.q JO 3S0D BIIXD B3
pJ0o4je Jouued 3ng ‘Uoj30aUU0D dUljpue|

e pue 191ndwod e aAey Apealdje noA JI

‘yjuow e g3 puno.e
10} UOI329UU0D
J2UJa3ul BUl| paxy

e 9AeY 03 siyauaq
pa3e|aJ-awodu|
Buiwied pue xJom
JO 31N0 3S0Y3 Mo||e
SJJ1le] 9SN-moT

1eaA e 03 dn Joj 193ndwod
dopisop Jo doide| e siapjoyases| pue
SjueUd] |IDUNOD pud| 03 Buliajo mou
SI |1puno) AND abprHqwe) Aum s,jeyl

'Ssadoe
buinrsb wouy sjdoad dois ued s3s0d ay3
S2WIIBWOS INg *pa3dauuod j,uale jeyy

9SOy} uey} 440 49112 JeaA e Qo F 01
dn aJe ssa00e 3UlajuUl Y3IM SPIOYSSNOH

6713 Ajuo

10J 193ndwod paysiqinial B NOA [|3S ||ImM
oym sJaijddns jo sjiersp ayi noA aAlb ued
|IouUN0d 3y3 3|qibI@ 30U 94,N0A JI UBA]

*(doyde| e u0j G/ F pue Dd dopisap e

10J 067 Aj|ea1dAl) @o14d 3500 ay3 Jjey 104
NoA 031 3 |I9S ||IM |12Un0dD ay3 ‘auswdinba
9y3 aseyaJnd 01 ysim noA 4eaA e usye ‘1

*SS900P Jaulajul NoA
3AI6 [11m jeyy 3ebpeb
e pue 4ai3ndwod e
NOA UBO| [|[IM [IDUNOD
AyD abprquied (vsr
‘110ddng awooug
‘Jysauag buisnoy

1) mEﬂ.mn_
uiellad wie|d NoA JI
(D)

Japndwio) e 399 |

"2UI|UO pasiIaApe

AJuo aJe jeyy sqol 1oy Ajdde pue yoieas
0S|e ued NOA 'S|eljuassa Joyjo pue pooy
‘s|1q pjoyasnoy JnoA uo spunod jo
SpaJpuny aAes p|nod noA auljuo buinisb
pue s||ys 193ndwod UnoA buisealdul Ag

*U0 30 BUISSIW 34,N0A 10| B S,219U]
13U43]U] Y3 01 PID2UU0D 3,Udle NOoA JI

g2 ) se Ased s} ¢auljuo 306 o} Juep




Get Online progress report
23/05/14

Current situation:

19 residents have received assistance under the scheme at the time of writing this
report. Break down as follows:

14 have been loaned a laptop and dongle

2 have been loaned a laptop only, as they have broadband already
2 have been loaned a desktop computer

2 have been loaned a dongle only, as they already have a computer

0O O O O

e The scheme is proving extremely popular, with a waiting list of 33 residents.
e As of 31% March 2014, total expenditure on the project: £3252.99.

Procedure:
Applicants are assessed using two forms, (attached).

e The first asks whether they are a tenant or leaseholder in receipt of benefits.
They are also asked about any equipment and/or internet access in their
home.

e The second form aims to assess the applicants currently level of computer
and internet skills. As a result of this form, it was recommended that two
applicants attend a basic internet course before receiving their equipment.

Resident Involvement contacts applicant to discuss any specific needs or issues.

Recipients are asked to complete a quarterly internet use survey, (attached). As the
first five sets of equipment were only delivered in December, insufficient data has
been collected to identify any trends. A report will be produced at a later date.

Demographics and impact of the scheme:

Whilst no specific demographic information, (age, ethnicity, etc.), is collected about
individuals receiving equipment, the following examples help to illustrate the impact
the scheme is having.

1) “P” was made redundant just before Christmas, having been employed in the
catering sector for over forty years. He was referred via Job Centre Plus, who
stated that he was highly motivated and a regular attendee at Job Club. As a
result of receiving the equipment he has continued to build on newly acquired
IT skills and has been in contact with the Independent Living Service (ILS)
about volunteering opportunities.

2) “F” was one of the first recipients of the scheme. She lives in Cherry Hinton
and was finding it difficult to attend Job Centre Plus to look for employment.
Using the equipment provided, she has now found full time employment in the
retail sector.

Page 45



Get Online progress report
23/05/14

3) “M”is a single parent who was referred by her caseworker. Her nine year old
daughter was having difficulties keeping up with homework. The equipment
has addressed this problem and “M” has expressed her gratitude.

4) “FI” is a young woman with multiple mental health issues. She has high level
computer skills, but her existing equipment was no longer fit for purpose. Her
caseworker has stated that the loan of newer equipment will greatly assist her
in maintaining contact with the outside world.

5) “H” and “C” are both tenants with mobility issues. They had computers which
were very old and temperamental. The equipment from the scheme has
allowed them to stay in touch with family and the wider community.

Issues with the supply of equipment:

Finding a reliable supplier of good quality, refurbished equipment at reasonable cost
has proven difficult. We have been using Partners IT and Social Telecoms CIC, two
not for profit social enterprises. However, the former has recently ceased trading,
whilst the latter is experiencing some difficulty in keeping up with demand. If the
scheme is to continue beyond the pilot stage this issue will need to be addressed.

Wireless broadband in ILS communal areas:

Robert Hollingsworth (Head of City Homes) has asked the RI Team to investigate
options for installing and supporting Wi-Fi in the communal areas of our sheltered
schemes. Below is a brief summary of the research carried out to date.

The Resident Involvement Communications Officer has held discussions with our in-
house IT department. These discussions have highlighted that Cambridge City
Council is a partner in the Cambridgeshire Public Sector Network (CPSN), a project
that aims to install Wi-Fi in all its buildings. It is possible that a single sheltered
scheme could be identified as a pilot.

A recent visit to Camden Council, who have used funding from central government’s
Digital Deal to install Wi-Fi in all their sheltered schemes, highlighted the importance
of identifying “hooks” to encourage residents to get involved. Camden quickly found
that tablets, as opposed to the more traditional desktops and laptops, were much
easier to use for those with limited experience of the internet. They also emphasised
the importance of continual training and support for both residents and staff. To this
end, Matt has been in discussion with Cambridge Online, who have the capacity to
provide this service.

A meeting with Robert and Independent Living Service (ILS) staff is scheduled for
early June to discuss the way forward.

Page 46



Agenda Item 10

Lo
’Lb{ Cambridge City Council

To Executive Councillor for Housing

Report  Director of Customer and Community Services
by Director of Business Transformation

Relevant Scrutiny Committee  Housing Committee 1 July 2014
2013/14 Revenue Outturn, Carry Forwards and Significant Variances
Key Decision

1. Executive Summary

1.1 This report presents a summary of the 2013/14 outturn position
(actual income and expenditure) for services within the Housing
Revenue Account, compared to the current budget for the year. The
position for revenue is reported and variances from budgets are
highlighted, together with explanations. Requests to carry forward
funding arising from certain budget underspends into 2014/15 are
identified.

1.2 The position in relation to the Housing Capital Investment Plan will be
reported to the Housing Committee under a separate report.

2. Recommendations
The Executive Councillor is recommended:

a) To agree that the carry forward requests, totalling £3,393,320 as
detailed in Appendix C, are to be recommended to Council for
approval.

3. Background
Revenue Outturn

3.1 The final outturn position for the Housing Revenue Account,
compared to revised and current revenue budget, is presented in
detail in Appendix A.

3.2 The outturn position is currently presented prior to final accounting

adjustments, which are not expected to have an impact on the net
use of, or contribution to, balances for 2013/14. The final version of

Report Page No: 1 Page 47



3.3

3.4

3.5

3.5

the HRA accounts for 2013/14 will be presented to Civic Affairs on
25" June 2014, for final approval at Civic Affairs in September 2014.

Appendix B to this report provides explanations of the main
variances.

Appendix C sets out the final list of items, for the Housing Revenue
Account, for which approval is sought to carry forward unspent
budget from 2013/14 to the next financial year, 2014/15.

The overall revenue budget outturn position for the Housing Revenue
Account, is set out in the table below:

Housing Revenue Account £
2013/14 Total (Surplus) /

Deficit

Final Budget (Deficit - Use of Reserves) (1,875,940)
Outturn (Surplus — Contribution to Reserves) 3,385,249

Variation — (Under) / Overspend for the year (5,261,189)
Carry Forward Requests: 3,393,320

Net Variance (1,867,869)

The net variance of (£5,261,189) on the overall Housing Revenue
Account, before allowing for carry forwards, comprises a 6.6%
variance in direct expenditure and a 0.2% variance in direct income.
After allowing for carry forwards, the outturn position will comprise a
4.6% variance in expenditure and a 0.2% variance in income.

4. Implications

4.1

4.2

The net variance from final budget, after approvals to carry forward
£3,393,320 budget from the current year into 2014/15, will result in a
reduction in the use of Housing Revenue Account reserves, from
£1,875,940 to £8,071.

In relation to requests to carry forward revenue budgets into 2014/15
the decisions made may have a number of implications. A decision
not to approve a carry forward request will impact on officers’ ability
to deliver the service or scheme in question and this could have

Report Page No: 2 Page 48



staffing, equal opportunities, environmental and / or community
safety implications.

5. Background Papers

These background papers were used in the preparation of this report:

e Closedown Working Files 2013/14
e Directors Variance Explanations — March 2014
e Budgetary Control Reports to 31 March 2014

6. Appendices

e Appendix A - Revenue Budget 2013/14 - Outturn

e Appendix B - Revenue Budget 2013/14 - Major Variances from Final
Revenue Budgets

e Appendix C - Revenue Budget 2013/14 - Carry Forward Requests

7. Inspection of papers

To inspect the background papers or if you have a query on the report
please contact:

Author’'s Name: Julia Hovells
Author’'s Phone Number: Telephone: 01223 457822
Author’s Email: julia.hovells@cambridge.gov.uk

O:\accounts\Committee Reports & Papers\Housing Management Board\2014 June\HMB Final Outturn 2013-14
Report.doc

Report Page No: 3 Page 49



Appendix A
Housing Committee - Housing Revenue Account

Revenue Budget 2013/14 - Final Outturn

Carry
Forward
Service G . Variation Requests -
ervice Brouping Original Increase/ see Net
Budget Final Budget Outturn (Decrease) | Appendix C| Variance
£'s £'s £'s £'s £'s £'s
INCOME
Dwelling Rents (34,073,000), (34,184,090)| (34,175,372) 8,718 0 8,718
Garage Rents (640,380) (640,380) (645,223) (4,843) 0 (4,843)
Other Land and Premises Rents (407,030) (397,730) (419,362) (21,632) 0 (21,632)
Service Charges (2,104,180)| (2,338,960)| (2,351,338) (12,378) 0 (12,378)
Contributions towards Expenditure (414,140) (461,100) (468,282) (7,182) 0 (7,182)
Other Income (Incl. RTB Capitalisation) (58,070) (83,070) (124,065) (40,995) 0 (40,995)
Total Income (37,696,800), (38,105,330)| (38,183,642) (78,312) 0 (78,312)
EXPENDITURE
Supervision & Management (General) 4,956,920 4,764,720 4,493,315 (271,405) 0 (271,405)
Supervision & Management (Special) 2,311,650 2,319,670 2,212,536 (107,134) 0 (107,134)
Repairs & Maintenance 7,117,230 7,320,570 6,049,606 (1,270,964) 483,910 (787,054)
Depreciation 9,603,470 9,811,240 9,781,483 (29,757) 0 (29,757)
Debt Management Expenditure 20,000 0 0 0 0 0
Other Expenditure 672,300 526,540 572,528 45,988 0 45,988
Total Expenditure 24,681,570, 24,742,740| 23,109,468 (1,633,272) 483,910| (1,149,362)
Net Cost of HRA Services (13,015,230), (13,362,590)| (15,074,174) (1,711,584) 483,910| (1,227,674)
Interest Receivable (Interest on Balances) (104,770) (79,420) (113,397) (33,977) 0 (33,977)
Interest Receivable (Mortgage Interest) 0 0 (60) (60) 0 (60)
(Surplus) / Deficit on the HRA for the Year (13,120,000), (13,442,010)| (15,187,631)| (1,745,621) 483,910, (1,261,711)
Appropriations / Other Movement in the HRA Balance
Loan Interest 7,474,240 7,501,770 7,499,934 (1,836) 0 (1,836)
Housing Set-Aside 0 0 0 0 0 0
Depreciation Adjustment (MRA) (2,242,080)| (2,280,780)| (2,103,293) 177,487 0 177,487
Impairment 0 0 0 0 0 0
Direct Revenue Financing of Capital 7,162,340 10,096,960 6,405,741 (3,691,219)] 2,909,410 (781,809)
(Surplus) / Deficit for year (725,500) 1,875,940, (3,385,249)| (5,261,189) 3,393,320 (1,867,869)
(Surplus) / Deficit b/f (5,495,489), (5,495,489) (5,495,489)
Balance Carried Forward (6,220,989), (3,619,549)| (8,880,738) 0 0 0

Changes between original and final budgets may be made to reflect:

- departmental restructuring

- approved budget carry forwards from the previous financial year

- technical adjustments, including changes to the capital accounting regime
- virements approved under the Council's constitution

- additional external revenue funding not originally budgeted for

and are detailed and approved:
- in the June committee cycle (outturn reporting and carry forward requests)

- in September (as part of the HRA Mid-Year Business Plan Update
- in the January committee cycle (as part of the HRA budget setting report)

- and via technical adjustments/virements throughout the year

Page 50



Appendix B

Housing Committee - Housing Revenue Account

Revenue Budget 2013/14 - Major Variances from Final Revenue

Service Grouping

Budgets

Reason for Variance

Supervision and Management (General)

Computer Services

HRA Allocation for
Recharged Costs

Tenant Participation /
Resident Involvement

HRA Departmental
Overheads

City Homes

Open Door

Significant under-utilisation of application support days through the Serco
Northgate contracts for 2013/14 (£86k), coupled with savings in the costs ol
the Orchard Housing Management System due to rationalisation of IT
systems.

A specific sum of money was ear-marked in the HRA to meet any
increases in recharges to the HRA following restructures and re-
organisation. This was not called upon in 2013/14 as anticipated.

Resident Involvement activity continued to be delivered at a lower level in
2013/14, due to a combination of staff vacancies and reduced working
hours in the team and the lead in time for the new work plan identified
following the transition of resident involvement services back to the
Council.

The budget for abortive development fees was under-utilised in 2013/14 as
the majority of new build schemes considered are currently being
progressed (£10k). Employee costs were underspent due to staff opting not
to join the pension scheme (£14k) and training budgets were not fully
utilised (£9k). These underspends were partially offset by overspending in
both the costs of maternity cover for the HRA for 2013/14 and general
office running costs. This represents a 2.8% variance on the cost centre.

Net underspending in general operational costs such as staff recruitment,
consultancy, training, telephones, stationery and printing. This represents a
1.1% variance on the cost centre.

The costs of producing Open Door were lower in 2013/14, partly due to
fewer additional inserts into the publication during the year.

Minor Variations
Total

Supervision and Management (Special)

Independent Living
Services Management

Independent Living
Service

Underspending in employee costs due to vacancies within the team prior to
the outcome of a management restructure, coupled with savings in
resource identified for consultancy input to support the delayed tender
process for Supporting People Services, which has now been superseded
with a community budgeting model.

Underspending in training, IT, telephones and mileage allowances have
been combined with no increase in the cost of the out of hours service
where inflation was anticipated to apply. The bid incorporated to cover the
costs of retaining the current staffing structure if Supporting people funding
were to have reduced were less than anticipated due to changes in staffing
and recruitment to vacancies at lower points on pay bands.

Page 51

Amount
£

(106,400)

(72,000)

(35,393)

(25,769)

(13,918)

(9,459)

(8,466)
(271,405)

(24,611)

(24,147)



Appendix B
Housing Committee - Housing Revenue Account

Revenue Budget 2013/14 - Major Variances from Final Revenue

Service Grouping

Estate Management

Temporary
Accommodation

Brandon Court

Stanton House

Emergency Alarms

Budgets

Reason for Variance

Underspending in communal electricity costs partially offset by
overspending in bulky refuse costs. Electricity budgets will be reviewed as
part of the 2015/16 budget process to take account of current electricity
prices and recent usage levels.

Underspending in employee costs due to vacancies within the team
coupled with savings in building maintenance costs due to reduced void
repair costs. Underspending has been partially offset by an increase in both
cleaning costs and gas across the Temporary Housing stock.

The cost of gas used at this scheme was significantly lower than
anticipated, where budgets for the scheme were based upon other similar
schemes and early indications of usage levels. Budgets for all utility costs
will be reviewed as part of the 2015/16 budget process.

The cost of electricity for 2013/14 was significantly higher than budgeted,
due entirely to an adjustment received from the energy supplier in respect
of a prior period.

Underspending in maintenance of emergency alarm equipment coupled
with an over-achievement in income based upon maintained customer
numbers throughout the year.

Minor Variations
Total

Page 52

Amount

£

(21,298)

(18,427)

(13,047)

9,548

(9,052)

(6,100)
(107,134)



Appendix B

Housing Committee - Housing Revenue Account

Revenue Budget 2013/14 - Major Variances from Final Revenue

Service Grouping

Budgets

Reason for Variance

Repairs and Maintenance

Planned Repairs

Void Repairs

Response Repairs

The planned repair (PTR) programme was underspent in 2013/14, with
Apollo still in the process of undertaking the work identified and ordered for
the year. The final valuation for work undertaken is not expected until
September / October 2014, and as a result it is requested that the budget
be carried forward to complete the 2013/14 programme. Due to the
cessation of the current planned maintenance contract with Apollo
anticipated to be in August 2014, it is not yet possible to predict whether the
full 2014/15 PTR programme will be deliverable in addition to the works
carried forward from 2013/14. Any financial impact in 2014/15 will be
incorporated as part of the HRA Mid-Year Financial Review at which point
the position for 2014/15 will be clear.

Spending in respect of void repairs was significantly lower than previously
experienced and budgeted, where the average cost of a void repair has
been reduced in 2013/14 due to operational changes that include the voids
team also undertaking emergency repairs to ensure improved productivity.
A reduction in reliance upon sub-contractors has also contributed to a
significant reduction in the average cost of a void repair. The budget for
void repairs was reduced on an ongoing basis as part of the 2014/15
budget process, but this area will be subject to a zero based budget
exercise as part of the 2015/16 budget process to determine whether the
changes made will result in the ability to reduce budgets further.

Response repair costs were lower than previously experienced due to a
combination of the successful outcome of the Repairs Improvement Plan
Project, which has seen a significant reduction in the use of sub-contractors
and the implementation of a new IT system and mobile working solution
and a mild winter. It was difficult to predict the overall outcome for 2013/14
at earlier stages during the year due to the transition between IT systems
between December 2013 and March 2014. It is anticipated that a zero
based budget exercise for the 2015/16 budget process will result in a level
of proposed ongoing savings, whilst recognising the need to retain
resource to meet the costs of a harsher winter and to offset any changes
that may be made to the level of capital investment in the housing stock.

Page 53

Amount

£

(349,325)

(316,109)

(261,284)



Appendix B

Housing Committee - Housing Revenue Account

Revenue Budget 2013/14 - Major Variances from Final Revenue

Service Grouping

Technical Services

Citywide Schemes

Budgets

Reason for Variance

Funds ear-marked for potential restructure costs were not required due to
successful recruitment and redeployment (£65k), IT costs were underspent
(£49K) due to a combination of the timing of 'go live' with the new repairs IT
solution and lack of payment for the planned maintenance contract
software in 2013/14, the latter of which is requested as a carry forward to
allow retrospective payment of this in 2014/15. Consultants fees were less
than budgeted, and the funds ear-marked for the work associated with
procuring and implementing a new planned maintenance contractor were
not fully realised in 2013/14 due to delays in the process. A carry forward is
requested for the resource to complete the planned maintenance
procurement project in 2014/15.

Underspending in 2013/14 was predominantly evident in the servicing and
maintenance of electrical and heating appliances in sheltered schemes, lift
maintenance and lamp column maintenance. Work was not completed fully
in respect of asbestos surveys, electrical testing and water safety testing,
where resources are requested to be carried forward into 2014/15 to
complete the programmes. The gas maintenance contract shows an
underspend of £29,000, the majority of which (£20,000) is requested as a
carry forward to meet the anticipated contract bonus payment for 2013/14,
with the balance being predominantly due to reduced repairs outside of the
core contract.

Minor Variations
Total

HRA Subsidy and Other Expenditure

Council Tax

Bad Debt Provision

Depreciation

The cost of Council Tax which has to be met from the HRA in respect of void
properties was significantly higher than anticipated in 2013/14 due to
changes in the local Council Tax Discounts and Exemptions Policy from April
2014, coupled with lengthy void periods in properties vacated for demolition
and redevelopment as part of the affordable housing programme.

The contribution to the bad debt provision for 2013/14 was lower than
budgeted based upon the opening fund balance, call on the fund in the year
and the incidence of both current and former tenant arrears at 31st March
2014.

The level of depreciation charged to the HRA for 2013/14 was marginally
lower than anticipated, as depreciation for new build assets is only
chargeable in year if the asset was in stock at 1st April of the year in
question.

Minor Variations
Total

Page 54

Amount
£

(185,029)

(164,488)

5,271
(1,270,964)

113,956

(67,968)

(29,757)

16,231



Appendix B

Housing Committee - Housing Revenue Account

Revenue Budget 2013/14 - Major Variances from Final Revenue

Service Grouping

Budgets

Reason for Variance

HRA Income and Other

Right to Buy
Capitalisation

Rent - Other Land and
Premises

Service Charges

The value that the authority was able to capitalise in respect of work in
relation to the right to buy sale of a dwelling was higher than budgeted due to
the continuation of right to buy activity at the higher levels experienced from
the latter part of 2012/13 following changes in legislation from April 2012.

Rent income invoiced for HRA shops and land was higher than budgeted for
in 2013/14 due to rent being levied for a property where the lease was in the
lengthy process of being terminated for non-payment of rent. It is anticipated
that the rent due will ultimately need to be written off, and therefore provision
has been made in the bad debt provision to meet the cost.

Service Charge income was marginally over-achieved due to a combination
of the incidence of void activity across housing stock where service charges
are levied, and an increase in the number of leasehold flats, where service
charges are levied for items which are currently recovered via rental income
when the property is tenanted.

Minor Variations
Total

HRA Interest, Premiums and Appropriations

Direct Revenue Funding
of Capital Expenditure
(DRF)

Depreciation Adjustment

Interest Received

A reduced demand on the use of revenue funding of capital was realised in
2013/14 as a result of the decision to procure new planned maintenance
contractors from 2014/15 coupled with the timing of payments in respect of
the new build affordable housing projects. This resource will instead be
required in 2014/15 and beyond.

Transfer of funding into the Major Repairs Reserve (the equivalent of
depreciation for HRA dwelling assets) can be adjusted under transitional
arrangements for a five year period, after which full depreciation will be
applicable. The transitional income adjustment for 2013/14 was less than
budgeted recognising the application of the sum identified in the self-
financing settlement, which both applies inflation and de-recognises any
further stock reductions in a move towards full depreciation charges across
the five year transitional period.

Interest received in respect of HRA balances during 2013/14 was higher than
anticipated due to the level of underspending across the HRA as a whole.

Minor Variations
Total

Total for Housing Revenue Account

Page 55

Amount
£

(40,995)

(21,632)

(12,378)

(3,307)
(78,312)

(3,691,219)

177,487

(34,037)

(1,836)
(3,549,605)

(5,261,189)



Appendix C
Housing Comittee - Housing Revenue Account

Revenue Budget 2013/14 - Carry Forward Requests

Request to Carry Forward Housing Revenue Account Budgets from 2013/14 into 2014/15 and future years

Item Request
£

Director of Customer and Community Services

Supervision and Management General

No carry forward requests

Supervision and Management Special

No carry forward requests

Repairs and Maintenance

Costs associated with the project to procure, select, train and implement new planned maintenance contractors for
1 the Housing Service are not yet fully realised. The completion of this project is anticipated during 2014/15, with new 55,290
contracts estimated to start in July 2014

Costs for the 2013/14 support of an IT system used to monitor the contractual relationship with the planned
maintenance contractors were not realised in 2013/14, but have subsequently been invoiced to the authority in
2014/15. A request to carry the resource forward into 2014/15 is made to ensure that the is sufficient resource in
2014/15 to meet the costs for both 2013/14 and 2014/15.

13,800

Carry forwards are requested to complete works in respect of asbestos surveys (£18,000), electrical testing (£21,000)
and water safety testing (£6,500), where the full programme of works was not completed during 2013/14. Resources

of £20,000 are also requested as a carry forward to meet the anticipated contract bonus for 2013/14 in respect of the
gas maintenance contract.

65,500

The full 2013/14 PTR programme was not undertaken or invoiced in year, but is anticipated to instead be completed

during 2014/15. 349,320

Appropriations

A reduced demand on the use of revenue funding of capital was realised in 2013/14 as a direct result of
underspending in the Housing Capital Investment Plan brought about in part by the decision to procure a new
planned maintenance contractor from 2014/15 onwards. A significant proportion of this resource will instead be
required in 2014/15 and beyond to fund the deferred spending.

2,909,410

3,393,320

Page 56



Agenda Item 11

}‘{-! Cambridge City Council Item
=
To Executive Councillor for Housing

Report  Director of Customer & Community Services, Director of
by Environment and Director of Business Transformation

Relevant Scrutiny Committee Housing Committee 1 July 2014

2013/14 Revenue and Capital Outturn, Carry Forwards and Significant
Variances — Housing General Fund Portfolio

Key Decision
1. Executive Summary

1.1 This report presents a summary of the 2013/14 outturn position
(actual income and expenditure) for services within the Housing
portfolio, compared to the final budget for the year. The position for
revenue and capital is reported and variances from budgets are
highlighted, together with explanations. Requests to carry forward
funding arising from certain budget underspends into 2014/15 and
future years where relevant, are identified.

1.2 It should be noted that outturn reports being presented in this
Committee cycle reflect the reporting structures in place prior to the
recent changes in Executive portfolios. In light of those changes
(together with the requirement to report outturn on the basis of
portfolios in place during 2013/14) members of this committee are
asked to consider the proposals to carry forward budgets and make
their views known to The Executive Councillor for Finance and
Resources, for consideration at Strategy & Resources Scrutiny
Committee prior to his recommendations to Council.

2. Recommendations

Members of the Scrutiny Committee are asked to consider and make
known their views on the following proposals:

a) To agree the carry forward requests, totalling £84,000 as detailed
in Appendix C, are to be recommended to Council for approval.

b)  To seek approval from Council to re-phase spending of £25,000 in
respect of energy efficiency improvements in the private sector

Page 57



d)

f)

into 2014/15, and £9,000 in respect of the scheme to upgrade
facilities at 125 Newmarket Road, as detailed in Appendix D.

To seek approval from Council to carry forward net capital
resources of £11,633,000 from 2013/14, to fund re-phased capital
spending in the Housing Capital Investment Plan, as detailed in
Appendix E and the associated notes, re-profiling investment as
follows:

Re-phase £8,993,000 into 2014/15

Re-phase £2,390,000 into 2015/16

Reduce investment in 2016/17 by £87,000
Re-phase £337,000 into the period post 2018/19

To recognise a delay into 2014/15, for receipt of the remainder of
Homes and Communities Agency Grant for the affordable housing
new build and re-development programme of £889,000 and the
associated £1,509,000 in capital receipts for the land on which the
market housing is being delivered on the remainder of the 146
programme sites.

To also seek approval from Council to carry forward an additional
£100,000 of the net underspend in the Housing Capital
Programme into 2014/15, to fund an enhanced level of investment
in fencing, as proposed as part of the Labour Alternative Budget in
February 2014.

To note the resulting need to defer the use of both £2,909,000 of
revenue funding of capital expenditure into 2014/15, as
considered as part of the HRA revenue outturn at Housing
Committee and £1,828,000 of maijor repairs reserve funding, both
of which will be required to fund the requested re-phasing in
capital investment.

3. Background

3.1

3.2

Revenue Outturn

The outturn position for the Housing portfolio, compared to final
revenue budget, is presented in detail in Appendix A.

Appendix B to this report provides explanations of the main
variances.

Page 58



3.3

3.4

Appendix C sets out the final list of items, for this service portfolio, for
which approval is sought to carry forward unspent budget from
2013/14 to the next financial year, 2014/15.

The overall revenue budget outturn position for the Housing portfolio
is set out in the table below:

Housing Portfolio £
2013/14 Revenue Summary

Final Budget 3,654,640
Outturn 3,479,117
(Under)/Overspend for the year (175,523)
Carry Forward Requests: 84,000
Net Variance (91,523)

The net variance represents 2.5% of the overall portfolio budget for
2013/14 financial year.

Capital Outturn

3.5

3.6

3.7

3.8

Appendix D shows the outturn position for schemes and programmes
within the Housing portfolio, with explanations of variances.

An overall net underspend of £33,000 is evident, with a £1,000
overspend in the property accreditation scheme, more than offset by
underspending in respect of energy efficiency improvements in the
private sector (£25,000) and investment to upgrade the facilities at
125 Newmarket Road (£9,000). It is requested that both underspends
are re-phased into 2014/15, where in the case of the latter, the
balance of funding for the project already exists.

Appendix E provides detail for the capital schemes covered by the
Housing Capital Investment Plan (Housing Revenue Account and
Housing General Fund schemes funded from HRA resources).

Appendix E summarises the outturn position for the Housing Capital
Investment Plan and the associated notes give brief explanations of
the variances. A net underspend of £12,234,000 is evident,
combining overspending in areas such as heating and boilers, re-
wiring, doors, kitchens, bathrooms, major voids, garage

Page 59



3.9

3.10

3.1

3.12

improvements, emergency alarm upgrades and the investment in the
refurbishment of Brandon Court, with underspending in masonry
decorating, re-roofing, roof strengthening, window replacements,
sulphate works, asbestos removal, chimneys, smoke detectors,
external professional fees and contractor overheads. There is a
requirement to carry forward £11,633,000 of re-phased expenditure
in capital schemes between 2013/14 and 2014/15 and future years.
This is predominantly in relation to net investment in decent homes in
our own stock (£1,469,000), other investment in HRA stock
(£1,705,000), new build affordable housing (£5,960,000), Cambridge
Standard works (£106,000), the refurbishment of and other works to
the authority’s sheltered schemes (£1,900,000) and other HRA
capital investment (£493,000).

The two key contributory factors in the level of slippage that is
evident are the timing of the exit of the existing planned maintenance
contractor, and the phasing of resource for the new build programme,
where it is difficult to predict at the outset in which months we will hit
the trigger points for contract payments. This is dependent upon the
time taken to obtain the relevant approvals, gain planning permission,
find existing residents new accommodation and build out the site to
the stage where the Council becomes liable to meet the build costs.
This varies hugely from scheme to scheme.

An additional proposal, incorporated into this report is the carry
forward of £100,000 of the net underspend in the Housing Capital
Investment Programme in 2013/14, into 2014/15, reallocating it to
fencing, to allow delivery of the enhanced level of investment inn
fencing which was proposed as part of the Labour Alternative Budget
in February 2014. The desire to invest in fencing at the accelerated
level of £200,000 per annum on an ongoing basis will be considered
as part of the review of the Housing Capital Investment Programme
in the HRA Mid-Year Financial Review in the context of other
spending priorities.

Appendix E and the associated notes also highlight the need to defer
the anticipated receipt of £889,000 in respect of Homes and
Communities Agency Grant and £1,509,000 in respect of land
receipts into 2014/15, with both directly related to the timing of
progress in respect of the affordable housing new build and re-
development programme.

Permission is also sought to re-phase the use of £2,909,000 of direct
revenue funding of capital expenditure from the Housing Revenue
Account and £1,828,000 in major repairs reserve into 2014/15 to
finance the re-phased capital expenditure identified in paragraph 3.8.

Page 60



3.13 Right to buy receipts were significantly higher in 2013/14 than

anticipated, with 60 dwellings sold during the year. This continued
increase results from the Government's legislative changes
increasing discounts to a maximum of £75,000 and introducing a
mechanism for the re-provision of lost units, requiring local authorities
to contribute 70% of the cost of the replacement dwellings. The
authority had resource of £5,783,000 as at 31 March 2014 which is
required to be re-invested in the delivery of new affordable housing
within the prescribed three year timescales.

4. Implications

4.1

4.2

The net variance from the final budget, after approvals to carry
forward £84,000 budget from 2013/14 to the next financial year,
2014/15, would result in a decreased use of General Fund reserves
of £91,523.

In relation to anticipated requests to carry forward revenue budgets
into 2014/15 the decisions made may have a number of implications.
A decision not to approve a carry forward request will impact on
officers’ ability to deliver the service or scheme in question and this
could have staffing, equal opportunities, environmental and/or
community safety implications.

5. Background Papers

These background papers were used in the preparation of this report:

Closedown Working Files 2013/14

Directors Variance Explanations — March 2014
Capital Monitoring Reports — March 2014
Budgetary Control Reports to 31 March 2014

6. Appendices

Appendix A - Revenue Budget 2013/14 - Outturn

Appendix B - Revenue Budget 2013/14 - Major Variances from Final
Revenue Budgets

Appendix C - Revenue Budget 2013/14 - Carry Forward Requests
Appendix D - Capital Budget 2013/14 - Outturn

Appendix E — Housing Capital Investment Plan 2013/14 — Outturn
Appendix E Notes — Notes to the Housing Capital Investment Plan

Page 61



7. Inspection of Papers

To inspect the background papers or if you have a query on the report
please contact:

Authors’ Names: Julia Hovells; Karen Whyatt
Authors’ Phone 01223 - 457822; 01223 - 458145;
Numbers:

julia.hovells@cambridge.gov.uk
karen.whyatt@cambridge.gov.uk

Authors’ Email:

Page 62



Appendix A
General Fund Housing Portfolio / Housing Committee

Revenue Budget - 2013/14 Outturn

Service Grouping Variation Carry Forward

Original Increase/ |Requests - see
Budget Final Budget Outturn (Decrease) Appendix C | Net Variance
£ £ £ £ £
Housing General Fund
Housing Strategy, Development, Housing Aid/
Needs
Homelessness Costs 220,250 343,770 292,449 (51,321) 37,930 (13,391)
Grant Funded Homelessness Costs 572,220 613,070 595,201 (17,869) 17,870 1
Housing Advice Service 413,010 443,600 442,539 (1,061) 0 (1,061)
Choice Based Lettings (Revenue Running Costs) 45,120 43,690 35,324 (8,366) 0 (8,366)
125/ 451 Newmarket Road - Revenue costs 4,940 12,330 17,246 4,916 0 4,916
Anti Social Behaviour 64,980 63,780 63,780 0 0 0
Housing Strategy 54,350 69,650 58,401 (11,249) 0 (11,249)
DCLG Specialist Advisor 0 19,850 20,026 176 0 176
Growth - Community Services 38,170 38,170 38,568 398 0 398
Development 61,940 61,940 61,061 (879) 0 (879)
1,474,980 1,709,850 1,624,595 (85,255) 55,800 (29,455)
Private Sector Housing Renewal/ Voluntary
Sector
Home Aid / Home Improvement Grants 45,840 89,340 60,629 (28,711) 0 (28,711)
Grants to Housing Agencies 159,140 159,470 161,522 2,052 0 2,052
204,980 248,810 222,151 (26,659) 0 (26,659)
Miscellaneous Housing
Bermuda Road Garages (7,930) (7,930) (7,222) 708 0 708
Racial Harassment 22,870 22,870 23,386 516 0 516
Supporting People 14,050 14,050 6,443 (7,607) 0 (7,607)
Strategic Housing Direct Overheads 199,740 199,740 195,479 (4,261) 0 (4,261)
Strategic Housing and City Homes GF Recharges 691,100 691,100 691,100 0 0 0
Contribution to / from HRA 329,030 329,030 336,211 7,181 0 7,181
Ditchburn Place Care Contract Deficit 0 0 0 0
1,248,860 1,248,860 1,245,397 (3,463) 0 (3,463)
Total Housing General Fund 2,928,820 3,207,520 3,092,143 (115,377) 55,800 (59,577)
Environment - Refuse and Environment
Housing Standards 400,230 363,580 322,379 (41,201) 24,450 (16,751)
Property Accreditation 45,580 45,580 39,980 (5,600) 0 (5,600)
Energy Officer 58,060 58,060 54,901 (3,159) 3,750 591
Miscellaneous Licensing - Housing (20,100) (20,100) (30,286) (10,186) 0 (10,186)
Total Environment 483,770 447,120 386,974 (60,146) 28,200 (31,946)
Total Net Budget 3,412,590 3,654,640 3,479,117 (175,523) 84,000 (91,523)
Changes between original and final budgets may be made to reflect:
- portfolio and departmental restructuring - virements approved under the Council's constitution
- approved budget carry forwards from the previous financial year - additional external revenue funding not originally budgeted
- technical adjustments, including changes to the capital accounting regime
and are detailed and approved:
- in the January committee cycle (as part of the Budget Setting Report) - in September (as part of the Mid-Year Financial Review, MFR’
- in the June/July committee cycle (outturn reporting and carry forward requests) - via technical adjustments/virements throughout the year

- in the January committee cycle (as part of the Budget Setting Report, BSR)
- via technical adjustments/virements throughout the year
Page 63



General Fund Housing Portfolio / Housing Committee

Revenue Budget 2013/14 - Major Variances
from Final Revenue Budgets

Amount

Service Grouping Reason for Variance £

Appendix B

Contact

Customer & Community Services - Housing Strategy, Development, Housing Advice, Private Sector Housing and

Miscellaneous Housing

Spending on bed and breakfast provision continued its
previously upward trajectory in the early stages of 2013/14
and funding was vired from the CLG Homelessness Grant
cost centre to meet the anticipated shortfall, putting other
potential projects on hold as a result. The increased supply of
new Affordable Housing; introduction of more alternative
provision using both our own housing stock and some leased (51,321)
accommodation, reduced the need to use bed and breakfast
provision inn the latter part of the year, resulting in an
underspend against the final budget for the year. A carry
forward request is being made to resurrect some of the
projects that were not undertaken during 2013/14 as a result
of the uncertainty in this area.

Homelessness
Costs

Additional income was received in 2013/14, with £23k of small
Home Aid / Home value grant and loan repayments being repaid to the authority
Improvement Grants| by the clients. It is not possible to budget for this income as

there may be no grant or loan repayments in any one year.

(28,711)

Underspending in CLG Homelessness Grant for 2013/14,
based on projects completed by 31st March 2014. Local
authorities are free to carry over underspent sums between
CLG Homelessness | financial years. A carry forward of this external grant balance
Grant is requested, in line with delegations given to the Head of
Strategic Housing, to allow use of the monies in line with CLG
expectations and existing commitments in respect of
homelessness prevention work and homeless support activity.

(17,869)

Underspending in employee costs where vacant hours exist in
Housing Strategy the establishment, but have neither been recruited to nor (11,249)
utilised on a project basis during 2013/14.

Minor Variations (6,227)

D Greening

H Reed

D Greening

J Hovells

Totall  (115,377)]

Page 64



Appendix B

General Fund Housing Portfolio / Housing Committee

Revenue Budget 2013/14 - Major Variances
from Final Revenue Budgets

Service Grouping Reason for Variance Amount Contact

Environment - Refuse and Environment

A delay in the appointment of the Empty Homes Officer post
resulted in an underspend of £17,450 and the CPO budget has
been underspent by £7,000 due to the time to take CPOs to

Housing Standards committee. A request for the carry forward of these budgets to (41,201)
2014/15 is included in Appendix C. The balance of £16,750 is
split over many account codes within the Housing Standards.
I\/_Ilscell_aneous . Due to an overachievement of HMO income of £10,023. (10,186)
Licensing - Housing
Minor Variations (8,759)
Total 60,146
Total for Housing Portfolio / Community Services Scrutiny Committee (175,523)

Page 65



Item

General Fund Housing Portfolio / Housing Committee

Revenue Budget 2013/14 - Carry Forward Requests

Request to Carry Forward Budgets from 2013/14 into 2014/15 and future years

Director of Customer & Community Services

Homelessness Costs - Funding was transferred into this cost centre during
2013/14 to meet the anticipated overspend in Bed and Breakfast expenditure.
This meant putting other potential homelessness projects on hold. Action taken
to reduce the increase in Bed and Breakfast costs was effective, and not all of
the additional resource allowed was utilised. It is requested to carry forward a
proportion of the under-spend to meet the cost of 3 specific projects. These are
an additional grant to Cambridge Cyrenians of £5k for an older persons project,
additional grant to Wintercomfort of £20k for the learning and development
service and an increase in Assessment and Support Officer hours on a
temporary basis to reduce registration waiting times on the housing register.

CLG Homelessness Grants - Carry forward of these external grant balances are
requested to allow existing commitments in respect of homelessness prevention
work and support activity to be fully met. This grant is no longer ring-fenced, but
local authorities are strongly encouraged to utilise the resource for the purpose it
was awarded, with the Head of Strategic Housing having delegated authority to
approve spending across the spending review period.

Director of Environment

Housing Standards - Carry forward of the underspend within the Empty Homes
Officer budget due to the delay in appointment of the two year fixed term
contracted post.

Housing Standards - Carry forward CPO revenue budget to continue to progress
CPOs that did not progress in 2013/14.

Energy Officer - Carry forward of funding into 2015/16 for the purchase of a

thermal camera for which a budget was allocated in 2013/14. The goods were
not delivered by 31/3 so a budget carry forward of £3,750 is requested.

Total Carry Forward Requests for Housing Portfolio / Community Services
Scrutiny Committee

Page 66

Request
£

37,930

17,870

17,450

7,000

3,750

84,000

Appendix C

Contact

D Greening

D Greening

Y O'Donnell

Y O'Donnell

Y O'Donnell



¥10¢ 8unr Jo pus 8y} a1048q
A@x1un mou si uona|dwod ssado0id

uonoajes ay) Jo Aujebs| ay) ainsua
0] yJom Buimoj|oy Inq 1o} pajonb Jom
BY} pue pauiluapl Usag Mou dAeY
soaladoud aauy] "j08loid seoe|d
Jaauold |eaQ uaais) ay} ybnouyy
paunuapl seiadoud jo Jaquinu

e 0} S)ijoJjal [ea uaalg) Jejdwaxa
1e pajabue} aq Buipuny Buiurewsal
8y} 1ey} pajoauip sey BuisnoH 1oy
J||D "09X3 pue YJoM SIU} Jo} puewap
Bulysiuiwip mou si aiay] "Jeak
[EIOUBUY SIU} Ul pUSS JO MET 10}
pajunoooe sey ‘siy} N0 PassIW OYym
1930 ypm uonounfuod ui Buipuny
pajeoo|je Ajjeuiblio asoyy Buisiioud
‘suone|[ejsul Jo Jaquinu pajwi|

e papuny A|iny sey [1ounod AN syl

9)9|dwo) sawayos

spJojpue|
OINH Uo siapJo juswabeuely

OAISS 0} OpI0Bp M JI d|ge|ieAe

aJe spunj Jey} ainNsus 0} juswalinbal
Aiojnjels e sl aloy| ‘jussald

Je palapisuod Bulag ale siapi0
juswabeuel wLBlU| ONH ON

saladoud aseyoind Alosjndwoo

0} 9S00UD M JI d|qe|leAR ale spuny
Jeyy ainsua o} Juswalinbai Alojniels
e s| aJay] ‘pansind Buiaq Apuaiind
sI saiadoud ¢ uo uonoe OdoH

sjuswwo? / uoneue|dxgy asueLiep

a xipuaddy

0003

puads
(+9pun)
JRLET N6

Gz (g2) €z 8Y

0 L 8 L

0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0

0003 0003 0003 0003
1ebpng
leuiq 0}
puadsg pasedwos uinpno 19bpng

aseyd-ay leulq

uinnO
- ddueLIeA

14

0§

00

0003

jebpng
leuibuo

syuar

ey y

ey y

Aey o

1991340
pear

Buisnoy 1ojoes

ajeAld o0} sjuswanoidw] 12ZSN\d
Aouaioiye Abisug
awayos
uone)palooy Auadold S-.P_%&
()
S
slapiO
swabeuep - SONH ofdad
(s0d0) s1epi0
aseyaind Alosindwo) €9LAd
9y
uonduosaqg jendes

uinpnQ - 1/€102 196png jeyded

99)Jlwwo,) BuisnoH / 01]0j310d BuisSnoH pun4 |elduds)



1098l04d 8y} Jo uona|dwod

ajeyl|ioey 0} palinbai si y1/¢L0Z Ul
palluapl 824N0Ssal JO adue|eq ay} Jo
Buiseyday ‘paieoojfe si1ebpng |ejo]
000°0Z| ®U} JO Japulewal sy} uaym
G1/71L0Z Iun 38|dwoo 89 jou [|Im Ing
‘Aemiapun Mou s| peoy }oyJewMaN
GZ1 e sanioe) 8y} epelbdn 0} IOA

sjuswwo? / uoneue|dxgy asueLiep

a xipuaddy

0003

puads
(+9pun)
JRLET N6

JeaA ay) 1noybnouy) sjuswalia/sjuswisnipe [eoluyos) eIA -
(Ysg ‘wodey Bumeg 1ebpng ay) jo Med se) 8joAo 8a)IWWOD Alenuer ay) Ul -

(Y4IN ‘M8Iney [eloueUl JBBA-PIN 8Y} JO Jed se) Jequiejdses ul -

(sysenba. piemioy Au1ed pue Buiiodal uinyno) a[oAd aapIwWWOD Ajnp/aunp ay} ul -

:panoidde pue pajie}ap aJe pue

sjoefoud pue sewwelboud |eyded mau jo [erosdde -
spouad |elpueuly aininy ojul puads [eyded paseydal -

Jeah |eroueuly snoinald ay) woly puads |euded paseydal -

;108|181 0) 3 pue g seolpuaddy ul epew aq Aew syebpng [euly pue jeulblio ussmiaq sebueyd

¥e (gg) A4 Gl
ve (gg) A4 Gl
6 )] Ll 02
0003 0003 0003 0003
jobpng
leuid 0}
puadsg pasedwos uinpno 19bpng
aseyd-ay leuld
winpnO
- ddueLIeA

S.S

.S

0oL

0003

jebpng
leuibuo

BuisnoH Joj |leQ

(o]

]

suoilsiAoid [ejol (@))]

©

o

pEOY 18} IBWMBN
Bulusain q Gz 1e senoe) epeibdn 6cSNd
19210 uonduosag e

peo lepde

uinpnO - ¥1/€102 396png jeyded

99)Jlwwo,) BuisnoH / 01]0j}10d BuisSnoH pun4 |e1duds)



awuwelboid

(€89's) (rr1'8) (ogo'y) |(2922) juawisanu] BuisnoH aininy puny 0} Bujulewas saainosal |ejided [enpisay
8 €81°G 166 166 swysaAu| L-p-| sidieoay Ang 0} Jybry paulejey ooads 1oy pasiew-1e3
8 009°C 080 080 uondwapay jqeQ ainjny o} epise-}os
19z (viv'e) |(08L's) |veTv €05 Jea ul seduejeg (03 uonnquyuoY) /o dsn
(24%)] (Zverr) |(zve‘r) |(2ve‘LL) 3/q saouejeg |[epde)
19v‘C (FLv'e)  [(08L'S) |pez'y £0S $92In0S3Y Jo }oyaq / (snjding) 30N
(LL¥'6E) 0 0 0 (g€1°2) (ge1'2) |ozs‘e (¢oLzz) |(zzs‘se) |(1LSL'L2) sedinosay [eyded Buisnoy [ejo)
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 Buimouiog [epuspnid
(691'Y) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 (Buisno e|gepioyy) suonnquiuog sJtadojersq
(959'2) 0 0 0 (688) ¢l |(688) 1€2°1 (0v9) (228'1)  |(998°1L) (49 / sjuswiAeday ueoT / diysisumQ paieys / sjuel) seoinosay [ended Jayio
(ozg'LL) | |0 0 0 (606°2) zL |(6062) |169°C (90¥'9)  |(z60°0L) |((Z9L°2) [exdeD jo Buioueuly enusnsy 108410
0 0 0 0 0 L0 (081) (081) 0 0 suopnqgLuoY Jus!D
(6£9°C1) 0 0 0 (8z8‘1) oL |(8zg'L) |8z8L (028°2) |(869'6) |(vLe°2L) AN / VI
(89t°9) 0 0 0 (605°}) 6 |(60S'L) |60S‘L (006°L)  |(6O¥'E) |(80€'S) (sbuiem@ pue puen) sydisosy [eyded Joyi0
0 0 0 0 0 g8 |0 (c09L)  |(€09'L) |0 0 (ep1sy-19S 1g0Q) sidieoey Ang 0} 1ybry
(¥88) 0 0 0 0 8 |0 (coz'¢)  |(eos'e) |0 0 (uomisinboy / ping maN Joj paulejay) sidisosy Ang 0} by
(G6%) 0 0 0 0 g8 |0 L (oot) (Lb) (Ltb) (8sn [eseuLD) s)diBo8Y Ang 0} 1By
$921n0say |eyden Buisnoy
286°'LY 1€ (28) 06€°C €606 eeL'LL  |(bez'Ty) zzsLL  |9sL'6T  |¥S9°LZ puadg |epded BuisnoH |ejoL
2911y 1€ (28) 06€°C £60°'6 eeL'bL  [(99LZL) |¥19'9L  |0¥8‘8Z  |688°9C puadg [epded VyH |ejol
8€S 0 0 0 0 0 20UBMO|| UOHEU|
elor Al 0 0 0 £6Y L |e6¥ (089) €96 eve'L 099 puads [eyde)d vVyH J8y0
006°L 0 0 006°1 0 9 |006'L (z62°1) g€l 126°L 006} juswiseAu| [eyded BuisnoH paieyeys
90¢ 0 0 0 901 s |ooL (201) S92 zl€ 002 SYIOM plepuels ebpuquie)
16812 0 0 0 096'S ¥ |096'S (196'G)  |OVLS LOL'LL  [226°01 piing meN YHH
G89'y 0 ¥9l zey 602°L ¢ |sog‘L (£207)  |8egC SLy'y 6YL'e Y00}S VHH uo puedg Jauyio
€09'0) 1€€ (152) 8G Gze'l z |69%°'L (6vs'L) |egz's z8.'6 €00'6 awuwelBbold sewoH jusdeq
puadg |eyded vyH
69/ 0 0 0 0 0 (89) 8Y8 916 69/ puadg |eyded BuisnoH pung [e1aua9 [e3o ]
G9L 0 0 0 0 Lo (89) 88 916 69/ BuisnoH pun4 |eseusg Jayi0
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 BuISNOH 8|qepIodY VHH-UON Ul JuswiseAu|
puadg jeyden BuisnoH pun4 |eiauag

$,0003 S,0003 | S.0003 | S.0003 | S.0003 S,0003 | S.0003 | S.0003 | S.0003

SLIVLOZ L1/910Z | LL/910Z | 9L/SLOZ | SLIVLOZ S9JON | puadg |@dueuep | wnpnQ | Jabpng

)sod aseyd-ay jjuaLny

19bpng Jea) Buiseyd-ay

3 XIAN3ddV

BuisnoH pun |eJdud5) 9 YYH - ue|d Jusawisaauj jeyden BuisnoH y1/€10Z

Page 69



Note

Appendix E Notes

Notes to the Housing Capital Investment Plan

Reason for Variance
The underspending of £68,000 is a combination of the following - a) an overspend on the Assessment
Centre on East Road of £15,000, where final invoices and retention sums were higher than anticipated, b)
no demand for the use of the budget to tackle unfit housing in the private sector (£20,000), c) an
overspend in respect of Disabled Facilities Grants of £27,000 and d) an underspend in Private Sector
Housing Grants and Loans of £149,000, where demand in the year was lower than previously
experienced.

A net underspend of £1,549,000 in decent homes expenditure during 2013/14 relates predominantly to
delivery of year 3 of the Planned Maintenance Contract, which was due to run until March 2014.
Overspending in heating ad boilers (£218,000), re-wiring (£85,000), doors (£67,000), kitchens (£26,000),
bathrooms (£7,000) and maijor voids (£253,000) was more than offset by underspending in masonry
decorating (£193,000) re-roofing (£1,030,000) roof strengthening (£299,000), window replacement
(£17,000), sulphate works (£101,000), chimneys (£90,000), smoke detectors (£8,000) health and safety
works (£68,000) wall structure work (£13,000) and fees and overheads (£501,000), where not all of the
planned work was completed during 2013/14, and where re-phasing of resources is required to allow
completion of the anticipated programme in later years. This includes re-phasing into 2014/15 in respect
of re-roofing (£946,000), roof structure works (£145,000), chimneys (£90,000), smoke detectors (£8,000),
health and safety works (£17,000) and wall structures (£13,000). Re-phasing into 2015/16 and beyond is
requested in respect of deferred masonry decorating (£193,000), sulphate works (£100,000), health and
safety works (£50,000) and to the end of the existing funding, 2028/29, in respect of sulphate works
(£204,000). Resource for heating and boilers (£218,000) has been brought forward into 2013/14 to fund
the apparent overspend, as works were completed ahead of schedule in this area. Contractor overheads
are requested to be re-phased pro rata to the re-phased work elements, with £173,000 into 2014/15, and
£19,000 into 2015/16 and beyond.

A net underspend of £2,077,000 was evident in 2013/14, combining underspending in a number of areas
where work is still required and funds will need to be re-phased, including; disabled adaptations (£60,000
into 2014/15), works to communal areas (£150,000 into 2014/15 and £376,000 into 2015/16), hard
surfacing works on HRA land (£24,000 into 2014/15), hard-surfacing recycling works (£142,000 into
2016/17), works to communal flooring (£50,000 into 2014/15), fencing (£15,000 into 2014/15), fire safety
works (£638,000 into 2014/15) and lifts (£28,000 into 2014/15). Contractor overheads are requested to be
re-phased pro rata to the re-phased work elements, with £144,000 into 2014/15, and £78,000 into
2015/16 and beyond. In addition to re-phasing, there was residual underspending in respect of asbestos
removal and disabled adaptation works. In addition to re-phasing £15,000 into 2014/15 in respect of
investment in fencing, it is proposed to carry forward £100,000 of the net underspend in the Housing
Capital Programme in 2013/14 into 2014/15 to allow the increase in fencing investment proposed as part
of the Labour Alternative Budget in February 2014 to be delivered with immediate effect. The desire to
invest in fencing at the higher level of £200,000 per annum on an ongoing basis will be considered as part
of the review of capital investment in the HRA Mid-Year Financial Review in the context of all future
investment priorities.

The apparent underspend in the new build programme in 2013/14 relates to the timing of the spend in
respect of the 146 new and re-development programme. A net resource of £5,960,000 is required to be
re-phased into 2014/15 and beyond to ensure that contractual commitments can be met. Payments are
made under the development contract once the developer has spent more on building out the Affordable
Housing element of the site than the notional value of the land that the market housing will occupy. The
timing of this is difficult to predict at project outset, as the length of time taken to get on site in each case
varies, dependent upon the number of existing residents that requires re-housing and any planning
constraints on the site. The net re-phasing combines slippage of resource for Roman Court, Barnwell
Road, Wadloes Road, Campkin Road , Colville Road, Stanesfield Road, Aylesborough Close, Atkins
Close and Water Lane, partially offset by use of resource for Latimer Close and Clay Farm slightly ahead
of profile against the latest capital plan.

Page 70



10

11

12

13

Approval was given for the 2013/14 Cambridge Standard allocation to be spent on a variety of
environmental projects across the city. Some of these projects are yet to be completed and resources of
£106,000 are requested to be carried forward into 2014/15 to allow these, and other projects to take
place.

Underspending of £1,900,000 in respect of the budget for work to re-develop Ditchburn Place is
requested to be re-phased into 2015/16 to allow this scheme to be progressed in phases across the next
2 years, following some delay in the early stages of the project in 2013/14. Overspending has occurred in
respect of Brandon Court (£85,000) where final costs were greater than anticipated due to the need to
undertake some remedial works following problems with a sub-contractor and in the budget for upgrade
and installation of emergency alarm equipment (£23,000), where the costs of upgrade for the sheltered
schemes identified were higher than originally anticipated.

Projects to upgrade aspects of the Orchard Housing Management System and to implement a new
Repairs IT Solution and Mobile Working Application have been completed, with underspending of
£23,000 and £12,000 respectively. The funding identified to procure an IT system for the Anti-Social
Behaviour Service is no longer required as the authority has opted to pilot use of the system deployed by
the Police Authority. Resources of £148,000 are requested to be rephased to complete the roofing work
to HRA commercial premises in Campkin Road. The remaining allocation from 2013/14 for buying back
ex-Council dwellings of £333,000 is also requested as a carry forward, to allow the authority to proceed
with acquisitions to ensure appropriate utilisation of retained right to buy receipts, which need 70% match
funding.

60 properties were sold in total during 2013/14. £400,000 of the capital receipt is available for general
use, while £1,603,000 of the overall capital receipt is identified as set-aside to be offset against the debt
associated with the unit no longer owned. A further £3,703,000 of right to buy receipts have been retained
by the local authority in 2013/14, but must be re-invested in financing up to 30% of additional social
housing units, provided this is done within a 3 year time frame.

Capital receipts totalling an estimated £1,509,000 in respect of the value of land transfer for the market
housing at Latimer Close, Barnwell Road and Stanesfied Road are now anticipated during 2014/15, at the
point at which the expenditure incurred by the developer in respect of the affordable housing element of
the site exceeds the value of the land and cash payments start to be made.

Slippage in the decent homes and other investment in the housing stock in 2013/14 resulted in a lower
than anticipated call on the use of funding from the major repairs reserve for the year. The balance of use
of the reserve (£1,828,000) will need to re-phased in line with the expenditure to ensure that sufficient
resource is available to finance the expenditure at year end.

Income was due from leaseholders in 2013/14 in relation to their share of the cost of major improvements
undertaken as part of the decent homes programme (£122,000) and was also received from private
residents in relation to contributions towards, or repayments of, private sector housing repair grants
(£58,000).

Due to slippage in the housing capital plan in 2013/14, the use of revenue funding for capital purposes
was significantly less than anticipated. A request to increase the use of revenue funding of capital
expenditure in 2014/15 and beyond by the £2,909,000 not utilised in 2013/14, will ensure that there is
sufficient funding to meet the rephased expenditure requested above.

Homes and Communities Agency Grant of £425,000 was received in 2013/14 for 3 schemes which
started on site and 1 scheme which reached completion. An additional £889,000 is due for schemes
which were expected to start on site during the year, but which have been delayed until early 2014/15, the
point at which this resource is now anticipated to be received.

Page 71



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 72



Agenda ltem 12

A A

ﬁ Cambridge City Council Item
==
To: Executive Councillor for Housing: Councillor Kevin

Price

Report by: Sabrina Walston, Housing Development Manager
Relevant scrutiny Housing Committee  01/07/2014
committee:
Wards affected: All Wards

Affordable Housing Programme
Key Decision

NOT FOR PUBLICATION: Appendix 2 relates to an item during which the
public is likely to be excluded from the meeting by virtue of paragraph (No 6)
of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.

1. Executive summary

In June 2012, the Executive Councillor for Housing approved a three year
rolling programme of housing sites in the Council's ownership for
consideration for development, redevelopment or disposal.

This report provides a review of the programme and specifically seeks
approval of a revised three year rolling programme that includes sites to be
investigated in 2014/15 to 2016/17.

The report sets this request for approval to the revised three year
programme in the context of;

§ the delivery of Affordable Housing through the planning system
§ the new Council housing programme

2. Recommendations
The Executive Councillor is recommended:

§ To approve revisions to the 3 Year Rolling Programme 2014/15 to
2016/17 in the context of the wider Affordable Housing Programme

3. Background

Report Page No: 1 Page 73



Over the last twenty years most new Affordable Housing has been delivered
by Registered Providers (RPs) working with house-builders and developers
through the planning system. Following a relaxation on some financial
constraints through ‘self-financing’ the Council has taken the opportunity to
provide some balance to this through the implementation of its own new
Council House building programme.

As the main provider of housing in Cambridge, the reasons why the Council
has its own programme are as follows;

§ Provide additional Affordable Housing to meet the shortfall in
Cambridge and to replace the loss of Affordable Housing through the
Right to Buy.

§ Replace some of the Council’s existing housing that no longer meets
current day standards and is becoming less popular with residents.

§ Build new house types that will better meet the overall mix of
Affordable Housing needed in the future.

§ Improve the energy efficiency of the Council’s housing.

Affordable Housing Programme

The Homes and Communities Agency (HCA) introduced a significantly
different way of allocating grant to RPs in 2011. RPs were invited to bid for
grant in a single bid round to allocate all available grant to the end of March
2015. In the new context of ‘self financing’, local authorities were able to bid
for grant too. The Council secured grant funding to part fund a programme
of building 146 Affordable Housing dwellings on Council owned land, this
programme has been termed the 146 Programme. Fortunately, the
Council’'s preferred RP partner for the growth sites Cambridgeshire
Partnerships Limited (CPL) was also successful in securing grant and
therefore the planning for the delivery of the first Affordable Housing on the
growth sites has been able to continue.

Table 1 below clearly illustrates the adverse impact of the recession on the
delivery of new Affordable Housing and how dependent the national system
for the delivery of new Affordable Housing is on the private house building
market and industry. However, with CPL securing grant and house-building
continuing on the Trumpington Meadows, Glebe Farm and Clay Farm sites
on the Southern Fringe the table also shows that the rate of completions of
Affordable Housing is picking up. The development of other sites in the city,
such as the Fire Station and the The Marque site on Hills Road, have
increased completions.

Report Page No: 2 Page 74



Table 1 - Numbers of New Affordable Housing Completions

Actual

2006.07 225

2007.08 239

2008.09 282

2009.10 281+ 290 Key Worker - Addenbrookes

2010.11 46
2011.12 3
2012.13 58

2013.14 410

Estimate

2014.15 420

2015.16 447

Three Year Rolling Programme

A new approach to the review of the use of Council land accounted for in
the Housing Revenue Account was introduced in July 2008 following
Committee scrutiny. It was agreed by the Executive Councillor that a three
year rolling programme of sites be brought forward each vyear for
consideration for development, redevelopment or disposal. The annual
review keeps members appraised of progress with sites and offers the
opportunity to introduce new sites for investigation.

Appendix 1 provides an update of the schemes within the three year rolling
programme that are already under investigation.

Appendix 2 is the revised three year rolling programme that is requested to
be approved. This Appendix is confidential at this stage in keeping with the
process agreed at the July 2008 Community Services Scrutiny Committee.
However, following Executive Councillor approval of the inclusion of new
sites in the three year programme, any tenants or leaseholders directly
affected will be advised immediately, together with the Ward Members and
tenant representatives as the three year programme will immediately be in
the public domain following the Committee meeting.

When reading Appendix 1, Committee Members may wish to note in
particular that for 69-159a (Lichfield Road (odd nos.) and Campkin Rd Ph2
(including 1-20 and 81-91 Hawkins Road garages) the existing residential
blocks have been removed from the programme but that there is some merit
in continuing to review the potential of the redevelopment of any non-
residential areas and open spaces at these sites.

Report Page No: 3 Page 75



Once sites have been investigated and if they are considered feasible and
viable proposed schemes are brought to Committee to gain scheme specific
approval to commence the development. The schemes that have gained
scheme specific approval and are now on site as part of the 146
Programme have been removed. These are;

Latimer Close
Barnwell Road
Stanesfield Road
Colville Road
Atkins Close

W W W W n

New Council House Programme

Twenty eight new Council homes have now been completed since 2010 in
Harris Road, Cockerell Road, Teversham Drift, Church End and Seymour
Street. Within the twenty eight dwellings a mix of houses and flats has been
provided, these dwellings have ranged from a five bedroom wheelchair
accessible house to a one bedroom flat built to higher than usual
accessibility standards for over 50s.

Based on the three year rolling programme grant has been secured from the
HCA through the bid round mentioned above to provide a further 126 (146
including the redeveloped Seymour Court, now Janes Court) new Council
homes by the end March 2015.

4. Implications
(a) Financial Implications

Financial implications will be assessed and reported when individual
schemes considered suitable for development, redevelopment or disposal
are brought forward to this Committee for scrutiny and for approval by the
Executive Councillor for Housing.

The cost and funding of the Council's new build programme will be
continually reviewed as part of the Council's Medium Term Strategy and
budget setting and review cycles.

(b) Staffing Implications
Staff in the Housing Development Team project manages the delivery of the
Affordable Housing Programme. Projects are monitored by the Affordable

Housing Development Programme Board, a group of officers that meets

Report Page No: 4 Page 76



quarterly. The Board includes representatives from the Housing
Development Team, City Homes, Housing Advice and Housing Strategy,
with Procurement, Finance, Internal Audit, and Legal staff as corresponding
members.

(c) Equality and Poverty Implications

A series of EQIAs have been undertaken for the Council House
Programme, the Housing Development Service and for individual schemes.
The EQIAs mainly highlight the benefits of the Council retaining direct
control of new housing development itself to ensure a focus on the delivery
of housing that meets a diverse range of housing needs. Part of the
assessment underlines the need for Affordable Housing to help those most
likely to suffer poverty as well as ways in which new Affordable Housing will
directly save money for tenants, such as energy saving measures.

Each individual scheme will continue be subject to an EQIA at the feasibility
stage and prior to scheme approval.

(d) Environmental Implications

All new Affordable Housing on the growth sites and in the Council’s
programme are built to at least Level 4 of the Code for Sustainable Homes.

(e) Procurement

To facilitate the development of Council housing sites the Council has an
agreement, the Affordable Housing Development partnership (AHDp), with a
house-builder/developer and four Registered Providers. This contract is
coming to an end, therefor another procurement is proposed by the Housing
Development Team to enable a similar working relationship with a
developer partner to deliver Council new build homes.

(f) Consultation and Communication Implications

Staff in the Housing Development team have structured meetings with staff
from CPL in respect of the delivery of Affordable Housing on the growth
sites and attend regular forums with other RP providers.

The Council’s approach to the involvement of residents affected by the three
year programme process and the Council’'s new house-building programme
has been reviewed recently and was the subject of a report to the January
2013 Community Services Scrutiny Committee. One important change in
the way that residents will be engaged was agreed. In future the first
collective meeting with residents of an affected scheme will be held at least

Report Page No: 5 Page 77



4 — 6 weeks prior to a report coming to the scrutiny committee for
consideration.

Consultation is also carried out with residents and neighbours once
schemes have been proposed by the architects in order to receive any
comments on the plans.

Internal communication is led by the Affordable Housing Programme Board
meetings and any other ad hoc meetings required to plan

If any sites that are occupied by residents are recommended for
redevelopment the Home Loss Policy covers the financial compensation
available to residents and how they will be supported to move should the
site gain approval.

(g0 Community Safety

All new Affordable Housing is assessed against Secure by Design criteria.
5. Background papers

These background papers were used in the preparation of this report:

None.

6. Appendices

Appendix 1- Three Year Affordable Housing Programme 2013.14 to
2014.15 Review

Appendix 2 - Three Year Affordable Housing Programme 2014.15
to 2016.17 (Exempt Information)

7. Inspection of papers

To inspect the background papers or if you have a query on the report
please contact:

Author’s Name: Alan Carter
Author’'s Phone Number: 01223 — 457948
Author’s Email: alan.carter@cambridge.qgov.uk

Report Page No: 6 Page 78



‘awayds mau Aue buiseyd je osje
pue smojebunq ayj 1oy Ajjeaijioads suondo je Buyooj
Buipnjoul Aemiapun si1 uonebnsaau| “smojebunq

pue sje|} a8y} JO S}SISU0D 8)IS papuswe siy | LS ez yinosg |uoydwni] | Aepp A9jsuy 8z 03 6
‘leuo}ipuosun
sl Juswaalby juswdojanaq ayj uaym sawwelboid
9y} wouj panowal aq o] -awwelibo.id 9y
jo Med "10Z dunr ul papiwagns aq o} uoledl|ddy
"1ybnos aoiApe uoneoljdde-ald ‘paulejuiew (L/LL
aq 0} ale Aayj JI Juswi)saAul olige} adinbal sebeleb Jo Jealu) sabeieb
IV “Ajpuaind ploA 9,06 Bulhlies saebeleb bunsix3 9 0 yinos Aaqqy peoy ufj3
‘leuon3ipuosun )
S| Juswaalby Juswdojanaqg ay} usaym =
awuweaboid ay} wouy parowsal aq o] “awwelbouid a
9¥| * Slopjoyasesa| om] Bunueosap ul sAejep (s.e Buipnjoul }nq
0] anp awayos ay} 9)8|dwoo 0} palinbal aq |Im Ajuo suana) peoy
Juswdojenap paseyd ‘paroidde uoissiwiad Buiuue|d 02 (0] YloN Angqiy unjdwed ey L-86
‘leuoljipuosun
S| Juswaalby Juswdojaraqg ayj usaym
awuweliboud ayj wouy parowas aq o] ‘swweiboud
9’| JO Med ‘paniwgns uonesldde Buluue|d
‘POYSI|OWSP MOU — |00YdS AIasinu Jawioy JO 8IS 9 0 ynos Keqqy peoy sao|pep
spun
ssalbo.d HV MSN mm_::_wm__w_nw_. mm:mmn_._v PIep vL/€102C
9Aljedipuj - ]

7102 AINf | 1 MaIASY "91°GL0Z O} #1°€L0Z dwwelbold BuisnoH s|qeployy JesA @iyl — | xipuaddy




Jayun4 ‘JuawdojaAspal 0] Sjulelisuod Jo Jaquinu sobpaH | sabeaecy Aepp sunpN
e so)edlpul Jeowdasy| AQ yJom Ayljiqisesy |enlu| Q0 ¥ 0 YLION sbury | peoy uoiawe)
‘o|qises} sI JuswdoaAnapal
[[eWS B Jaylaym auiwlialep 0} padinbal yiom
Jayun4 ‘Juswdo|aAspal 0} Sjulelisuod Jo Jaquinu sobpoH sabelen
e sa)eolpul jleowdasy Ag dJom Ajjigises) [eniu] 4 0 UHON sbury spjal4 uimped
"9|qIsea} sl Juswdojanapal
[[eWS B Jaylaym auiwlialep 0} padinbal yiom uojisay)d
Jayun4 "pajajdwod Ajjenued yiom Ayjiqises) ey | 0 UHON Jseq Kepp [epuayy
‘leuonjipuodsun Si Jusawadaliby
juawdojanaqg ay} uaym swwesboad ayj wouy
paAowal aq 0] ‘awwalboid 9| JO Med ‘paAladal 9s0])
uoissiwiad Buluue|d ‘pasnoy-al syuapisal Jo Ajuolep ybnoioqsopby
‘€| uep awayos e ssaiboud 0} pajuelb |eaosddy 91 0z YMON Ainqly | 0G 0} 6€ pue eg o |
‘leuoljipuodsun si juawadauby Jusawdo|anaq ©
9y} uaym awweusboud ayj wouy parowal 0
9q 0] ‘awweiboid 9¥| Jo }ed ‘Juswdojaasp
0] Buissaiboid se swwelbold woly parowal 8q O]
‘awwelbold pasinal Buniemy ‘unbaq sey bBuisnoya. ‘peoy pug usaig
pue Aemiapun ale SjuBUS)} Y)IM SUOISSNISIP pa|iela( uo}1say)n o 0} 8€Z pue
‘€] uep ul swayos e ssalbolid 0} pajuelb jeaoiddy d) ez YloN )seJ | aueT J9)epM\ eyl 01 9
‘leuoljipuosun
sl Juswaalby juswdojanaq ayj uaym swwelboad
9y} wouj paAnowal aq o] -awwelibo.id 9yl
JO Jued “Jusuiwwil SI 8)Is uo uels ‘buljjemp buisnoy
19y1ew auo pue Buljjemp BuisnoH a|qepJoyy auo u | eate Bullip pasnsip
10} $1.02Z |dy ul uoissiwiad Buiuueld pauieb ajs siy | L 0 yinog | oy dwniy Kepp Aoysuy

7102 AINf | 1 MaIASY "91°GL0Z O} #1°€L0Z dwwelbold BuisnoH s|qeployy JesA @iyl — | xipuaddy




s| Juswaalby Juswdojanag ayj uaym
awuwelboud ayj wouy parowal aq 0] “awwelbo.id
9971 J0 Med i7L0g dunf Ul apew a4 ||im uoleoljdde
ue pue ybnos uaaq sey aoiApe uoneoldde-ald "SIy}
aAjosal 0] Buissalbold si jooyas ay) yum anbojeiq
‘looyos juaoelpe ayj o) sanssi buyed pasiel

1By} Jno paLued uoneynsuod Ajunwwo) "buisnoH sobpoH sabelierc) peoy
9|9epIoly %001 ‘sbuljjamp 6 Joj dn umelp swaydg UHON sbury supjmeH 9Z¢-10¢
‘awwe.sboud ay) wouy panowal aq o] -diysiaumo
S [1ouno) ayy ul JoN "doysyiom / abeleb e Ajjuaiing yinog | Aeswoy | j9943s 9jABuy £6-1S
‘Jeuol3ipuodun si Juawaalby Jusawdojanag
3y} uaym swwesboud ayj woiy paaowal aq o] 9so|H :oﬂmc__oﬂ_._
"awwelboid 9| 0 Med ‘|0z aunp ul uoneoidde UOJUIH ‘sabeigp
ue Jwqgns 0} anq ‘ybnos adiApe uonesiidde-aid ynosg Aiay) Py uinoqfay
'9]qIsesy sI Juswdojanapal (PY lleydn €1gy 1L
[|lews e Jaylaym sulwlialap 0} palinbal yiom uaamjaq) sabeuer)
Jayund "pajs|dwod Ajjeied sJom Ajjiqisesy [eniu] UHON | Aeswoy peoy |leydn
‘o|qises} sI JuswdoaAsapal
[[ewWsS B Jaylaym aululiaep 0} palinbad yiom
Jayun4 "JuswdojaAapal 0} Sjuleljsuod Jo Jaquinu sobpaH sobe.eg
e sojeolpul Jeowdasy] Aq ylom Ajljiqises) [eniu) YLON sbuny 9S0|9 weyytep
‘9|qIsea} sl Juswdo|anapal
[[ewWsS B Jaylaym auluiaep 0} palinbal yiom
Jayun4 ‘JuswdojaAapal 0} Sjuleljsuod Jo Jaquinu syIp3 sobe.en
e sajeolpul jeowdasy Aq ylom Ajljiqises) [eniu) ynos usanp Kepa pliyung

‘9|qisea) sl Juswdojanapal
|[ews e Jayiaym asuiwia)ep o) palinbal yiom

7102 AINf | 1 MaIASY "91°GL0Z O} #1°€L0Z dwwelbold BuisnoH s|qeployy JesA @iyl — | xipuaddy




sey Jnoqyblau se uiebe pJemlo) swed d8)Is SIy | L 0 ynos uaanp GG Jeau 0} pue]
‘'saoeds uado
pue seaJe |eljuapisal-uou Aue Jo Juswdojanapal
ay} Jo |enpuajod ayj mainal 0} Buinunuoo
ul JIBW BwWos s alay) 1eyl Inq awwelboud ay)
wioJly paAowal aq ||IM S}20]|q |el3uapisal Busixa
3y} 1By}l uoisnjouod ay} 0} po| sey Aunwiwod
|ED0| BY} pue SjuUapISal YIM uole}nsuod buipnjoul
yiom Ajjigisesy jeniu) -Aipune| pue |jey Allunwwod (*sou ppo) peoy
Jo uoisinold-al pue Juswdojaaspal sapn|ou| o A% yinog | abpusjon |  plauyail) e6SL-69
‘unbaq 1A jou uonebnsaAul
pajielaq °sie|} pjoyases| { ale aiay) syun N
BuisnoH ajgepioyy 0Z @Y} 0} Uolippe u| 'salj|ioe} UOJUIH (908-99 wﬂmwt
BuijoAoal yym yed Jed olgnd e sepnjoul 8)iS 8l 0C yinos Asyo Z Ud Py 3lIIAG6D
sabeio
pape)s 194 jou yiom Ayjigises 'BQL/6 syyp3 | juadelpe pue aso|)
JO 9pIs Jayy)ld pue| sepnjou| ‘Juswdojanapal |enuajod 9 L ynos uaanp SSaJIJUaA BQ| 0} 6
Juswwo) - SSOT | SSUOH | piem SLIVLOZ
spun HY | sHun HY A9
‘9|qIsea} sI JuswdojaAapal
[|ewsS e Jaylaym aulwiaiep 0} palinbal yiom
Jayun4 ‘JuswdojaAapal 0} Sjulelisuod Jo Jaquinu sobpaH sobeuen
e s8jeolpul Jeowdasy] Aq yiom Ayjigisesy [eniu| 90} ¢ 0 ULON sbury 9S0|D SIIM

‘leuoijipuosun

7102 AINF | 1 MaIAY "91°GL0Z O} #1°€L0Z dwwelbold BuisnoH s|qeployy JesA @iyl — | xipuaddy




‘paLels sobpoH sabelen
194 J0U YJom Ajljiqisea eyis abeseb e Ajjuaiin) Z 0 YLOoN sbury] | 8nuaAy p|aYMON
(s019 yump.o4
v¢-¢ pue aso|D
"19A Aemispun ybnoioqsajAy
J0U uonebisaAul pajielaq ‘pue| ay} Jo asn Jood ye-Gl
ayew Aay} pue Jood si saiadold ay} JO uonpuod pue pue Aepp winjnfgA
JnoAe| pue ubisep ay| "BuisnoH o|qeployy Of dy} 0} G/-G9) Z Ud @seid
uollIppe Ul Slep|oyases|  apnjoul syel) bunisixa ay| | umouy JON (0% YMON Anquy ybnoioqsaBy
‘saoeds uado a
pue seaJe |eljuapisal-uou Aue Jo Juswdojanapal
ay} Jo |enpuajod ayj mainal 0} Buinuiuoo
ul JUBW BWos s alay) jey) Inq awwelboud ayj wouy
paAowal aq ||IM S)}20|q |eluapisal Bunsixa ay)
1By} UoISN|ou0D 8y} 0} pa| Sey JJOM Jaylny ‘J19ASMOH
*19Y1960] paJtapIsuod 8q pjnoys sals jey) sjsabbns
ylom Ajjiqisea) Ajes pue swwelbold buljjoy Jes A (sobeueb peoy
¢ 9y] ul papnjoul aq 0} paroidde usaaq Ajsnoinaid sunmeH L6-18
sey ajls abeleb ay| "suun a|gepoyy Gz ayj 0} pue gz-1 Buipnjoul)
uoljippe ul siepjoyases| / apnjoul siej} Buisixe ay | 0€ T4 ULON Aingly Zud py unjdwe)
‘Aemuspun uonebljseAu| “pug| [Ioun0d) pue umo
uo mojebunq e pjing o0} uoissiw.lad Buiuue|d painoss ysup3 Aepp ueysyinpa

'710Z AN | 18 MaInaY "91°GL0Z O} 1 '€10Z dwwelBold BuisnoH ajgepioyy Jea A 9a1yL — | xipuaddy




Page 84

JeaA jse|
palljuapl aUON

juawiwo)

Sso.9
s)yun
HVY

SSOT
sjun
HV

SOWOH
Ao

pJeM

91L/510¢C

7102 AINf | 1 MaIASY "91°GL0Z O} #1°€L0Z dwwelbold BuisnoH s|qeployy JesA @iyl — | xipuaddy




By virtue of paragraph(s) 6 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 85



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 86



Agenda Iltem 13

& cambridge City Council Iltem

S =

To: Executive Councillor for Housing: Councillor Kevin
Price

Report by: Housing Development Manager — Sabrina Walston

Relevant scrutiny Housing 1/7/2014

committee: Scrutiny
Committee

Wards affected: Abbey Arbury Castle Cherry Hinton Coleridge

East Chesterton King's Hedges Market Newnham
Petersfield Queen Edith's Romsey Trumpington
West Chesterton

PROCUREMENT OF AN AFFORDABLE HOUSING DEVELOPMENT
PARTNER

Key Decision

1. Executive summary

This report proposes the procurement of a house builder partner to develop,
or re-develop, Affordable Housing to be owned and managed by Cambridge
City Council across a number of sites in the city. This could include market
housing, Affordable Housing as well as mixed use, commercial and housing
developments.

2. Recommendations

The Executive Councillor is recommended:

To approve the procurement of a development partner.

To give delegated authority to the Director of Community Services, following
consultation with the Housing Revenue Account Principal Accountant and
the Head of Legal Services, to complete the procurement process and legal

documentation to select a development partner.

To note that any proposed Development Agreements for individual sites will
be brought back to Committee for scheme specific approval.

Report Page No: 1 Page 87



3. Background

In the Affordable Housing Development partnership — 500 programme
report of March 2010, delegated authority was given to procure a
development partner to work in conjunction with the City Council to deliver
Affordable Housing, to be owned and managed by the Council. Keepmoat
was selected and are contracted in a Framework Agreement with the City
Council until February 2016 to deliver the new build Council houses 146
programme funded through the HCA’s grant regime. Four Registered
Providers (RPs) were also included in the Framework Agreement because
at the time of the procurement the Council did not have the financial
freedoms to build its own Affordable Housing. However, thus far the Council
has not requested that the RPs complete any work through the Framework
Agreement because the financial freedoms were gained by the Council to
build its own Affordable Housing.

Therefore to help deliver the objectives of improving Council House
standards and adding to the Affordable Housing stock in Cambridge, a new
procurement is proposed that offers the opportunity to refresh and broaden
the scope of organisations building the City Council’s Affordable Housing
stock.

The 3 year programme for Affordable Housing, which Keepmoat have been
delivering, identifies small and medium sized sites to be assessed for
feasibility for development. The new procurement will seek to provide a
partner that can continue to deliver small and medium sites and to help
deliver more complex schemes, for example mixed use schemes with
residential and commercial uses, and potentially to provide initial information
on more strategic sites.

It is proposed to find a partner that will share the Council’s principles via a
transparent and robust process. An example of this is the Homes &
Communities Agency’s DPP2 Framework Agreement. Legal and
Procurement advice is currently being sought to establish the best
procurement route to provide the scope of services.

In April 2013 the Homes & Communities Agency established a Delivery
Partner Panel (version 2) which gives public sector users a ready checked
framework of development partners. The framework was procured through
a fully compliant European Union (EU) procurement process, and as such, it
can be used to procure development speedily via a mini competition, as
opposed to the Council advertising a tender in the Official Journal of the EU.
This is one of the procurement routes that is currently being considered.

If a fully compliant EU procurement is required it can take approximately 18
months to complete, depending on the complexity of the procurement. This,

Report Page No: 2 Page 88



together with widening the scope of the partner, is the reason for requesting
approval now when the Council has a partner until February 2016.

4. Implications
(@) Financial Implications

This procurement will help demonstrate if the Council are currently, and
likely in future to, receive value for money when developing land.

(b) Staffing Implications

Staff within the Housing Development team will be responsible for
overseeing and managing the process in line with the Council’s project
management guidelines and Contract Procedure Rules. A project team will
be arranged to meet regularly and include, but not limited to,
representatives from City Homes, Legal Services, Housing Development,
Technical services, Business Management (housing finance) and
Procurement.

(c) Equality and Poverty Implications

An Equalities Impact Assessment was undertaken for the Council’s new
build programme as a whole in January 2013. Part of the assessment
underlines the need for Affordable Housing to help those most likely to
suffer poverty as well as ways in which new Affordable Housing will directly
save money for tenants such as energy saving measures.

(d) Environmental Implications

The procurement of a development partner will not have any environmental
implications; however, the Council’s current housing specification is for new
housing to be a minimum of level 4 of the code for sustainable homes.

(e) Procurement

All City Council procurement policies and procedures will be adhered to with
internal procurement colleagues as part of the project board in helping to
select a development partner.

(f) Consultation and Communication Implications
Internal consultation has taken place with affected sections within the
Council. External communication will take place following a successful

procurement. Resident representatives will be involved in the scoring panel
for the final tender award.

Report Page No: 3 Page 89



5. Background papers

Affordable Housing Development Partnership — 500 programme —
25/3/2010.
http://democracy.cambridge.gov.uk/Data/Community%20Services%20Scruti
ny%20Committee/20100325/Agenda/ltem%207 %20-
%Z20Affordable%20Housing%20Development%20Partnership%20500%20P
artnership.pdf

HCA Delivery Partner Panel 2 — A guide for Public Sector Users.
http://www.homesandcommunities.co.uk/dpp

6. Appendices

Affordable Housing Development Programme (AHDP) EQIA
7. Inspection of papers

To inspect the background papers or if you have a query on the report
please contact:

Author’s Name: Sabrina Walston
Author’'s Phone Number: 01223 - 457 910
Author’s Email: sabrina.walston@cambridge.gov.uk

Report Page No: 4 Page 90



Agenda Iltem 14

,Lb\. Cambridge City Council Iltem
B
To: Executive Councillor for Housing: Clir Kevin Price
Report by: Jas Lally — Head of Refuse and Environment
Relevant scrutiny Housing Scrutiny Committee: 1% July 2014
committee:
Wards affected: All

POWER TO CHARGE FOR CERTAIN ENFORCEMENT ACTION UNDER
THE HOUSING ACT 2004 (the “ACT”)

Not a key decision

1. Executive summary

The Act enables local authorities to make a reasonable charge as a means
of recovering certain expenses incurred in serving an improvement notice,
making a prohibition order, serving a hazard awareness notice, taking
emergency remedial action, making an emergency prohibition order, or
making a demolition order. The expenses are in connection with the
inspection of the premises, the subsequent consideration of any action to be
taken and the service of notices.

Authorities are able to charge for each course of action including, where
emergency remedial action is taken, for any subsequent notices.

In March 2012 the Community Services Scrutiny Committee (decision
12/25/CS) gave permission to seek to recover the costs against the
recipient of the Notice or Order. This paper is a review of the charges set in
this decision in light of recent case law.

2. Recommendations

The Executive Councillor for Housing is recommended to approve the
attached policy document as detailed in Appendix A which supercedes the
previous Policy Document Charging for certain enforcement action.

3. Background

The preparation and service of enforcement notices is a time consuming
and costly process.

Section 49 of the Housing Act 2004 (“the Act”) gives the Council the power
to make a reasonable charge as a means of recovering certain expenses

Report Page No: 1 Page 91



incurred by them in serving an improvement notice, making a prohibition
order, serving a hazard awareness notice, taking emergency remedial
action, making an emergency prohibition order, or making a demolition
order. This provision does not relate to the cost of any remedial action
taken by the authority either with or without agreement. These are separate
charges covered by section 31 and Schedule 3 to the Act.

The Act provides for the appropriate national authority to set a maximum
charge to be made by authorities (no such maximum has been set).
Authorities however are reminded that they should charge only the
reasonable costs of enforcement.

In 2008 a survey' by the Chartered institute of Environmental Health found
that approximately half of Authorities used the power to recover costs
outlined above and two thirds that they expected the need for enforcement
activity to increase.

e The expenses recoverable are, in the case of the service of an
improvement notice or a hazard awareness notice, the expenses
incurred in—

(a) determining whether to serve the notice,
(b) identifying any action to be specified in the notice, and
(c) serving the notice.

e Given the informal nature of hazard awareness notices and the fact
that there are no appeal provisions against a hazard awareness notice
it is not intended to charge for the service of them.

¢ In the case of emergency remedial action under section 40, the
expenses incurred in—

(a) determining whether to take such action, and
(b) serving the notice required by subsection (7) of that section.

¢ In the case of a prohibition order under section 20 or 21 of this Act, an
emergency prohibition order under section 43 or a demolition order
under section 265 of the Housing Act 1985, the expenses incurred
in—

(a) determining whether to make the order, and

1

http://www.cieh.org/uploadedFiles/Core/Policy/Publications_and_information_services/Policy_publications/Publications/Housing%20s
urvey.pdf

Report Page No: 2 Page 92



(b) serving copies of the order on persons as owners of premises.

e A reasonable charge may also be made as a means of recovering
expenses incurred by them in—

(a) carrying out any review under section 17 or 26, or
(b) serving copies of the authority’s decision on such a review.

A breakdown of the time and cost involved of undertaking these actions is
included in Appendix A. Authorities are able to charge for each course of
action including, where emergency remedial action is taken, for any
subsequent notices.

Section 50 of the Act sets out the powers available to a local authority for
recovering any charge they make under section 49 powers. These are,
following service of the Order or Notice a demand for payment of the charge
must be served on the person from whom the authority seek to recover it
and once the demand becomes operative the Council may register the
charge as a Local Land Charge on the property until the debt is recovered.

There are no Appeal provisions against this charge only against the
underlying notice. However where a tribunal allows an appeal against the
underlying notice or order, it may reduce, quash, or require repayment of
any charge made in respect of the notice or order.

In deciding whether to exercise their powers to make a charge and the level
of any charge, authorities may take account of the personal circumstances
of the person or persons against whom the enforcement action is being
taken. The degree to which authorities consider personal circumstances is
at their discretion, having regard to the resources available to them.

It should be noted that in line with the Councils adopted Enforcement Policy
(March 2010) and the Councils Housing Health & Safety Rating System
(HHSRS) enforcement procedure (March 2013) an informal approach would
normally be taken first and the Landlord given an opportunity to resolve the
matter informally without the need for the service of Notice or Order.

During this informal stage the landlord will be informed of the consequences
of non-compliance including the levying of a charge for the service of the
Notice of Order should that become necessary.

Informal action may not be appropriate where the risk to the occupiers of the
premises is imminent or where the landlord has a history of non-compliance
with informal requests.

Report Page No: 3 Page 93



The Housing Standards team undertook 300 inspections in 2013-14 and
served 14 enforcement notices that would have resulted in a charge.

The level of charges is detailed in Appendix A and subject to a yearly
review.

4. Implications
(@) Financial Implications
The principle if to recover those costs which we are able. The budget report
for this year includes a small amount of income of £1040 that was
anticipated under the previous policy.
(b) Staffing Implications
No additional resources are required to implement this policy given that the
enforcement activity is a statutory duty and already undertaken within
existing resources.

Equality & Poverty Implications
The service of enforcement notices will impact on a small number of private
sector landlords or property managers who fail to comply with the Act.
Private landlords come from across all strands and do not make up a
specific group. This policy will not disadvantage any specific group. An
Equality Impact Assement is attached.
(d) Environmental Implications
Nil.
(e) Procurement
None.

(f) Consultation and communication

A small section of local landlords and managing agents were consulted as
part of a landlord accreditation event in 2011.

(g) Community Safety

No impact on community safety.

5. Background papers

e Housing Act 2004
Report Page No: 4 Page 94



e Housing health and safety rating system (HHSRS) enforcement
guidance: housing conditions

e The CIEH Survey of Local Authority Regulatory Activity under the
Housing Act 2004

6. Appendices

Appendix A- Housing Act 2004- Charging for certain enforcement
Action

Inspection of papers

To inspect the background papers or if you have a query on the report
please contact:

Author’'s Name: Robin Ray
Author’'s Phone Number: 01223 - 457957
Author’'s Email: robin.ray@cambridge.gov.uk

Report Page No: 5 Page 95



Appendix A- Housing Act 2004- Charging for certain enforcement action

The level of charge levied for service of the notice or order must be reasonable and
capable of being substantiated. The breakdown of costs below is based on an hourly
rate of £40 p/h for a case officer and £22 p/h for administrative support.

A reasonable charge may also be made as a means of recovering expenses incurred in
carrying out any review under section 17 or 26 or serving copies of the authority’s
decision on such a review (of Suspended Improvement Notices and Prohibition Orders
respectively).

Additional reasonable costs incurred in the service of the notice may be included in the
costs to be recovered, an example of such costs would be where it was necessary to
undertake an Electrical Installation Condition Report in order to identify all electrical
hazards in a property.

The charge may be waived in exceptional circumstances at the approval of the
Environmental Health Manager.

Improvement Notice

Item Actions by Case Officer Time allotted By whom

1 Initial investigation (gathering 2 hours Case officer
information and initial inspection)

2 HHSRS scoring (record on M3 2 hours Case officer
recording to include full notes,
justification, and scores).

3 Referencing (land registry, Council 30 mins Admin Officer
Tax search etc)

4 Preparation of Notice Pack (cover 2 hours Case Officer
sheet, notices(s), schedule 1 & 2,
consultation letter and statement of
reasons).

5 Consultation (with TM over notice 30 mins Case Officer
pack, plus any amendments and
response to representations).

6 Peer Check 30 mins Case Officer
Total 7 hours of case officer and Y2 hour of admin officer
Cost £280 + £11

Recommended Fee £291

Report Page No: 6 Page 96



Prohibition Order (including Emergency Orders)

Item Actions by Case Officer Time allotted By whom

1 Initial investigation (gathering 2 hours Case officer
information and initial inspection)

2 HHSRS scoring (record on M3 2 hours Case officer
recording to include full notes,
justification, and scores)

3 Referencing (land registry, Council 30 mins Admin Officer
Tax search etc)

4 Preparation of Notice Pack (cover 1 hour 30 mins Case Officer
sheet, notices(s), schedule 1,
consultation letter and statement of
reasons).

5 Consultation (with TM over notice 30 mins Case Officer
pack, plus any amendments and
response to representations).

6 Peer Check 30 mins Case Officer

Total 6 72 hours of case officer and 2 hour of admin officer

Cost £260 + £11

Recommended Fee £271

Emergency Remedial Action Notices

Item Actions by Case Officer Time allotted By whom

1 Initial investigation (gathering 2 hours Case officer
information and initial inspection)

2 HHSRS scoring (record on M3 1 hours Case officer
recording to include full notes,
justification, and scores).

3 Referencing (land registry, Council 30 mins Admin Officer
Tax search etc)

4 Preparation of Notice Pack (cover 1 hour Case Officer
sheet, notices(s), schedule 1 and
statement of reasons).

5 Consultation (with TM over notice 30 mins Case Officer

pack, plus any amendments and

Report Page No: 7

Page 97




response to representations).

6 Peer Check 30 mins Case Officer
Total 6 hours of case officer and %2 hour of admin officer
Cost £240 + £11

Recommended Fee £251

Review of Suspended Notices and Orders

Item Actions by Case Officer Time allotted By whom

1 The review of OR service of copies of 2 hours Case officer
decision following such a review.

2 Referencing (land registry, Council 30 mins Admin Officer
Tax search etc)

Total 2 hours of case officer and %2 hour of admin officer

Cost £80 + £11

Recommended Fee £91

Report Page No: 8

Page 98




Cambridge City Council Equality Impact Assessment &
Completing an Equality Impact Assessment will help you to think about what (;:
impact your strategy, policy, plan, project, contract or major change to your cnmaémsg
service may have on people that live in, work in or visit Cambridge, as well CITY COUNCIL

as on City Council staff.

The template is easy to use. You do not need to have specialist equalities knowledge to
complete it. It asks you to make judgements based on evidence and experience. There are
guidance notes on the intranet to help you. You can also get advice from Suzanne Goff,
Strategy Officer on 01223 457174 or email suzanne.goff@cambridge.gov.uk or from any
member of the Joint Equalities Group.

1. Title of strategy, policy, plan, project, contract or major change to your service:

POWER TO CHARGE FOR CERTAIN ENFORCEMENT ACTION UNDER THE HOUSING
ACT 2004 (the “ACT”)

2. What is the objective or purpose of your strategy, policy, plan, project, contract or
major change to your service?

To ensure compliance with the Housing Act 2004 and thereby drive up the standards of the
Private Rented Sector. By laying a charge for enforcement action we will also ensure that
the person responsible for the underlying disrepair/poor management repays the cost for the
Council undertaken that action.

3. Who will be affected by this strategy, policy, plan, project, contract or major
change to your service? (Please tick those that apply)

[ ] Residents
[ ] Visitors
[ ] Staff

A specific client group or groups (please state):
Landlords of poorly managed/maintained properties.

4. What type of strategy, policy, plan, project, contract or major change to your
service is this? (Please tick)

[ ] New
X Revised

[ ] Existing

Page 99 Page 1




5. Responsible directorate and service

Directorate: Refuse and Environment

Service: Environmental Health

6. Are other departments or partners involved in delivering this strategy, policy, plan,
project, contract or major change to your service?

X] No
[ ] Yes (please give details):

7. Potential impact

Please list and explain how this strategy, policy, plan, project, contract or major change to
your service could positively or negatively affect individuals from the following equalities
groups.

When answering this question, please think about:

e The results of relevant consultation that you or others have completed (for example with
residents, people that work in or visit Cambridge, service users, staff or partner
organisations).

o Complaints information.
e Performance information.

¢ Information about people using your service (for example whether people from certain
equalities groups use the service more or less than others).

¢ Inspection results.
e Comparisons with other organisations.

¢ The implementation of your piece of work (don’t just assess what you think the impact will
be after you have completed your work, but also think about what steps you might have to
take to make sure that the implementation of your work does not negatively impact on
people from a particular equality group).

e The relevant premises involved.
e Your communications.

¢ National research (local information is not always available, particularly for some
equalities groups, so use national research to provide evidence for your conclusions).

(a) Age (any group of people of a particular age, including younger and older people — in
particular, please consider any safeguarding issues for children and vulnerable adults)

None.

Page 100 Page 2




(b) Disability (including people with a physical impairment, sensory impairment, learning
disability, mental health problem or other condition which has an impact on their daily life)

None.

(c) Gender

None

(d) Pregnancy and maternity

None

(e) Transgender (including gender re-assignment)

None

(f) Marriage and Civil Partnership

None

(g9) Race or Ethnicity

None.

(h) Religion or Belief

None

(i) Sexual Orientation

None

(j) Other factors that may lead to inequality — in particular — please consider the impact
of any changes on low income groups or those experiencing the impacts of poverty
(please state):

None.

Page 101 Page 3




8. If you have any additional comments please add them here

Deprivation and poor housing conditions are linked. In Cambridge approximately 37% of
properties in the Private Rented Sector are considered to be below the Decent Homes
Standard. However for vulnerable households (those in receipt of a means tested benefits or
benefits linked to disability) are more likely to live in a home that is non-decent (45%) and will
also be less able to afford alternate accommodation. It is therefore likely that implementation
of this policy will have minor positive effect on those experiencing the impacts of poverty.

9. Conclusions and Next Steps

¢ |If you have not identified any negative impacts, please sign off this form.

e If you have identified potential negative actions, you must complete the action plan at the
end of this document to set out how you propose to mitigate the impact. If you do not feel
that the potential negative impact can be mitigated, you must complete question 8 to
explain why that is the case.

o |If there is insufficient evidence to say whether or not there is likely to be a negative
impact, please complete the action plan setting out what additional information you need
to gather to complete the assessment.

All completed Equality Impact Assessments must be emailed to Suzanne Goff, Strategy
Officer, who will arrange for it to be published on the City Council’s website.
Email suzanne.goff@cambridge.gov.uk

10.Sign off

Name and job title of assessment lead officer: Robin Ray

Names and job titles of other assessment team members and people consulted:

Date of completion: 19/06/2014

Date of next review of the assessment:

Page 102 Page 4




Action Plan

Equality Impact Assessment title:

Date of completion:

Equality Group

Age

Details of possible disadvantage
or negative impact

Action to be taken to address the
disadvantage or negative impact

Officer responsible for
progressing the action

Date action to be completed by

Equality Group

Disability

Details of possible disadvantage
or negative impact

Action to be taken to address the
disadvantage or negative impact

Officer responsible for
progressing the action

Date action to be completed by

Equality Group

Gender

Details of possible disadvantage
or negative impact

Action to be taken to address the
disadvantage or negative impact

Officer responsible for
progressing the action

Date action to be completed by

Page 103

Page 5




Equality Group

Pregnancy and Maternity

Details of possible disadvantage
or negative impact

Action to be taken to address the
disadvantage or negative impact

Officer responsible for
progressing the action

Date action to be completed by

Equality Group

Transgender

Details of possible disadvantage
or negative impact

Action to be taken to address the
disadvantage or negative impact

Officer responsible for
progressing the action

Date action to be completed by

Equality Group

Marriage and Civil Partnership

Details of possible disadvantage
or negative impact

Action to be taken to address the
disadvantage or negative impact

Officer responsible for
progressing the action

Date action to be completed by

Equality Group

Race or Ethnicity

Details of possible disadvantage
or negative impact

Action to be taken to address the
disadvantage or negative impact

Officer responsible for
progressing the action

Date action to be completed by

Page 104

Page 6




Equality Group

Religion or Belief

Details of possible disadvantage
or negative impact

Action to be taken to address the
disadvantage or negative impact

Officer responsible for
progressing the action

Date action to be completed by

Equality Group

Sexual Orientation

Details of possible disadvantage
or negative impact

Action to be taken to address the
disadvantage or negative impact

Officer responsible for
progressing the action

Date action to be completed by

Other factors that may lead to inequality

Details of possible disadvantage
or negative impact

Action to be taken to address the
disadvantage or negative impact

Officer responsible for
progressing the action

Date action to be completed by

Page 105

Page 7




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 106



Agenda Iltem 15

,Lb\. Cambridge City Council Iltem
B
To: Executive Councillor for Housing
Report by: Alan Carter
Relevant scrutiny Community 10/7/2014
committee: Services
Scrutiny
Committee
Wards affected: Abbey Arbury Castle Cherry Hinton Coleridge

East Chesterton King's Hedges Market Newnham
Petersfield Queen Edith's Romsey Trumpington
West Chesterton

CAMBRIDGESHIRE HOME IMPROVEMENT AGENCY (Cambs HIA) -
EXTENSION OF CONTRACT
Not a Key Decision

1. Executive summary

The City Council has a shared service agreement with South
Cambridgeshire District Council and Huntingdonshire District Council to
provide a joint home improvement agency service. The agreement expires
at the end of March 2015. The shared service known as Cambs HIA has
been a successful venture in sustaining services previously delivered
independently by the respective district councils at a reduced cost. The
Government has introduced the Better Care Fund which presents
opportunities to develop Cambs HIA further. The report recommends that
the current shared service agreement be extended until March 2016 to allow
these opportunities to be considered and accommodated.

2. Recommendations
The Executive Councillor is recommended:

Agree to extend the Cambridgeshire Home Improvement Agency Shared
Service Agreement to the end of March 2016.

3. Background
Home Improvement Agencies (HIA) assist people who are elderly or

vulnerable, who have disability needs, or who are on a low income to
remain in their own homes in greater comfort and safety. They do this by

Report Page No: 1 Page 107



providing practical or financial advice and support to repair, maintain or
adapt homes.

A thorough review of HIA services in Cambridgeshire was carried out over a
two year period from 2007. After much deliberation, the outcome of the
review was a decision to work towards a shared service for Cambridge City
Council, South Cambridgeshire District Council and Huntingdonshire District
Council and Cambs HIA was set up from April 2012. A countywide service
was considered but due to existing contract obligations in the Fenland and
East Cambridgeshire districts, it was decided not to pursue this option at
that time.

The following is a link to the Cambs HIA web-site that includes more
information on it role and objectives.

www.Cambshia.org

On the web-site and enclosed with this Committee report is a copy of
Cambs HIA Annual Review which provides summary service and
performance data.

The services provided by Cambs HIA facilitate positive health and wellbeing
outcomes for residents that are central to the ‘preventative’ agendas of
social care and health sector agendas.

The Government has recently introduced a programme called the ‘Better
Care Fund’. This aims to drive systemic change and efficiency in the way
that social care and health services interact to prevent poor health and
earlier than necessary hospital admissions or longer than necessary
hospitals stays. For Cambridgeshire, in effect, £38m of existing funding is to
be uncoupled from health services and offered for ‘transformational’
preventative services. The new services are due to start from April 2015.
The nature of Cambs HIA services, particularly (but not exclusively), its
services for older people, make it a central for consideration under the
Better Care Fund. Although the Cambs HIA service can evolve

The request to extend the existing shared service agreement that governs
Cambs HIA to the end of March 2016 will allow any opportunities brought
about by the Better Care Fund to be considered and accommodated.

4. Implications

(a) Financial Implications

In revenue terms Cambs HIA made a surplus of £8,308 in 2013.14. For the
City Council this translates as movement from a position where the

Report Page No: 2 Page 108



Council’'s previous independent service was being subsidised by the
General Fund by about £40,000 a year (direct financial comparison is
difficult).

The service is budgeted to break even again in 2014.15 and the financial
risk in extending the contract to the end of March 2016 is low.

(b) Staffing Implications (if not covered in Consultations Section)

There are no staffing implications in extending the contract to the end of
March 2016.

(c) Equality & Poverty Implication

An EQIA was carried out when Cambs HIA was set up. There have been no
significant changes to the service since. The service will review its Business
Plan in the context of the Better Care Fund and the EQIA will be up-dated
accordingly.

(d) Environmental Implications

There are no particular environmental implications in extending the contract
to the end of March 2016.

(e) Procurement

There are no procurement implications in extending the contract to the end
of March 2016

(f) Consultation and communication

The Cambs HIA Manager and other senior officers of the City Council are
directly involved in the Better Care Fund.

A part of its communications strategy a presentation was given by the
Cambs HIA Manager to the Local Health Partnership Board.

(g0 Community Safety

There are no particular community safety implications in extending the
contract to the end of March 2016.

5. Background papers

These background papers were used in the preparation of this report:

Report Page No: 3 Page 109



None.

6. Appendices

None.

7. Inspection of papers

To inspect the background papers or if you have a query on the report
please contact:

Author’'s Name: Alan Carter
Author’'s Phone Number: 01223 - 457948
Author’s Email: alan.carter@cambridge.gov.uk

Report Page No: 4 Page 110



CAMBRIDGE ciTy counciL Adenda Item 16a

Record of Executive Decision

Opportunity to Bid to Increase the Housing Revenue Account (HRA)

Decision of:
Reference:

Date of decision:
Decision Type:

Matter for
Decision:

Why the decision

had to be made
(and any
alternative
options):

The Executive
Councillor’s
decision(s):

Reasons for the
decision:

Scrutiny
consideration:

Report:

Conflicts of
interest:

Comments:

Councillor Smart, Executive Councillor for Housing
14/URGENCY/COM/2

25.04.14 Recorded on: 25.04.14

Key Decision

Delegated authority to the Director of Customer and Community
Services to agree a bid under the Local Growth Fund : Housing
Revenue Account Borrowing Programme (2015.16 and 2016.17)

The deadline for bids to the £300m Fund is 16 June 2014. In view
of the timescales around this opportunity the Urgent Decision is
requested.

Approved that delegated authority be given to the Director of
Customer and Community Services to agree a bid under the
Local Growth Fund : Housing Revenue Account Borrowing
Programme (2015.16 and 2016.17), subject to consultation with
the Executive Councillor for Housing; the Chair of the Customer
and Community Services Scrutiny Committee and Opposition
Spokespersons.

The deadline for bids to the £300m Fund is 16 June 2014.

The Chair and Spokesperson of Community Services Scrutiny
Committee were consulted prior to the action being authorised.

A report detailing the background and financial considerations is
attached.

None

The Chair and Spokes were consulted prior to the decision being
made and made no comment.

Page 111




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 112



partment for
Communities and
Local Government

Local Growth Fund

Housing Revenue Account Borrowing Programme (2015-16 and
2016-17)

April 2014
Department for Communities and Local Government

Page 113



© Crown copyright, 2014

Copyright in the typographical arrangement rests with the Crown.

You may re-use this information (not including logos) free of charge in any format or medium, under the
terms of the Open Government Licence. To view this licence, www.nationalarchives.gov.uk/doc/open-
government-licence/ or write to the Information Policy Team, The National Archives, Kew, London TW9 4DU,
or email: psi@nationalarchives.gsi.gov.uk.

This document/publication is also available on our website at www.gov.uk/dclg

If you have any enquiries regarding this document/publication, email contactus@communities.gov.uk or write
to us at:

Department for Communities and Local Government
Eland House

Bressenden Place

London

SW1E 5DU

Telephone: 030 3444 0000

For all our latest news and updates follow us on Twitter: https://twitter.com/CommunitiesUK

April 2014

ISBN: 978-1-4098-4198-2

Page 114



Contents

Ministerial Foreword
1. Why should local authorities bid to this programme?

Introduction

Main programme aims

Meeting local needs and economic priorities
Invitation to bid

2. The Funding Model

Summary of main elements

Asset management

Conversions to affordable rent

Limit rent

How the additional borrowing will be issued

3. How can my local authority bid for borrowing?

The bidding options

Bidding requirements for firm schemes
Schemes requiring demolition

Section 106 schemes

Where to send bids to

4. Assessment

Overview

Stages of assessment

Policy elements/growth impact

Value for money

Delivery

Technical ability, financial information, robustness and good standing

Annexes:
A: Expressions of Interest

B: Example Indebtedness Determination
C: Letter of 28 July 2011 to local authority chief executives

Page 115



Ministerial foreword

Increasing the supply of affordable housing is a priority for the Government and it is a
critical element in wider economic growth. We are currently working with Local Enterprise
Partnerships to agree local Growth Deals — and our aim is a Growth Deal for every area by
July this year. In many areas, a key part of the local strategies developed by Local
Enterprise Partnerships will be investment for housing growth.

Local government has always played a central role in housing and, since the introduction
of self-financing for local government in 2012, many councils who manage and maintain
their own stock are starting to look again at the opportunities it offers to commission and
build new homes for their local communities.

But many councils have said that they can do more if they can undertake additional
borrowing. We have listened to this and that is why, in the Autumn Statement last year,
we announced we would raise local authority Housing Revenue Account borrowing limits,
by £150 million in 2015-16 and £150 million in 2016-17, allocated on a competitive basis to
drive value for money. We are looking to local authorities, who need additional borrowing,
to bid for that increase and for schemes that would help to deliver 10,000 new affordable
homes.

The Government wants to see active asset management and the disposals of high value
vacant stock forming part of any bid as well as public sector land being brought forward —
councils should be using their land proactively and not just mowing it. Local authorities
should also consider partnership working with housing associations or through joint
ventures to deliver their schemes. In a nutshell we want this additional borrowing to be
used to drive innovation in how local authorities deliver housing for their local communities.

We also explained in the Autumn Statement that this funding will form part of the Local
Growth Fund, available to local authorities who have a proposal agreed by their Local
Enterprise Partnership. This will strengthen the role of the Local Growth Fund in
transforming local economies by providing much-needed housing to support growth.

This bidding document sets out the detail of how local authorities can bid for additional
borrowing and | would encourage them to come forward with their proposals and take
advantage of this opportunity.

Kris Hopkins MP, Minister for Housing

Page 116 4



Chapter One: why should local authorities
bid to this programme?

Introduction

1.

Local authorities play a central role in the management and delivery of new homes and
the Government wants to support innovative local authorities who want to do more. In
April 2012 the Government reformed the council house finance system, introducing
self-financing for local authorities who still own and manage their own housing. This
system of self-financing gave local authorities greater freedoms and flexibilities to
manage their housing and develop new homes. For many councils the opportunities
provided by self-financing are only just starting to be realised.

. The limits on the amount of local authority Housing Revenue Account borrowing were

introduced to control public sector borrowing in the context of the government’s fiscal
consolidation plan . However, we recognise that some councils would value increased
flexibility in realising their housing supply ambitions. The Government has therefore
made £300 million of additional Housing Revenue Account borrowing available as part
of the Local Growth Fund to help those authorities that need additional borrowing and
want to deliver new affordable homes quickly.

Our aim is that local authorities will work with Local Enterprise Partnerships, in support
of local growth strategies, to increase the supply of housing locally. We want local
authorities to do this in a way that will drive innovation through the use of locally owned
land, the sale of high value vacant properties and partnership working to ensure that
the impact on public sector borrowing is as low as possible and the supply of new
homes is as high as possible. We intend to help a new way of thinking about value for
money take root within the sector.

It is hoped that many local authorities will take this opportunity of a new approach to
their role in the supply of local affordable homes for their communities using the
innovation and creativity that marks the local government sector at its best.

The profile for this additional borrowing is £150 million against capital expenditure in
2015/16 and £150 million against capital expenditure in 2016/17. This bidding
document covers England, including London. There is no proposal to have a separately
administered scheme for the London boroughs. The Greater London Authority will,
however, assist with the assessment of bids submitted by any London borough.

Page 117 5



Main programme aims

6. The Government has some core objectives that it wants to achieve through this new
Housing Revenue Account borrowing programme.

o To increase the supply of new affordable rent and affordable home ownership
homes delivered by local authorities or through partnership arrangements,
leveraging in private finance where necessary;

o To support innovation by local authorities in delivering and supporting new
housing development;

. To drive down costs and support bids where affordable housing is developed
with lower public sector costs;

o To require local authorities to maximise value for money of schemes including
contributing their own resources such as bringing forward their own land and,
in particular disposing of high value vacant stock;

° To support local authorities that will be delivering new affordable homes that
meet local needs and which are in line with the objectives of the local Strategic
Economic Plan; and

o To see new homes provided that address the demographic challenges facing
social housing, including the need for homes of sizes that match household
needs.

Meeting local needs and economic priorities

7. One of the main aims of the programme is to help to meet local need for affordable
homes. Housing plays an important role in local economic growth, it is therefore vital
that any additional borrowing for housing is considered alongside wider investment in
an areas infrastructure and economic growth plan. This is why this borrowing will form
part of the Local Growth Fund. Local authorities will need to ensure that their bids are
endorsed by their Local Enterprise Partnerships, and we will be looking for confirmation
that any potential bids are in line with the objectives of the Strategic Economic Plans
which were submitted to Government by 31 March 2014. We will also seek to engage
with authorities where a Strategic Economic Plan indicated that a local authority would
be likely to bring forward a bid for additional Housing Revenue Account borrowing.

8. To ensure that bids meet local housing need, local authorities should consider whether
the proposed scheme, or schemes, offer an appropriate size and mix of affordable
housing. In areas where there is a particular shortage of smaller homes for under-
occupying tenants to move to, we would expect local assessments of needs and bids
to reflect this, by including a high proportion of one and two bedroom properties, for
example, by the conversion of existing stock to new affordable units or the provision of
sheltered housing.

Page 118 6



10.

11.

Local needs may also include on-going requirements for family homes. It is possible
that need might be met, in part, through re-allocation of properties which are currently
under-occupied, by providing opportunities for households who are under-occupying to
move to a smaller home.

The Government has recently published its response to the consultation on Housing
Standards Review and set out the next steps’. Local authorities bidding for additional
Housing Revenue Account borrowing should take note that the Review has not
completed and that there will be further announcements during the year. In preparing
bids local authorities should make reasonable assumptions about other factors likely to
impact on their proposed developments®

The intention of this programme is to provide new affordable rent homes (and, where
appropriate, affordable home ownership homes). Social rent provision will only be
supported in very limited circumstances. In general, government policy does not
support the argument that only rents at or close to social rent levels are capable of
meeting local needs.

Invitation to bid

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

This bidding document invites local authorities that maintain a Housing Revenue
Account to submit bids to increase the supply of affordable housing locally through bids
developed around an increase in Housing Revenue Account borrowing.

The bidding routes for doing so are set out in Chapter 3.

As the £300 million programme is available as part of the Local Growth Fund local
authorities need to ensure that their bid has been endorsed by their Local Enterprise
Partnership before submitting it to the Secretary of State. The Local Enterprise
Partnership should confirm that the bid is in line with their Strategic Economic Plan.

This invitation to bid is open for firm schemes until 5pm 16 June 2014.

For schemes that are due to start only in 2016/17 and where detailed plans are not yet
available, we will also accept Expressions of Interest by 5pm 16 June 2014.

Depending on the number and quality of bids received the Government may decide to
allocate all the £300 million to the firm bids it receives in June. There is therefore a risk
for authorities who submit an Expression of Interest that we will be unable to allocate

! www.gov.uk/government/news/stephen-williams-announces-plans-to-raise-housing-standards

% The addendum to the Affordable Homes Programme provides clarification on the technical requirements
that bidders for the 2015-18 Programme will be expected to meet or consider in submitting their bids. The
Government expects local authorities to follow a similar approach for this programme:
http://www.homesandcommunities.co.uk/sites/default/files/our-

work/140326 ahp prospectus 2015 addendum.pdf

Page 119 7



additional borrowing to them for 2016/17. We will endeavour to inform those
authorities as soon as possible.

18. Details for any subsequent bidding round for those authorities who have submitted an
expression of interest will be published in due course, following the assessment of firm
bids received by 16 June 2014. We will seek to align any second bidding round for
2016/17 with the bidding process for the 2016/17 Local Growth Fund.

Page 120



Chapter Two: The Funding Model

Summary of main elements

19.

20.

21.

22.

Local authorities should seek to reduce the amount of public sector borrowing needed
to finance new supply wherever possible. Therefore, where additional Housing
Revenue Account borrowing is requested and in order to meet the Government’s aim
of 10,000 new affordable homes, we will be looking to support local authority schemes
that maximise the following sources of funding:

e Bringing forward their own land for scheme development as a mechanism to
reduce costs of the proposed housing;

e Receipts generated through the disposal of existing stock, and, in particular, high
value vacant stock;

e Other sources of cross subsidy, including surpluses from existing stock and
activities and income; and

e Other sources of funding or means of reducing the costs such as free or
discounted public land (in addition to local authority land) and other contributions
such as from the New Homes Bonus or Section 106 commuted sums.

Councils may also wish to consider sources of private finance and the contribution that
private sector finance can make to the scheme either though partnership arrangements
or a special purpose vehicle. Where a local authority may be considering proposals for
a special purpose vehicle, such as a joint venture, as part of the scheme they should
indicate how they propose the special purpose vehicle or its members will borrow
commercially and avoid any impact on public sector borrowing — i.e. that it would not be
classified as a public sector vehicle. We will not be looking to support schemes where
such a special purpose vehicle, and its borrowing and expenditure, is classified as
public sector, and therefore has an impact on public sector borrowing.

Local authorities who are able to deliver the most additional affordable housing units,
either directly or in partnership with others, and as a result are able to offer good value
for money for the additional public borrowing, are likely to be advantaged in this
element of the assessment.

A scheme may also facilitate the additional provision of market tenure housing,
including for cross-subsidy purposes.

Page 121 9



Asset management

23.

24.

25.

26.

27.

As part of a local authority’s wider approach to asset management, local authorities are
required to consider the contribution that disposal of some vacant properties (both
within and outside the social housing sector) can make to support the delivery of new
homes. This could include homes that are uneconomic as social housing properties
and homes with particularly high market values where greater value to the business
could be achieved if they were sold and the receipts reinvested in new housing.

Already some councils are taking a positive approach to asset management. Others
are not. We believe asset management is a necessary part of social housing for all
providers. All bids must show how they have considered the contribution of land and
receipts from the disposal of stock, including, in particular, high value vacant stock. If
contributions from land and asset disposal are not part of the bids local authorities must
explain how they have arrived at this conclusion.

Disposals at market value of land or vacant stock held within the Housing Revenue
Account can be disposed of under the General Housing Consents 2013 (section 32 of
the Housing Act 1985) and do not require the consent of the Secretary of State. The
Government is also publishing alongside this bidding document a revised set of
General Consents under Section 25 of the Local Government Act 1988 which allow
councils to dispose of vacant housing land to private registered providers and non-
registered providers at less than market value. Nevertheless, the Government seeks to
encourage authorities to seek full market value for properties where possible.

If, however, an authority proposes to dispose of land and/or property held within the
Housing Revenue Account and this requires a consent from the Secretary of State
bidders should complete the application form published alongside this bidding
document.

Authorities should be clear when bidding for additional Housing Revenue Account
borrowing who will provide the landlord services for the homes developed and that this
represents an efficient and effective approach.

Conversions to Affordable Rent

28.

The Government has considered whether, as part of the funding model, local
authorities and their partners should be encouraged to convert existing rental stock to
affordable rent. We recognise that this can be an important mechanism to generate
additional financial capacity. However, the Government, in making available an
additional £300 million borrowing headroom, has done so in recognition of the fact that
some authorities have limited borrowing headroom now. Authorities who are at, or are
close to their cap, will not be able to utilise additional borrowing capacity from the rental
stream uplift provided by converting properties to an affordable rent without hitting their
borrowing cap.

Page 122 10



29. The Government does not therefore expect to receive bids from local authorities who
are proposing to fund their scheme on the back of additional borrowing capacity
provided by conversions to affordable rent.

30. Where a local authority is working with a Private Registered Partner to deliver their
proposed scheme, the Private Registered Provider is encouraged to consider
conversions to affordable rent to generate additional financial capacity.

31. Private Registered Providers’ partners should note that capacity generated from
conversions outside London cannot be used to support (additional) new supply as part
of this scheme inside London. Similarly, capacity generated from conversions inside
London cannot be used to support new supply outside London.

Limit rent

32. The Government has implemented a process to allow properties let on affordable rent
terms by local authorities to be treated outside of the Rent Rebate Subsidy Limitation
scheme.

33. To claim Housing Benefit subsidy above the limit rent for affordable rent properties
provided under this programme, an authority must show the auditor of their subsidy
claim form a letter signed by their Section 151 Officer, addressed to the Department,
which:

e Lists the addresses of all affordable rent properties — broken down between
existing homes that have been converted to affordable rent, and newly built
homes let at affordable rent;

e Confirms that the rents will not rise except in line with Government policy;

e Confirms any properties re-let have had their rents re-set, if needed, to ensure
they remain at no more than 80 per cent of market rent;

¢ Confirms that all income derived from the higher rent has been spent or will be
spent — and only spent — on new affordable housing; and

e Confirms the amount of capacity generated by conversions of existing properties
to affordable rent is no greater than that specified in their delivery agreement
with the Homes and Communities Agency.

34. In addition to satisfying the requirements set out above, the arrangements for local
authorities who wish to develop new affordable rent properties without recourse to
grant funding will continue to apply. In order for those properties to be exempt from the
limit rent framework local authorities must follow the process outlined in a letter sent
from the Department to local authority chief executives on 28 July 2011 attached at
Annex C.

Page 123 11



How the additional borrowing will be issued

35. Local authorities who make successful bids for the additional borrowing will receive a
new indebtedness determination to provide for additional Housing Revenue Account
borrowing (up to the agreed amount) which the authority undertook to finance capital
expenditure on approved schemes during 2015/16 and/or 2016/17.

36. An example of a draft determination for 2015/16 is attached at Annex B.

37. Successful local authorities who receive additional borrowing for the years 2015/16 and

or 2016/17 must ensure that schemes undertake the necessary capital expenditure in
those years. We will agree quarterly monitoring arrangements with local authorities
including progress on starts and completions. If there is significant slippage in a
scheme we may look to reallocate the additional borrowing elsewhere.

Page 124

12



Chapter Three: How can my local authority
bid for borrowing?

The bidding options

38. We would expect all bids to be consistent with the Local Enterprise Partnership’s
Strategic Economic Plan. The Housing Revenue Account Borrowing Programme is
offering two bidding options for local authorities:

(i) making a firm, per scheme, bid for borrowing to support capital expenditure in
either of the two financial years or across them; or,

(i)  submitting an Expression of Interest with an outline of the estimated
borrowing required, per scheme, in 2016/17 with a firm bid to be submitted at
a later date depending on the outcomes of the initial bidding round.

39. We will seek, wherever possible to make a single allocation across the two years
2015/16 and 2016/17 where successful local authorities have requested such
additional borrowing. However we recognise that some authorities and particularly
those who may be looking for additional borrowing in 2016/17 only, may not be able to
submit a firm scheme bid by June 2014. In those cases we are therefore asking
authorities to set out Expressions of Interest by 16 June 2014. Details of the
information to be submitted with an Expression of Interest are attached at Annex A.

40. Please note that we will only accept Expressions of Interest for additional borrowing for
2016/17. Proposals that require additional borrowing starting in either 2015/16 or in
2015/16 and 2016/17 (i.e. their scheme needs borrowing increases across both years)
must submit a firm bid now. There is a risk for councils and particularly if this
programme is in receipt of a large number of high quality bids, that we may not be able
to take forward Expressions of Interest requests for funding for 2016/17. We therefore
encourage authorities to submit firm scheme bids where possible.

41. Schemes which are in receipt of grant from the Affordable Homes Programme or which
have bid for grant under the 2015-18 Programme will not be able to bid for additional
borrowing under this Programme. However, schemes which have different phases,
each funded from different programmes, may be supported.

Page 125 13



Bidding requirements for firm schemes

42. Bidding authorities must set out their current amount of borrowing headroom (as at
March 2014) and indicate to what extent that headroom is earmarked for other
schemes or projects in their 30 year Business Plan. In addition: bids for firm schemes
will be expected to include the following information for each scheme:

e The name of the organisation that will develop the affordable homes (e.g. council;
special purpose vehicle; private registered provider);

e The name and location of the scheme; the number of homes broken down by the
anticipated unit mix and size, tenure (including affordable rent and shared
ownership) and any specific provision being offered (for example supported
housing, rural housing or housing for older people).

e The estimated scheme costs, and the amount and sources of funding (including
the additional borrowing requested and other borrowing) to meet those costs. The
estimated additional Housing Revenue Account borrowing requirement (per
scheme) should be set out separately for each of the following years:

o Additional Housing Revenue Account borrowing required to finance
capital expenditure per scheme in 2015/16

o Additional Housing Revenue Account borrowing required to finance
capital expenditure per scheme in 2016/17

e Whether partnerships are in place or how they will be in place in time to ensure
scheme delivery;

e The ownership of completed affordable homes (including the number assigned to
each landlord, if more than one);

e Confirmation that, to the extent that additional borrowing capacity is used to fund
capital works on existing tenanted properties, charges to leaseholders in respect
those works will be capped at £15,000 in London and £10,000 in the rest of
England over a five year period; and

e All bids and proposals should outline the anticipated, realistic, timing of delivery
(expected month of start on site and completion).

43. We expect all bidding local authorities to maximise the use of their own assets as part
of the bid proposals. Local authorities must therefore provide information on:

e Thelocal authority land to be included as part of the scheme (or schemes);

e How asset disposals (high value vacant stock) will help to provide cross-subsidy
to the scheme (or schemes); and

Page 126 14



44.

45.

46.

47.

e Where use of local authority land and asset disposal is not part of the bid local
authorities must explain how they have arrived at this conclusion.

The Government is also interested in the potential for wider scheme benefits and local
authorities should therefore:

e Set out how the scheme (or schemes) will help to meet evidenced local needs
and priorities in their proposed locations, including building homes that address
the demographic challenges facing social housing and any mismatch between
existing stock and household needs; and

e Demonstrate growth impact in relation to the scheme (or schemes) being part of
wider plans for housing delivery and growth in the local area, including where
there is a direct link to the Strategic Economic Plan.

Local authorities will be expected to certify that there is no other Government grant
support or funding on their scheme (e.g. funding through the 2015-18 Affordable
Homes Programme). If other funding — such as Local Growth Fund investment — is
being used to support associated infrastructure, this should be clearly stated to allow
consideration of wider value for money issues.

The bids for funding will need to be signed off and certified by the Section 151
accounting officer for each local authority.

It is a requirement on schemes where an affordable rent is to be charged, that a
Framework Delivery Agreement is entered into with the Homes and Communities
Agency or the Greater London Authority. Some bidders may already have such a
Framework Delivery Agreement in place. We will expect providers to record all
affordable homes to be delivered within their Framework Delivery Agreement to allow
for consistency of data and monitoring of delivery of such homes.

Schemes requiring demolition

48.

49.

This bidding document invites bids for additional borrowing for new affordable homes.
George Clarke, the Government’s Independent Empty Homes Advisor, set out in his
recommendations for housing regeneration areas that refurbishing and upgrading
existing homes should always be the first and preferred option, and that demolition
should always be the last option®. Ministers have affirmed their own preference for
refurbishment rather than demolition?.

Local authorities are therefore reminded that, where demolitions of derelict existing
structures are required, those are expected to be principally for redundant structures
such as garages and other non-housing. Where demolitions of existing housing stock
are needed, these are expected to be on a small scale — for example where required to
open up access to developable land, or where the housing being demolished is

. George Clarke’s 10 recommendations for housing regeneration areas can be found at:
https://www.gov.uk/government/news/91-million-cash-to-tackle-over-6000-empty-and-derelict-homes
* See Mark Prisk’s Written Ministerial Statement of 10 May 2013 at c13WS in Hansard.

Page 127 15



demonstrably no longer suitable nor viable for further use. Where demolitions are
required we will be seeking an indication of the net additional housing units to be
delivered as part of the scheme or for wider benefits to be clearly demonstrated.

50. It is not intended that additional borrowing will be available for schemes which require
multi-landlord, area-wide demolition. Schemes on previously cleared land (regardless
of the previous use), are acceptable.

Section 106 schemes

51. We would not generally expect affordable homes developed through this programme to
be built as part of a Section 106 agreement, but, where appropriate, would encourage
the use of commuted sums related to section 106 agreements that have arisen from
schemes on other sites.

Where to send bids to:

52. Expressions of interest for 2016/17 bids, in the form of a letter, should be emailed to
hraborrowing@communities.gsi.gov.uk

53. We will be publishing a bidding proforma shortly which will set out where to send bids
to. Any general enquiries about the Housing Revenue Account bidding document can
be sent to hraborrowing@communities.gsi.gov.uk or to:

Cynthia Brathwaite
Tel: 0303 4442402

Affordable Housing Management and Standards
Department for Communities and Local Government
Eland House

Bressenden Place

London

SW1E 5DU

Page 128 16



Chapter Four: Bid Assessment

Overview

54. The overall objective of bid assessment is to allocate additional borrowing to local
authorities to supply new homes that will include affordable housing. Assessments will
be based on:

e Meeting local needs and growth priorities in their proposed locations including
building homes that address the demographic challenges facing social housing
and any mismatch between existing stock and household needs;

o Offer good value for money (taking account of both additional Housing Revenue
Account borrowing requested and anticipated costs, as well as the extent to
which bidders have applied their own resources). Good value for money
proposals are likely to be enhanced where councils bring forward land, include
disposal of high value assets and providers are efficient across their operating
base, and where they seek to achieve procurement efficiencies in the delivery of
new supply;

e Have a good and demonstrable prospect of early delivery within the programme
timeframe.

55. Assessment will be at scheme level. Therefore, if a local authority submits a bid for
additional borrowing for more than one scheme, it is possible that some or all scheme
bids may not be successful.

Stages of assessment

56. The detailed assessment will be carried out by the Greater London Authority (for
London bids) and by the Homes and Communities Agency (for non-London bids).

57. Following scheme assessment moderation of bids will take place involving the scheme
assessors and the Department for Communities and Local Government.

58. The final scheme identification will identify the successful bidders. Subject to the
number of bids received against the programme (i.e. if we are over-subscribed with
high quality bids) we may seek to establish a list of reserve schemes that could be
taken forward quickly in the event of another scheme suffering significant slippage.

Page 129 17



Policy elements/growth impact

59. We will prioritise bids that can clearly demonstrate that their scheme meets the policy

objectives the Government is seeking to achieve. Factors we will take into account in
assessment include:

e Growth impact and strong support from the Local Enterprise Partnership will
also be seen as a good indicator of growth strength;

¢ Disposal of vacant stock, particularly high-value vacant stock, to cross subsidise
scheme costs and reduce their Housing Revenue Account borrowing request;

¢ Innovative partnership working between the local authority, housing
associations and other organisations such as through joint ventures to reduce
the ask for Housing Revenue Account borrowing and cross subsidise the
scheme in creative ways;

e Demographic change including in particular the need for smaller units or rural
housing; and

e The contribution that local authority land is making to the overall scheme.

60. All bids must show how they have met the second of the above points. If land and

asset disposal is not part of a bid the bidding local authority must explain how they
have arrived at this conclusion.

Value for money

61.

62.

63.

We are seeking to drive value for money through the competitive bidding process and
expect local authorities to submit bids which make best use of the other sources of
funding available to them, including from partner organisations. We will assess bids to
establish whether they offer value for money comparative to other bids and bidders.

A primary metric for assessment of value for money will be the level of additional
Housing Revenue Account borrowing requested to deliver the scheme as a whole and
per new affordable housing unit (and note that this will be calculated against all
affordable housing on a scheme, whoever the landlord).

However, in considering comparative value for money, we recognise that in some
cases, there will be reasons why scheme costs or the resources available to bidders
may vary and we will seek to take this into account where local authorities make this
information clearly available. In doing this we recognise that the level of borrowing per
retained local authority unit may be at a higher level if considered in isolation from the
totality of the number of units in the scheme where the local authority is working with
private partners. Local authorities will however be expected to drive down scheme
costs as far as possible.

Page 130 18



64. Indicators that will form a part of our assessment scoring for a scheme are:

Additional Housing Revenue Account borrowing per affordable unit (total
scheme numbers) compared to the programme average (used to identify
outliers);

Additional Housing Revenue Account borrowing per affordable unit (retained by
the local authority) compared to programme average;

Additional Housing Revenue Account borrowing as a % of Total Scheme Cost
(used to identify outliers, and in assessment of value for money);

Works cost per m? and archetype compared to the programme average (used to
identify outliers and reflecting the importance of minimising construction costs, in
line with the Government Construction Strategy®); and

m? per person compared to the programme average (used to identify schemes
which appear to be abnormally small, or abnormally large).

Delivery

65. We will prioritise those local authority bids that can clearly demonstrate early scheme
delivery. Factors which we will take into account in assessing deliverability includes:

The stage of planning achieved, where having already achieved full planning
permission will be advantaged in our view of deliverability;

The status of land ownership will also feed into the assessment, with schemes
being proposed on land which is in local authority ownership or where there is a
substantial contribution by the local authority scoring more highly;

Land condition and availability for development;

Tender stage reached (scheme tendered/contractor selected/contract signed);
Whether partnership arrangements are in place/will be in place and where a joint
venture is being proposed, the structure of the special purpose vehicle; and how
they will be established in time to take forward the scheme;

A demonstrable track record of delivering new affordable homes; and

Any other information in support of the scheme including, for example, local
community support or otherwise.

° https://www.gov.uk/government/collections/government-construction#government-construction-strategy

Page 131 19



Technical ability, financial information, robustness and good
standing

66. As part of our bid assessment we will look at the track record of the local authority to
ensure their technical capacity and the viability of the schemes brought forward.

67. Local authorities will also need to indicate in their bids how they have taken account of
established Housing Revenue Account accounting practices.

68. Within their bidding application local authorities must — unless they are existing
investment partners with the Homes and Communities Agency or the Greater London
Authority - detail what experience they have in developing new build affordable homes
by providing examples of previous development projects.

69. We would expect local authorities to carry out due diligence on any partners that they
propose to work with to ensure viability and delivery of the scheme. Bidders are also
reminded of the need to ensure compliance with their equalities duties®.

70. Local authorities should complete the Bidding Proforma which will be published shortly.

® The Government has produced guidance on the Public Sector Equality Duty at:
https://www.gov.uk/equality-act-2010-guidance#public-sector-equality-duty

Page 132 20



Annex A

Expressions of Interest

Local authorities who wish to submit an Expression of Interest for additional
borrowing for 2016/17 should provide the following information:-

An outline of the estimated borrowing requirement (per scheme) in 2016/17
including information on the authority’s borrowing headroom (as at 31 March
2014);

An outline of the scheme (or schemes) including the location(s) and estimated
number of proposed new units per scheme;

An outline of the funding arrangements including whether the council will be
bringing forward its own land for development or undertaking asset disposal to
help subsidise the scheme (or schemes);

An outline of proposed partnership arrangements and whether those are existing
arrangements or whether new arrangements are proposed; and

Whether the proposed scheme is supported by the Local Enterprise Partnership.

Expressions of interest addressing the above points must be submitted to the
Secretary of State by 16 June 2014 and can be sent in the form of a letter to
hraborrowing@communities.gsi.gov.uk.

Page 133

21



Annex B

Example housing revenue account borrowing
determination for increased cap in 2015-16

THE [Name] COUNCIL (LIMITS ON INDEBTEDNESS) DETERMINATION [Year]

The Secretary of State, in exercise of the powers conferred by sections 171 and 173 of the
Localism Act 2011, after consulting [Name] Council, makes the following determination —

Citation, commencement and interpretation

1.1 This determination may be cited as the [Name] Council (Limits on Indebtedness)
Determination 2014 and is made in respect of [Name] Council.

1.2  This determination shall have effect in respect of [Name] Council in relation to
financial years beginning on or after 1 April 2015.

1.3 In this determination-
“the 2012 Determination” means the Limits on Indebtedness Determination 2012.

Amendment of the Limits on Indebtedness Determination
2012

2.1 For paragraph 2 of the 2012 Determination substitute the following-

“2 The limit on the amount of housing debt that [Name] Council can hold

2.1 In relation to the financial year beginning on 1! April 2015 and subsequent
financial years, the maximum amount of housing debt, calculated in
accordance with the definition at paragraph 1.1 above, that [Name] Council
may hold shall be calculated as follows:
A+B
Where-

A'is £ [insert sum]’; and

B is the amount of any capital expenditure incurred by [Name] Council on the
scheme described in Annex B to this determination which-

" This is the maximum amount of housing debt that was determined for the [Name] Council in accordance
with paragraph 2 of the 2012 Determination and listed in Annex B to the 2012 Determination as it appeared
before the amendments made by this Determination.

Page 134 22



2.2

2.3

(i) was incurred on any interest in housing land,
(i) was financed by borrowing or credit arrangements,
(iii) was incurred between 01 April 2015 and 31 March 2016; and

(iv) does not in aggregate exceed £xx [insert maximum amount of
additional borrowing agreed for the authority as part of the HRA
Borrowing Programme for 2015-16]

In this paragraph-

“housing land” means any land, house or other building in relation to which
the local authority is, or has been immediately before disposal of it, subject to
the duty under s74 of the Local Government and Housing Act 1989 (duty to
keep Housing Revenue Account).

[Name] Council will be in breach of the limit if its housing debt (as calculated
in accordance with paragraph 1.1 above) exceeds the amount calculated in
accordance with paragraph 2.1 above on the final day of the 2015-16
financial year. In subsequent financial years [Name] Council will be in breach
of the limit if its housing debt exceeds the amount calculated in accordance
with paragraph 2.1 on the final day of the financial year concerned.”

2.2 For Annex B of the 2012 Determination substitute Annex B as set out in the Annex
to this Determination.

“Limits on Indebtedness Determination 2012 —
Annex B

[Description of scheme]”

[Name]

Department for Communities and Local Government

[Date]

Page 135 23



Annex C

The text of the letter of the 28 July 2011 to local authority chief executives is reproduced
below:

28 July 2011

To the Chief Executive of English local
housing authorities

BUILDING NEW COUNCIL HOUSING USING AFFORDABLE RENTS

1. This letter will be of interest to any English local housing authority considering building
new council homes for Affordable Rent, but without other financial support from central
Government. (We are writing separately to authorities awarded financial support under
the 2011-15 Affordable Homes Programme.)

2. This letter will be of less relevance to non-stock holding authorities, authorities whose
council house rents are already 80% or more of market rents, and authorities who will
have little or no capacity to increase borrowing in the short term under the forthcoming
self-financing settlement.

Background

3. The Government’s policy on Affordable Rents is to enable the building of more new
affordable housing and thereby help tackle un-met housing need.

4. To effect this a local authority would charge up to 80% of market rents on new homes it
has built and use this additional income to cover the costs of construction.

5. The maximum rent level for Affordable Rent should be assessed according to the
individual characteristics of the property. Local authorities should assess the gross
market rent that the individual property would achieve and set the initial rent (inclusive
of service charges) at up to 80% of that level. The Tenant Services Authority has
issued an explanatory note for private registered providers on RICS approved valuation
methods, which may also be useful to local authorities and is available at:

http://www.tenantservicesauthority.org/upload/doc/RICS_rental_valuation_note 201
10118140714.doc

Page 136 24



6. It is for local authorities to decide whether to let Affordable Rent properties on flexible
or conventional lifetime tenancies. (Provisions in the Localism Bill currently before
Parliament will (subject to Royal Assent) enable post-March 2012 local authorities to
offer fixed-term flexible tenancies.) In either case at the point the property becomes
available for re-letting the local authority should review the rent to ensure that it
remains at 80% (or lower) of prevailing market rents.

7. Government policy is that where an Affordable Rent has been set it should rise each
year by no more than the Retail Price Index plus 0.5%. This will apply for the duration
of the tenancy and at the end of the initial tenancy rents will need to be re-based to up
to 80% of market rents.

8. Local authorities should offer Affordable Rent properties in line with their lettings and
allocation policies.

9. Please note that we will permit only newly built properties to be treated outside the
Rent Rebate Subsidy Limitation scheme. We will not permit existing homes to be
excluded unless the local authority has entered into a Framework Delivery Agreement
with the Homes and Communities Agency (HCA). This is because the Government
does not intend providing additional public subsidy (via Housing Benefit) over and
above that announced in the 2011-15 Affordable Homes Programme.

The Limit Rent

10.We have worked closely with colleagues in the Department for Work and Pensions
(DWP) to devise a process of allowing Housing Benefit claimant rents higher than the
Limit Rent without loss of subsidy to local authorities whilst at the same time ensuring
value for money and guaranteeing new supply.

11.Because this process requires changes to the DWP’s subsidy claim forms, charging a
Housing Benefit claimant an Affordable Rent will not be possible until 2012/13.

The Process

12.The following sets out the process we have agreed with the DWP, the HCA and (for the
London Boroughs) the Greater London Authority (GLA). Provisions in the Localism Bill
will transfer the powers of the HCA in London to the GLA.

13.Any local authority intending to charge an Affordable Rent to fund new supply without
any other financial support from central Government should set out their proposals in
the form of a letter to its HCA operating area lead.

14.The letter should set out:

the scheme name and its location

the number and tenure of the new homes proposed

mix bed sizes

whether any of the new supply is supported housing or in rural locations

Total Scheme Costs - including acquisition costs, works and on-costs (including
making clear whether the land is already in the ownership of the local authority)
e proposed new supply rents by tenure

Page 137 25



¢ an estimate of income from any low cost home ownership first tranche sales

e the borrowing capacity generated by the additional income (and where this is
less than Total Scheme Costs how the local authority is making up the
difference)

¢ the intended dates of both start-on-site and completion.

15.The HCA / GLA will then comment on the proposals in a return letter. In particular they
will confirm (or otherwise) that the ratio of additional income to anticipated new supply
represents value for money given the types of homes local authorities intend building
and their location in the country.

16.To claim rent above the Limit Rent the DWP will amend their subsidy claim forms to
include a category on Affordable Rents — this will enable specified properties to be
treated outside the Rent Rebate Subsidy Limitation scheme. When the subsidy claim
form comes to be audited the local authority will have to show the auditor a letter
signed by the authority’s Section 151 Officer addressed to Stephen Biddulph at this
Department.

17.The letter from the Section 151 Officer must

a. list the addresses of all properties on which an Affordable Rent has been
charged,;

b. confirm that the local authority’s scheme’s finances have been approved by the
HCA / GLA

c. confirm that all income derived from the additional rent has been or will be spent
- and only spent - on the new council housing;

d. confirm that the higher rent set will not rise except in line with Government policy
on rises in council house rent (RPI + 0.5% per annum)

e. confirm that where any property has come up for re-let the rent has been re-
assessed to ensure it is no more than 80% of prevailing market rents (we
appreciate that this will not be relevant in the early years, but confirmation is
nonetheless necessary for consistency).

18.Where the local authority is unable to provide a signed letter from its Section 151
Officer confirming the above or where the auditor selects for inspection a property on
which an Affordable Rent is being charged but which is not listed in the Section 151
Officer’s letter, then that part of the subsidy claim will have to be qualified resulting in a
potential loss of subsidy.

19.This process will need to be repeated each year that an entry against Affordable Rents
has been made on the audit form.

20.If you have any queries on this letter please contact Stephen Biddulph
(stephen.biddulph@communities.gsi.gov.uk). Any queries on Housing Benefit or the
Rent Rebate Subsidy Limitation scheme should be sent to Emmanuel Ibiayo
(Emmanuel.lbiayo@dwp.gsi.gov.uk)

Peter Ruback
Deputy Director
HRA Reform and Decent Homes Division

Page 138 26



Agenda Item 18

Project Appraisal and Scrutiny Committee Recommendation

Project Name: Disposal of 18a and freehold to18b Magrath Avenue,
Cambridge.

To: Executive Councillor for Housing & Executive

Councillor for Finance & Resources
Report by: Director of Customer and Community

HOUSING COMMITTEE &
STRATEGY & RESOURCES COMMITTEE

Wards affected: East Chesterton

Scrutiny committee:

Recommendation/s
Financial recommendations —

e The Executive Councillor for Housing is asked to approve
this project in principle, with the Executive Councillor for
Finance & Resources asked to ultimately approve the project
to dispose of an HRA asset, subject to resources being
available to fund any associated capital and revenue
implications.

e The total capital cost of the project is estimated to be
£5,000

e The capital receipt that the Council would expect to
realise is in the region of £237,500, depending upon
market forces at the point of sale.

e The revenue impact of the initial disposal will be
negligible, with the loss of rental income for the dwelling
being offset by a reduction in management and
maintenance expenditure, and the ability to earn interest
on the capital receipt.

e The net ongoing revenue return for this project would be
£4,300 per annum in the longer term, assuming the
capital receipt was in future used to fund two
replacement dwellings.

Procurement recommendations:

e The Executive Councillor is asked to approve the carrying
out and completion of the procurement of an agent to act on
behalf of the Council and the owner of 18b Magrath Avenue,
in agreement with said owner. The cost of this work is

Page 139



expected to be in the region of £7,200, so one quote will be
required, with the Councils’ share of this cost to be met from
the anticipated capital receipt for the sale.

e Subject to:

- The permission of the Section 151 Officer being sought
prior to proceeding if the quotation or tender sum
exceeds the estimated contract.

- The permission from the Executive Councillor being
sought before proceeding if the value exceeds the
estimated contract by more than 15%.

1 Summary

1.1 The project

To dispose of an HRA dwelling asset at 18a Magrath Avenue,
Cambridge as a joint venture with the long leaseholder of 18b
Magrath Avenue. The project to re-supply the two replacement
dwellings will be presented as part of a wider future development
project, with the capital receipt from this sale used as one of the
funding streams for the new assets.

Target Dates:

Start of procurement July 2014
Award of Contract July 2014
Start of project delivery July 2014

Completion of project to dispose October 2014
of the asset

Date that project output is

expected to become operational

(if not same as above)

1.2 Anticipated Capital Cost
Total Project Cost £5,000

Page 140



Cost Funded from:
Funding: Amount: Details:
Reserves £0

Repairs & Renewals £0

Developer £0

Contributions

Climate Change

Fund £0

Other £5.000 Anticipated Capital Receipt

of £237,500

1.3 Procurement process

This appraisal proposes the sale of an HRA dwelling asset, and
therefore the procurement implications are minimal, with the
expectation that the authority will need to jointly appoint an estate
agent to market and handle the sale of the property / properties,
and that Legal Services will act for the HRA regarding the sale. A
small provision has been made for external legal activity if
required.

2 Project Appraisal & Procurement Report

2.1 Project Background

The Council owned flat at 18a Magrath Avenue is currently empty
and requires a substantial level of repair and replacement works to
bring it up to the decent homes standard, before it can be re-let. It
has a significant damp problem, which is anticipated to result in the
need to replace the flooring and also requires a new kitchen and
potentially bathroom. The current valuation for the ground floor flat
is estimated to be £20,000 lower than the comparable first floor
flat, due to its poor condition.

The tenant who has previously occupied the premises at 18a
Magrath Avenue has been temporarily re-housed with a view to
agreeing permanent alternative housing. The sale of the asset can

Page 141



only proceed if the tenant accepts permanent alternative
accommodation.

The flat on the first floor, 18b Magrath Avenue has been sold on a
long lease, with the Council maintaining the freehold for the entire
building.

The council has been approached by the leaseholder of the first
floor flat, with a view to their purchasing our property along with the
freehold of the building in order to convert the two flats into a single
dwelling house.

Advice obtained by the Council from Pocock and Shaw indicates
that it would be financially advantageous to undertake the
necessary work to convert the two flats into a single dwelling, with
financial benefit to be derived from the ‘marriage value’ of the two
dwellings, ie; the value of the property as a single dwelling would
exceed the combined values of the two flats as separate dwellings.

The proposal to dispose of the ground floor flat was considered in
the light of the potential for the Council to use the receipt to build
replacement affordable dwellings elsewhere in the city for inclusion
within the council owned stock. The initial offer of £150,000
indicated by the leaseholder would only be sufficient to replace the
dwelling sold with a single dwelling, and although pay back would
be achieved within 5 years due to the higher potential rent
chargeable for the new dwelling, the outcome would replace one
social housing unit with one Affordable Housing unit and provide
no net housing gain.

The Council has subsequently discussed with the leaseholder the
potential for buying back his flat, in order to progress the idea, but
the sale price of £290,000 suggested by the leaseholder
significantly exceeds the current valuation the Council has
obtained, with Pocock and Shaw estimating the flat to have a
market value of slightly in excess of £200,000. The valuation
recognises that the current market is volatile and that the actual
price achievable could vary substantially.

Purchasing the upstairs flat at the value proposed by the
leaseholder would not make the overall project viable, as paying
over the market value would remove a significant proportion of the
marriage value of the two assets. Measured in terms of how the
authority could put the net receipt to use by re-investing in new
affordable housing, it would not be sufficient to finance the delivery
of any increase in the supply of new-build housing, ie; the loss of a

Page 142



social housing dwelling at 18a Magrath Avenue would again only
fund the delivery of one new unit, with no net gain.

However a third option of jointly selling both properties along with
the freehold as a whole with vacant possession has been
suggested, with the Council and the Leaseholder sharing the
proceeds on a pre-determined percentage split. This allows both
parties to benefit from any potential marriage value, and would
allow for recognition that the Council is the freeholder, but that the
Council dwelling is the one which requires the greatest investment
currently. It is this option that forms the basis of this project
appraisal, and which has the potential to increase the overall
supply of Affordable Housing.

It is estimated that the combined dwelling would be worth
£550,000 once combined, but would fetch in the region of £70,000
to £80,000 lower than this without the conversion works. For the
purposes of this appraisal it has been assumed that the property is
sold without the works being undertaken and that the shared value
realised would be £475,000.

2.2 Aims & objectives

The proposal supports the following priority within the vision for
Housing Services:

e Improving housing standards: Maintaining and refurbishing
council housing, and supporting the development of new
affordable housing, in the public and private sector, that
achieves high environmental standards of energy efficiency,
minimal carbon emission, and maximum waste recycling.

The project would ultimately enable, should the purchaser so
choose, the conversion of two 1 bedroom flats into a good sized 3
bedroom family house within the private sector, whilst generating a
capital receipt to the Council sufficient to support the construction
of two new build dwellings, with minimal borrowing required, on
existing or future development site for retention within the Council
owned stock.

Page 143



2.3 Major issues for stakeholders & other departments

The scheme will reduce the council owned stock by one, one-
bedroom flat, and reduce the rent roll until two new-build properties
are completed and let.

If the Council retains ownership of its current property, a
substantial resource is required to bring it up to decent homes
standard.

2.4 Summarise key risks associated with the project

1.  If the Leaseholder sells his flat before a decision is made on
the project, the opportunity to progress will be lost.
2. It may not be possible to come to a mutually acceptable

agreement on the level at which the proceeds of the two
sales is to be divided.

3. The actual price achieved for the two flats on the open
market may not be as high as estimated.

2.5 Financial implications
a. Appraisal prepared on the following price base: 2014/15

Assuming the two flats at Magrath Avenue sold at £475,000, and
the proceeds were shared 50:50, the project would require
borrowing of £67,500 to fully fund 2 new-build properties. For
indicative purposes this investment would have a pay-back period
of 14 years, and would deliver a net increase in the supply of
Affordable Housing.

On-going revenue costs associated with the new-build properties
will be funded from rental income.

Page 144



2.6 Net revenue implications (costs or savings)

Revenue £ Comments
Ongoing net impact of loss 5,200 Rent loss less reduction
of 18a Magrath Avenue in management,

maintenance and major
repairs expenditure

Ongoing net impact if 2 (9,500) Rent income less cost

replacement dwellings are of management,

created maintenance and major
repairs expenditure

Net Revenue effect (4,300) Cost/ (Saving)

2.7 VAT implications

There are no adverse VAT implications.

2.8 Energy and Fuel Savings

Is this project listed in the Carbon Management Plan? No

2.9 Climate Change Impact

No
effect

Nil

Positive Impact Negative Impact

2.10 Other implications

An Equality Impact Assessment (EqlA) has not been prepared for
this project.

Page 145



2.11 Staff required to deliver the project

Service Skills Total Hours

Legal Services Conveyancing 10

Property Services Property 10
Negotiations

2.12 Dependency on other work or projects

None

2.13 Background Papers

Valuation Report by Pocock and Shaw was used in the preparation
of this report.

2.14 Inspection of papers

Author’'s Name Julia Hovells / Hilary Newby
Author’s phone No. 01223 - 457822

Author’s e-mail: julia.hovells@cambridge.gov.uk

Date prepared: 23" June 2014

Page 146




	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	7 Standard Item: Write-Off of Former and Current Tenant Arrears
	8 Leasehold Services Update
	9 Resident Involvement Update
	Appendix 1. 3 Easy Ways To Have Your Say_ Resident Involvement
	Appendix 2. Want to Get Online - It™s Easy As 1,2,3_Resident Involement
	Appendix 3. Get Online - Pilot Scheme Report_Resident Involvement

	10 2013/14 Revenue and Capital Outturn, Carry Forwards and Significant Variances - HRA
	11 2013/14 Revenue and Capital Outturn, Carry Forwards and Significant Variances - Housing Portfolio
	12 Affordable Housing Programme
	Final Appendix 1- 3 Year Rolling Programme Review
	Intentionally Blank Page

	13 Procurement of an Affordable Housing Development Partner
	14 Power to Charge for Certain Enforcement Action Under the Housing Act 2004 (the "ACT")
	equalities impact charging for notices_power to charge

	15 Cambridgeshire Home Improvement Agency (Cambs HIA)  - Extension of Contract
	16a Opportunity to Bid to Increase the Housing Revenue Account (HRA)
	£300m Prospectus

	18 Disposal of 18a and freehold to 18b Magrath Avenue

